SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

1. BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

SOPHARMA GROUP (the Group) is comprised of the ppoempany and its twenty two (31 December
2011: twenty one) subsidiaries. In addition, theuprhas investments in two joint ventures (31 Ddmm
2011: one joint venture) and two associates (3kBber 2011: none).

Parent company

SOPHARMA AD (the parent company) is a businesstemggistered in Bulgaria with a seat and
address of management: Sofia, 16, lliensko Shdesse

The court registration of the Company dates fromNbyember 1991 — Decision No. 1/1991 of Sofia
City Couirt.

Subsidiaries
The subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 Decembe2 @@te as follows:

« Sopharma Trading AD — a business entity registeiedBulgaria by Decision No.
3594/16.10.1998 of Varna District Court, with atsaad address of management: Sofia, 16,
Rozhen Blvd.;

* Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD — a business entityistered in Bulgaria by Decision No.
3912/1991 of Stara Zagora District Court, with atsend address of management: Kazanluk,
110, 2% Pehoten Shipchenski Polk Blvd.;

« Pharmalogistica AD — a business entity registeneBulgaria by Decision of Sofia City Court
dated 12 August 2002, with a seat and address wagesnent: Sofia, 16, Rozhen Blvd.;

« Elektroncommerce EOOD - a business entity regidtardBulgaria by Decision of Sofia City
Court under Company File No. 24456 of 1991, witeat and address of management: Sofia, 1,
Samokovsko Shousse Str.;

« Biopharm Engineering AD — a business entity registén Bulgaria by Decision No. 524/1997
of Sliven District Court, with a seat and addresmanagement: Sliven, 75, Trakiya Blvd.;

 Momina Krepost AD — a business entity registere@iutgaria by Decision No. 3426/1991 of
Veliko Tarnovo District Court, with a seat and azkl of management: Veliko Tarnovo, 23,
Magistralna Str.;

« Sopharma Buildings REIT — a business entity reggstén Bulgaria by Decision No. 1/14.08.07
of Sofia City Court, with a seat and address of age@ment: Sofia, 16, lliensko Shousse Str.;

« Unipharm AD — a business entity registered in Britghy Decision of Sofia City Court under
Company File No. 3685 of 1994, with a seat and esklof management: Sofia, 3, Traiko
Stanoev Str.;
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« Phyto Palauzovo AD - a business entity registerad Bulgaria by Decision No.
20120924105551/24.09.2012 of the Registry Agendt) & seat and address of management:
Kazanluk, 110, 28 Pehoten Shipchenski Polk Blvd.;

« Sopharma Poland OOD, in liquidation — a businesisyeregistered in Poland by Decision No.
KRS 0000178554 of 4 November 2003 of XX Economiwiflon of Warsaw Regional Court
Register, with a seat and address of managemdand®&arsaw, 58, Shashkova Str.;

e Sopharma Warsaw EOOD — a business entity registierd@oland by Decision No. DSR
0000372245 of 17 December 2010 by XIlI Economic &lon of the State Court Register of
Warsaw, with a seat and address of managemenndd&rsaw, 8, Halubinskiego Str.;

« Sopharma Ukraine EOOD - a business entity regidténe Ukraine by Decision No.
10691020000029051 of 7.08.2012 in the Unified SRegister of Legal Entities and Physical
EntitiesEntrepreneurs, with a seat and address of managetd&raine, Kiev, Oblonski
Region, prospect Moskovskii No. 9, unit 4, flooro®jce 4-203;

» Sopharma USA — a business entity registered in UgMecision No. 97227599 of 25 April
1997 in California State Secretary Office, with eatsand address of management: USA,
California, Los Angelis, 4622, Hollywood Blvd.;

« Extab Corporation USA — a business entity registéneUSA by Decision No. 090292393 of
06.11.2008 in the Delaware State Secretary Offidth a seat and address of management:
USA, Delaware, Wilmington, New Castle Region, 1Z0@nge Street;

e Extab Pharma Limited, United Kingdom — a businagft\eregistered in England by Decision
No. 06751116 of 17 November 2008, with a seat aidtess of management: Oxfordshire,
RG9 1AY, Henlay on Thames, 10 Station Road;

« PAO Vitamini — a business entity registered in Ukeaby Decision No. 133 dated 15 April
1994 of Uman City Court, with a seat and addressariagement: Ukraine, Cherkasy Province,
Uman, 31, Leninski Iskri Str.;

e lvanchich and Sinovi OOD — a business entity regést in Serbia by Fi-11350/91 on 14
October 1991 by the Commercial Court of Belgradthwai seat and address of management:
Republic of Serbia, Belgrade, 13, Palmotichevg Str.

* Briz OOD, Latvia — a business entity registeredlatvia by Decision No. 000302737 dated 18
September 1991 of the Commercial Registry of theuRkc of Latvia, with a seat and address
of management: Latvia, Riga, Rasas No. 5, LV — 1057

« Brititrade SOOO, Belarus — a business entity regést in Belarus by Decision No. 1983 dated
24 September 2004 of Minsk City Executive Committedth a seat and address of
management: Belarus, Minsk, 118, M. Bogdanomicha &fice 303 — B;
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Tabina OOOQO, Belarus — a business entity registeré&klarus by Decision No. 1432 dated 29
December 1999 of Minsk City Executive Committeethva seat and address of management:
Belarus, Minsk, 57, Kuybisheva Str., ap.1;

ZAO Interpharm, Belarus - a business entity regest in Belarus in the Unified State Register
of Legal Entities and Individual Entrepreneurs uride. 300000556, with a seat and address of
management: Belarus, Vitebsk, Stroitelei Squdre ap. 2;

Brizpharm SOOO, Belarus — a business entity regidtan the Minsk City Executive
Committee in the Unified State Register of Legatittes and Individual Entrepreneurs under
No. 800007989 of 07.07.2009, with a seat and addremanagement: Belarus, Minsk, Esenina
Str., d. 16, ap. 1H;

In 2012 the Group disposed of its interest in tiWing subsidiaries:

Rostbalkanpharm ZAO — a business entity registerdtlssia by Decision No. 1026101791594
of 9 October 2002, with a seat and address of neaneaigt: Russia, Azov, 10 Osipenko Str. The
Group sold its investment on 10 April 2012.

Superlats OOD, Latvia — a business entity regidténelatvia by Decision No. 40003960404
dated 5 October 2007 of the Commercial Registrthef Republic of Latvia, with a seat and
address of management: Latvia, Riga, 117 Dzelz&masLV — 1021 — sold on 15 February
2012.

Joint ventures

The joint ventures of the Group as at 31 DecembB&® 2vere as follows:

Sopharma Zdrovit AD, in liquidation — a businessitgmegistered in Poland by Decision KRS
0000298139 dated 27 September 2007 of Warsaw RepnhCourt Registry, with a seat and
address of management: Poland, Warsaw, 31, NokhgisStr.;

Vivaton Plus OOO, Belarus — a business entity tegigl in Belarus by Decision No.
590004353 of Grodno City Executive Committee, witlseat and address of management:
Belarus, Grodno, Kletskova Str., 13 B, office 2.

Associates

The associates of the Group as at 31 Decemben@&rE2as follows:

Vestpharm ODO, Belarus — a business entity regidtar Belarus by Decision No. 590002202
of Grodno City Executive Committee, with a seat address of management: Belarus, Grodno,
Dombrovskogo Str., d. 47, k. 3. The company wasliaed by the Group through Briz, Latvia,
on 29 October 2012;
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« Alean ODO, Belarus — a business entity registendgielarus by Decision No. 100160720 of 29
May 2001 in the Minsk City Executive Committee imetUnified State Register of Legal
Entities and Individual Entrepreneurs, with a ssead address of management: Belarus, Minsk,
Tashkentskaya Str., d. 16, k. 1. The company waqaiged by the Group through Briz, Latvia,
on 26 September 2012.

Vivaton Plus OOO, Belarus, acquired by the Groupdh2, initially had the status of an associatengfi
June 2012 to 20 December 2012) but subsequentiptacpntrol over it was obtained and its status wa
changed to 'joint venture' (Note 43).

ZAO Interpharm, Belarus, acquired by the Group 0412 initially had the status of an associate (f®m
April 2011 to 17 December 2011) but subsequentty dbntrol over it was obtained and its status was
changed to 'subsidiary' (Note 43).

1.1. Ownership and management of the parent company

SOPHARMA AD is a public company under the Bulgafblic Offering of Securities Act. Starting from
November 2011, the shares of the company are beided in the Warsaw Stock Exchange.

The joint-stock capital structure of the parent pany as at 31 December 2012 was as follows:

%

Donev Investment Holding A 24.5:¢
Telecomplect Invest A 20.4z2
Financial Consulting Company EO( 13.8C
Universal Pension Fond Doverie , 6.7
Sopharma AD (treasury shat 2.64
Other legal persol 28.0z
Physical persol 3.8¢

SOPHARMA AD has a one-tier management system witheamember Board of Directors as follows:

Ognian Donev, Ph Chairma
Vessela Stoe Membe
Ognian Palaves¢ Membe
Alexander Chaushi Membe
Andrey Breshko Membe

The parent company is represented and manages Byetutive Director Ognian Donev, PhD.
1.2. Structure of the Group and principal activise

The structure of the Group includes SOPHARMA AD as a parent canyand the subsidiary
companies stated below:
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Subsidiaries 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Interest Interest Control Loss o

% %  acquisition date control date

Companies in Bulgaria
Sopharma Trading AD 81.01 81.33 08.06.2006 -
Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD * 52.77 52.77 22.04.2004 -
Pharmalogistica AD 76.54 76.54 15.08.2002 -
Electroncommerce EOOD 100 100 09.08.2005 -
Biopharm Engineering AD 97.15 69.43 10.03.2006 -
Sopharma Buildings ADSIC 42.64 42.64 04.08.2008 -
Momina Krepost AD * 51.3 51.1 01.01.2008 -
Unipharm AD * 52.21 52.05 27.10.2010 -
Phyto Palauzovo AD ** 50.13 - 21.09.2012 -
Companies abroad
Rostbalkanpharm ZAO - 51 27.07.2001 10.04.2012
Sopharma Poland OOD - in liquidation 60 60 16.10.2003 -
Sopharma USA 100 100 25.04.1997 -
Extab Corporation 80 80 05.08.2009 -
Extab Pharma Limited ** 80 80 05.08.2009 -
Briz OOD 51 51 10.11.2009 -
Brititrade SOOO ** 50.24 49.73 10.11.2009 -
PAO Vitamini 99.56 99.56 18.01.2008 -
Ivanchich and Sinovi OOD 51 51 10.04.2008 -
Sopharma Warsaw EOOD 100 100 23.11.2010 -
Tabina OO0 ** 47.94 50.49 08.04.2011 -
ZAO Interpharm ** 36.31 49.27 17.12.2011 -
Superlats OO0 ** - 31.24 20.05.2011 15.02.2012
Brizpharm SOOOQ ** 26.01 - 20.12.2012 -
Sopharma Ukraine 100 - 07.08.2012 -

* efficient percentage of interest
** indirect interest

* Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD is a subsidiary to SBRMA AD, the control thereon being
acquired and exercised through the direct participaof the parent company in the ownership
of Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD with 49.99% and thdirect participation of the parent
company with 2.78% through the subsidiary Sophaiimading AD holding 3.43% of the
capital of Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD;

 Momina Krepost AD is a subsidiary to SOPHARMA Albgetcontrol thereon being acquired
and exercised through the direct participation g parent company in the ownership of
Momina Krepost AD with 49.94 % and the indirect tid@pation of the parent company with
1.36% through the subsidiary Sopharma Trading ABlihg 1.68% of the capital of Momina
Krepost AD;
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* Unipharm AD is a subsidiary to SOPHARMA AD, the twh thereon being acquired and
exercised through the direct participation of tiaeept company in the ownership of Unipharm
AD with 49.99 % and the indirect participation b&tparent company with 2.22 % through the
subsidiary Sopharma Trading AD holding 2.74% ofdhpital of Unipharm AD;

» Sopharma Buildings ADSIC is a subsidiary by virtok a written agreement for control
concluded between SOPHARMA AD and other sharehsjder

» Extab Pharma Limited, United Kingdom, is a subsidtiirough Extab Corporation, USA, the
latter company being 100% capital holder of ExtharPha Limited, United Kingdom;

» Brititrade SOOO, Belarus, is a subsidiary of Brid, Latvia — Briz OOD holds 98.50% of the
capital of Brititrade SOOO,;

» Tabina OOOQ, Belarus, is a subsidiary through Bri@BD Latvia — Briz OOD holds 94% of the
capital of Tabina OOO;

e ZAO Interpharm, Belarus, is a subsidiary througiz BYOD, Latvia — Briz OOD holds 71.19%
of the capital of ZAO Interpharm;

» Brizpharm SOOO, Belarus, is a subsidiary througiz BxOD, Latvia — Briz OOD holds 51 %
of the capital of Brizpharm SOQO;

» Superlats 00O, Latvia, is a subsidiary through B¥}2D, Latvia - the latter holds 61.25% of
the capital of Superlats OOO. The Group sold e&tment in Superlats OOO on 15 February
2012.

The principal activities of the Group companies freused on the pharmaceutical sector except for
separate companies having principal activities @ghe field of investment in real estate and sidies.

The principal activities of the companies withie Broup are as follows:

» SOPHARMA AD - production and trade in medicinal staimces (active ingredients) and
finished drug forms; research and developmentitievin the field of medicinal products;

* Sopharma Trading AD — trade in pharmaceutical prtsju

* Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD — production of fidhdrug forms;

» Biopharm Engineering AD — production and tradeniiusion solutions;

« Pharmalogistica AD — secondary packaging of phaemtézal products and real estate leases;

e Electroncommerce EOOD - trade, transportation aamtkamging of radioactive materials and
nuclear equipment for medicinal use, householdreleics and electrical equipment;

e Sopharma Buildings ADSIC — investment of funds,usmaalated by issuance of securities, in
real estate (securitisation of real estate) thrqugtthase of title and other real rights over real
estate, rent-out, lease, and/or sale;

*  Momina Krepost AD — development, implementation gmdduction of medical goods for
human and veterinary medicine;

e Unipharm AD - production and trade in pharmaceigica

 Phyto Palauzovo AD - production, collection, pus#agrowing and trade in herbs and
medicinal plants (a subsidiary as from 21 Septer@b&p);
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PAO Vitamini — production and trade in pharmacealic

Rostbalkanpharm ZAO — production and trade in pla@euticals (a subsidiary until 10 April
2012);

Ivanchich and Sinovi OOD - production and tradpharmaceuticals;

Sopharma Poland OOD, in liquidation — market anlipwpinion research;

Sopharma Warsaw EOOD — market and public opinisaakh;

Sopharma Ukraine EOOD - trade in pharmaceuticalaarket and public opinion research (a
subsidiary as from 7 August 2012);

Sopharma USA - trade in pharmaceuticals and fopdlsments;

Extab Corporation, USA — market and public opiniesearch;

Extab Pharma Limited, United Kingdom — market anblig opinion research;

Briz OOD, Latvia — trade in pharmaceuticals;

Brititrade SOOO, Belarus — trade in pharmaceutjcals

Tabina OOO, Belarus — trade in pharmaceuticals;

ZAO Interpharm, Belarus — trade in pharmaceuticals;

Brizpharm SOOO, Belarus — trade in pharmaceuti¢alsubsidiary as from 20 December
2012).

The parent company and the subsidiaries Sopharradiny AD, Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD,
Pharmalogistica AD, Electroncommerce EOOD, BiophdEmgineering AD, Sopharma Buildings
ADSIC, Momina Krepost AD, Unipharm AD, Phyto Palaun AD perform their activities in Bulgaria;
Sopharma Poland OOD - in liquidation and Sopharmarséiw EOOD operate in Poland,
Rostbalkanpharm ZAO - in Russia, PAO Vitamini, Sampa Ukraine EOOD - in Ukraine, lvanchich
and Sinovi OOD - in Serbia, Briz OOD - in LatviajtBrade SOOO , Tabina OO0, ZAO Interpharm
and Brizpharm SOOO - in Belarus, Extab Pharma kdit in the United Kingdom, and Sopharma
USA and Extab Corporation, USA —in USA.

As at 31 December 2012, the interest of the Graupeéjoint venturesis as follows:

Sopharma Zdrovit AD — in liquidation with 50.01%gtiher with Natur Product Zdrovit OOD,
Poland. The principal activities of the joint verg include research and development activities
in the field of medical science and pharmacy, walle in pharmaceuticals. Sopharma Zdrovit
AD - in liquidation has been a joint venture si@@eSeptember 2007.

Vivaton Plus OOO, Belarus, with 50% interest witpptéka Group Holding and a physical
person. The principal activities of the joint veamtlnclude trade in pharmaceuticals and food
supplements. The company has been a joint verbutbé Group since 20 December 2012.

As at 31 December 2012 the Group has intereseifallowing associates:

Vestpharm ODO, Belarus — a business entity regidtar Belarus by Decision No. 590002202
of Grodno City Executive Committee, with a seat address of management: Belarus, Grodno,
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Dombrovskogo Str., d. 47, k. 3. The company wasliaed by the Group through Briz, Latvia,
on 29 October 2012;

« Alean ODO, Belarus — a business entity registandgielarus by Decision No. 100160720 of 29
May 2001 in the Minsk City Executive Committee imetUnified State Register of Legal
Entities and Individual Entrepreneurs, with a sead address of management: Belarus, Minsk,
Tashkentskaya Str., d. 16, k. 1. The company wesigd by the Group through Briz, Latvia,
on 26 September 2012.

From 1 June 2012 to 28 December 2012 the Groupihditectly 18.87 % of the associate Vivaton
Plus OOOD and after that period it acquired jomnttcol thereon.

From 1 February 2011 to 17 December 2011 the Ghalg indirectly 22.48% of the associate ZAO
Interpharm and after that period it acquired thetics thereon.

The average number of Group’s personnel in 20123)&45 workers and employees (2011: 3,889).

1.3. Main indicators of the economic environment

The main economic indicators of the business enmient that have affected the activities of the @rou

companies throughout the period 2010 — 2012, asepited in the table below:

Indicator 2010 2011 2017
GDP in million levs (Bulgaria) 70,474 75,2685 77,582
Actual growth of GDP (Bulgaria) 0.20% 1.70% 0.89
Year-end inflation (Bulgaria) 4.50% 2.75% 4.25%
Year-end inflation (Belarus) 10.10% 108.70% 21.80%
USD/BGN average for the year 1.4779 1.4065 1.52314
USD/BGN at year-end 1.4728 1.5116 1.4836
PLN/BGN average for the year 0.4892 0.4759 0.4677R
PLN/BGN at year-end 0.49327 0.43871 0.47926
RUB/BGN average for the year 0.04864 0.04787 0.04902
RUB/BGN at year-end 0.04824 0.04683 0.04862
RSD/BGN average for the year 0.01898 0.01914 0.0173
RSD/BGN at year-end 0.01854 0.01864 0.0172
UAH/BGN average for the year 0.18633 0.17664 0.1904p
UAH/BGN at year-end 0.18498 0.18997 0.18561
GBP/BGN average for the year 2.27433 2.25443 2.41275
GBP/BGN at year-end 2.27369 2.34147 2.39406
LVL/BGN average for the year 2.75965 2.76943 2.80501
LVL/BGN at year-end 2.75555 2.79604 2.80285
1000 BRUB/BGN average for the year 0.4946 0.1813 0.1824P
1000 BRUB/BGN at year-end 0.4923 0.1813 0.17256
Basic interest rate at the year-end (Bulgaria) 0.18% 0.22% 0.03%
Unemployment rate at the year-end (Bulgaria) 9.24% 10.40% 11.40%
Source: BNB, National Banks of Ukraine, RussiaaRd| Serbia and Belarus.
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2. SUMMARY OF THE SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES O F THE GROUP
2.1. Basis for the preparation of the consolidatiidancial statements

The consolidated financial statements of SOPHARMAUp have been prepared in accordance with all
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFR@8)ich comprise Financial Reporting Standards and
the International Financial Reporting InterpretaicCommittee (IFRIC) interpretations, approved by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB¥) well as the International Accounting

Standards (IAS) and the Standing Interpretationsn@ittee (SIC) interpretations, approved by the
International Accounting Standards Committee (IAS@®hich are effectively in force on 1 January

2012 and have been accepted by the Commissior &utropean Union.

For the current financial year the Group has adbpé new and/or revised standards and
interpretations, issued by the International Acd¢mgnStandards Board (IASB) and respectively, k& th
International Financial Reporting Interpretatiormn@nittee (IFRIC), which are relevant to its actast

The adoption of these standards and/or interpoetstieffective for annual periods beginning on 1
January 2012, has not resulted in changes in tbep3 accounting policies — in the classification o
valuation of individual reporting items and trarnsauts.

These standards and interpretations include:

« IFRS 7 (amended) "Financial Instruments: Disclostre regarding transfer of financial assets
(in force for annual periods beginning on or affeduly 2011 — endorsed by EC as from 1 July
2011; for the Republic of Bulgaria — practically @igable as from 1 January 2012)hese
amendments are related to expanding the requirenfi@ntisclosure of data regarding transfer
transactions of financial assets, including depggadin the circumstances whether the reporting
entity continues, at the reporting date, to haveolirement in and responsibility to the
respective financial asset by assuming certainsrisights and benefits and regardless of
whether the transferred assets are derecognisedifi® statement of financial position or not.

At the date when these consolidated financial statgs have been issued for approval, there areaeve
new standards, amended/revised standards andretaipns issued but not yet in force for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012, whiatie not been adopted by the Group for early
application. Some of them are accepted as effedtiv2012 but for annual periods starting after 1
January 2012 while others — for annual periodsriyeéng on or after 1 January 2013.

The management of the parent company has concthdedut of them the following are likely to have
a potential impact in the future for changes indleounting policies and the classification andieal

of reporting items in the consolidated financiahtsiments of the Group for subsequent reporting
periods, namely:
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A. Endorsed for periods beginning after 1 January 212

IAS 1 (amended) "Presentation of Financial Statesigin force for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2012 — endorsed by EChe amendment introduces a requirement for
entities to present the components of other congmstie income in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in two separate categateggmending on whether they could be
subsequently reclassified or not to current profitoss in the consolidated income statement,
including their tax effect. In addition, the nanfetlte consolidated statement of comprehensive
income has been changed to 'consolidated statevhg@mofit or loss and other comprehensive
income'.

B. Endorsed for periods beginning at least on 1 Jarary 2013

IAS 12 (amended) "Income Taxes" (in force for ahpeaods beginning on or after 1 January
2013 — endorsed by EChhe amendment clarifies explicitly that the assesdg of deferred tax
(asset or liability) on the underlying asset shobkl based on the manner in which the
respective entity intends to recover the investnietite carrying amount of the asset — though
sale or through continuing use. It sets out spedifies for cases of non-current assets measured
by applying the revaluation model in IAS 16 but thofor investment properties measured by
applying the fair value model in IAS 40, includitigpse acquired in a business combination, i.e.
a rebuttable presumption is introduced that defetas should be determined on the basis that
the carrying amount will normally be recovered tigb sale;

IAS 19 (amended) "Employee Benefits" (in forcedimnual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013 — endorsed by EChe amendment changes the accounting for definedfibe
plans and termination benefits. The fundamentahgkais the elimination of the 'corridor'
approach and the introduction of the rule thasabsequent remeasurements (referred to so far
as actuarial gains or losses) of defined benefigations and plan assets shall be recognised
when occurred in a component of ‘other comprehengicome’, as well as the accelerated
recognition of past service costs;

IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) "Separate Financialte3tents" (in force for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 — endorsecERy— for mandatory application, at the
latest, for annual periods beginning on or afteddnuary 2014). The standard was reissued
with a changed title as the part of it referringctmsolidated financial statement was entirely
separated in a new standard — IFRS 10 "Consolidétethcial Statements". Thus the standard
now includes only the rules on accounting for inrents in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures at the level of separate financial statesne

IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) "Investments in Assesiand Joint Ventures" (in force for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 — esdd by EC — for mandatory application, at
the latest, for annual periods beginning on or mfteJanuary 2014)The title of the standard

has been changed and the standard sets out rulepgtication of the equity method when
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accounting for investments in associates as welhgeint ventures, which were previously
included in the scope of IAS 31 "Interests in J&ehtures” in line with the new IFRS 11 and
IFRS 12. IAS 31 becomes inapplicable starting flodanuary 2013;

« IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments: Classification andedsurement" (in force for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2015 — not endorkgd=C).This standard replaces parts of
IAS 39 by establishing principles, rules and cidteior the classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and liabiliti@s¢luding hybrid contracts. It introduces a
requirement that financial assets are to be cladsifased on entity’s business model for their
management and the contractual cash flow charstitsriof the respective assets. It establishes
two primary measurement categories for financiaétss amortised cost and fair value. The new
rules will lead to possible changes mainly in treeaanting for financial assets as debt
instruments and financial liabilities designatedaafair value through current profit or loss (for
credit risk);

« IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements" (ircéofor annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013 — endorsed by EC — for mandatoryiegon, at the latest, for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014). Transitiomplidance (in force for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 — endorsedEBY — regarding the first-time application
of this standard. This standard replaces a sigmifipart of IAS 27 ("Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements") and SIC-12 ("Consolidatiorspecial Purpose Entities"). Its main
objective is to establish the principles and meghémt the preparation and presentation of
financial statements when an entity controls onmore other entities. It gives a new definition
for the term ‘control' as comprising three elemeattablishes control as the only basis for
consolidation and provides more detailed rulesiflentifying existing relationship through
control. The standard also sets out the main mandatles for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements;

« IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangements" (in force for annua&ripds beginning on or after 1 January
2013 — endorsed by EC — for mandatory applicatairthe latest, for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014). Transitional guidar{foeforce for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013 — endorsed by EC) — regardivagfirst-time application of this standard.
This standard replaces IAS 31 "Interests in Joimntdres", including SIC-13 "Jointly
Controlled Entities — Non-monetary Contributions\égnturers". It introduces only two types
of joint arrangements — joint operations and jeimtures — whereas the classification criterion
used is not the legal form but rather the rightd abligations of each party to an arrangement,
i.e. whether they represent rights to the assetdiahilities and respectively, to the expenses
and revenue from the joint arrangement (joint of@ma or rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement (joint venture). The standard remolvesoption for proportionate consolidation
and requires application of the equity method forsolidation of jointly controlled entities;

- IFRS 12 "Disclosing of Interest in Other Entiti€#i force for annual periods beginning on or
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after 1 January 2013 — endorsed by EC — for mangaépplication, at the latest, for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014). ®ieional guidance (in force for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 — esdd by EC)- regarding the first-time
application of this standard. This standard intasduobligations for disclosure in the financial
statements and requirements to the informatioruded therein with regard to all forms of
interests of the reporting entity in other comparaed entities, including both the effects and
the risks of those interests;

« IFRS 13 "Fair Value Measurement" (in force for amhperiods beginning on or after 1
January 2013 — endorsed by EChis standard establishes a single source of metbgidal
guidance by providing a precise definition of ‘fe@ue’, rules and methods for its measurement
as well as more extensive disclosure requiremeantgafr value and its measurement for the
purposes of all IFRSs. It applies to both finaha@igtruments and non-financial assets and
liabilities when fair value is required or permittby IFRS;

« 1AS 32 (amended) "Financial Instruments: Presentgti(in force for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014 — endorsed by EC) —rdigg the offsetting of financial assets and
financial liabilities. These amendments relate to a clarification asd@pplication of the rules
on offsetting financial instruments. They are mgiim four directions: (a) clarification of the
meaning of 'current legally enforceable right afa#f; (b) the application of the simultaneous
realisation and settlement criterion; (c) offseajtiof cash provided as collateral; (d) the unit of
account for the application of the offsetting regoients;

* IFRS 7 (amended) "Financial Instruments: Disclostire regarding the offsetting of financial
assets and financial liabilities (in force for araluperiods beginning on or after 1 January
2013 - endorsed by ECJhese amendments are related to the enhanced suisefofor all
financial instruments, which will be netted (offsigt accordance with IAS 32 (par. 42) as well
as additional arrangements for offsetting outsitescope of IAS 32; and

+ IFRS Improvements (May 2012) — improvements in 1A$6, 32, 34, IFRS 1 (in force for
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2618ndorsed by ECYhese improvements
introduce partial amendments to the respectivedsrals primarily with a view to remove
existing inconsistency or ambiguities in the amdiimn rules and requirements of individual
standards as well as to set up more precise telmgynorhese amendments are mainly focused
on the following item or transactions: borrowingsto for qualifying assets for which the
capitalisation commencement date is prior to thée daf transition to IFRS (IFRS 1),
clarifications about the requirements for presémabf comparative information (IAS 1),
clarifications about the classification of servigirquipment (IAS 16), the accounting for the
tax effect from distributions to holders of equitygtruments according to the requirements of
IAS 12 (IAS 32), interim reporting of segment infaation on total assets for achieving
consistency with IFRS 8 (IAS 34).
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Additionally, in regard of the stated below new nstards, amended/revised standards and new
interpretations that have been issued but notrydbrice for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2012, the management of the parent compgoncluded that the following would not have
a potential impact for changes in the accountinies, the classification and values of reportitggns

in the consolidated financial statements of theurmamely:

 IFRS 1 (amended) “First-time Adoption of Interna® Financial Reporting Standards” —
regarding government loans (in force for annualipds beginning on or after 1 January 2013
— endorsed by ECThis amendment reflects changes in IAS 20 "Accagnfor Government
Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistanceliireg an entity to measure government
loans with a below-market rate of interest at Yailue on initial recognition;

« IFRS 7 (amended) "Financial Instruments: Disclostire- regarding the relief from the
requirement to restate comparatives and the reldedeto disclosures when applying IFRS 9
(in force for annual periods beginning on or affedanuary 2015 — not endorsed by EC);

« IFRIC 20 "Stripping Costs in the Production PhageaocSurface Mine" (in force for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 — eadd by EC).This interpretation provides
clarifications regarding the differentiation of tlecounting treatment of the costs of mine
waste materials removal (stripping) for the purgostproduction and the costs of improved
access to further quantities of material that adllmined in future periods.

The consolidated financial statements have beepaped on a historical cost basis except for: a/
property, plant and equipment, which are measureevalued amount; and 2/ investment property and
available-for-sale financial instruments, which aneasured at their fair value at the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position. Thgures of the companies, consolidated in these
financial statements, which operate in the enviremimof hyperinflationary economy, have been
restated for the effects of hyperinflation with tespective inflation index (Notes 2.6, 2.10, 22.27).

The Bulgarian companies of the Group maintain the@ounting books in Bulgarian lev (BGN), which
is accepted as being their functional ands pretentaurrency. The subsidiaries, associates amd joi
ventures abroad organise their accounting and tiagoin accordance with the requirements of the
respective local legislation (Rostbalkanpharm ZAQRussia, Sopharma Ukraine EOOD and PAO
Vitamini — Ukraine, Ivanchich and Sinovi OOD — SarbExtab Pharma Limited — United Kingdom,
Briz OOD - Latvia, Brititrade SOO, Tabina OO0, ZA@terpharm, Brizpharm SOOO, the joint
venture Vivaton Plus OOS, the associates Vestpl@iD® and Alean ODO - Belarus, Sopharma USA
and Extab Corporation — USA legislation and Sopkafoland OOD - in liquidation, Sopharma
Warsaw EOOD and the joint venture Sopharma Zdvit- in liquidation — the Polish legislation) and
keep their accounting ledgers in the respectivalloarrency — Rouble (RUB), Grivni (UAH), Serbian
Dinar (RSD), Euro (EUR), British Pound (GBP), LatwiLat (LVL), Belarus Ruble (BRUB), US
Dollars (USD) and Polish Zloty (PLN).
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The data in the consolidated financial statememdstiae notes thereto are presented in thousandiarg
Levs (BGN’'000), unless explicitly stated otherwisad the Bulgarian Lev is accepted as reporting and
presentation currency of the Group. According tofblicies of the Group, the financial statemefith®
Group companies abroad are restated from the taredncy to Bulgarian Levs for the purposes of the
consolidated financial statements (Note 2.5). Tihancial statements of the Group companies whose
functional currency is a currency in hyperinflatop economy are restated with an inflation index so
that they are expressed in measurement units agtite end of the reporting period and after thayt
are restated from the local currency to Bulgariew for the purposes of the Group consolidation.

The presentation of the consolidated financial est&nts in accordance with IFRS requires the
management to make best estimates, accruals ssmhedde assumptions that affect the reported values
of assets and liabilities and the disclosure oftiogent receivables and payables as at the datteeof
financial statements, and respectively, on thentedamounts of income and expenses for the regporti
year. These estimates, accruals and assumptioftmsee on the information, which is available at th
date of the consolidated financial statements,thatefore, the future actual results might be déffié
from them (whereas in the conditions of financigbis the uncertainties are more significant). The
items presuming a higher level of subjective assess or complexity or where the assumptions and
accounting estimates are material for the congaldifinancial statements, are disclosed in Not8.2.3

2.2. Definitions
Parent company

This is the company that has control over the eson@nd financial policies and the operation of the
subsidiaries by holding more than 50% of their tdpshares and/or voting rights or by virtue of a
written control agreement concluded between thestindders.

The parent company is SOPHARMA AD, Bulgaria (Not&)1

Subsidiary companies

These are companies, including such that are gal lentities, in which the parent holds directly or
indirectly more than 50% of the voting rights iretGeneral Meeting (in the joint-stock capital) amd/
has the right to appoint more than 50% of the Badiidirectors of the respective company or by \értu
of a written control agreement, concluded betwéenshareholders, and can exercise control over thei
financial and operating policy (including by virtugf a control agreement concluded between
shareholders). The subsidiary companies are caagetl as from the date on which the effective
control over them has been acquired by the Groupaae de-consolidated as from the date when the
control over them ceases and is transferred outse@l&roup. The full consolidation method is apgplie
for their consolidation.

The subsidiary companies are presented in Note 1.2.
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Joint venture

A joint venture is established by virtue of a caotual agreement based on which two or more parties
(companies) start a common business undertakinighvigy subject to joint control.

The joint control represents a contractual shaohgontrol (50:50) on a particular business. It is
determined by the requirement that strategic firrand operating decisions relating to the busines
activities and the development of the joint ventsinall be taken with mandatory unanimous consent of
the controlling shareholders.

A controlling shareholder (venturer) in a joint were is the party (company), which participateshie
joint venture and shares the joint control on Hteef.

The proportionate consolidation method is applidtfie consolidation of the joint venture. The foin
venture is being consolidated as from the date bittwthe joint control has been acquired by the
venturer (the parent company) and its consolidatiogier this method is ceased when the joint venture
is transformed into a subsidiary or when joint cohis transferred from the venturer to third pesti

The joint ventures are: Sopharma Zdrovit AD — quidation, Poland, and Vivaton Plus OOO, Belarus
(Note 1.2).

Associate

This is a company in which the investor (the pamarpany) exercises significant influence but is
neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture with theeistor.

Significant influence is the right of participatian decision-taking with regard to financial and
operation policies of the entity, subject to inmesit, but not control or joint control over thesdigies.
Usually it exists in case of: (a) possession byitivestor, directly or indirectly, of 20% to 50% thfe
shares in the capital of the investee company ydioh by virtue of an agreement between
shareholders), and (b) in addition, the investorejgresented in the managing body of the investee
and/or participates in the decision-taking procesk regard to the policy and strategy of the inges
and/or significant transactions exist between tivestor and the investee.

The associate is included in the consolidated Girstatements of the Group by applying the equity
method — from the date on which the investor (taeept company) acquires significant influence and
its consolidation under this method is ceased wasmociate is transformed into a subsidiary or when
is accepted that the significant influence is tfamed from the investor to third parties.

The associates are: Vestpharm ODO, Belarus, arahAnO, Belarus (Note 1.2).
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2.3. Consolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements include thantial statements of the parent company and the
subsidiaries, the joint ventures and the associptepared as at 31 December, which is the datieeof
Group's financial year. The ‘economic entity’ asgiimn has been applied in the consolidation whereas
for the measurement of non-controlling interegbiisiness combinations and other forms of acquisitio
of subsidiaries the ‘proportionate share of ne¢tSsnethod has been chosen.

For the purposes of consolidation, the financialeshents of the subsidiaries, the joint venturekthe
associates have been prepared for the same repqeinod as the parent company using uniform
accounting policies.

2.3.1. Consolidation of subsidiaries

In the consolidated financial statements, the fifgnstatements of the included subsidiaries are
consolidated under the “full consolidation’ methtide-by-line, by applying accounting policies tlzae
uniform with regard to the significant reportingnts. The investments of the parent company are
eliminated against its share in the equity of thbsiiaries at the date of acquisition. Intra-group
transactions and balances, including unrealised-gnoup gains and losses, are eliminated in Tuike
effect of deferred taxes has been taken into a¢énuhese eliminating consolidation entries.

The shares of shareholders — third parties in tibsidiaries other than these of the shareholdetiseof
parent company are presented separately in theolsied statement of financial position, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income thadstatement of changes in equity as 'non-
controlling interest'. The non-controlling interéstiudes: (a) the combined share of the sharelolde
third parties in the fair value (deemed cost) dfidentifiable assets acquired, liabilities assuraed
contingent (crystallised) liabilities of the respee subsidiaries at the date of initial consoliolat
determined (based on the share) through the piopate method, and (b) the change in the share of
these third parties in the equity of each respedivbsidiary from their initial consolidation tcetlend

of the reporting period.

2.3.2. Acquisition of subsidiaries

The acquisition (purchase) method of accountingsisd on the acquisition of a subsidiary (entity) by
the Group in business combinations. The consideratansferred includes the fair value at the dédte
exchange of the assets transferred, the incurredsamed liabilities and the equity instrumentadss
by the acquirer in exchange of the control overabguiree. It also includes the fair value of anyed

or liability resulting from a contingent considecet arrangement. Acquisition-related direct costs a
recognised as current expenses when incurred efmefite issue costs of debt or equity instruments,
which are recognised as equity components.

All identifiable assets acquired, liabilities andntingent (crystallised) liabilities assumed in the

business combination are measured initially at tfaéi values at the date of exchange. Any excess 0

20
This is a translation from Bulgarian of the consglalied financial statements of Sopharma Group far 2612.



SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

the sum of the consideration transferred (measaitréair value), the amount of non-controlling irgstr

in the acquiree and the fair value at the acquisitlate of any previous interest in the acquireeéise
of stepwise acquisition) over the acquired ideatife assets and assumed liabilities of the acqugrer
treated and recognised as goodwill. If acquirdnare in the fair value of acquired net identifiabsets
exceeds the cost of acquisition of the businessgmtion, this excess is recognised immediatelén
consolidated statement of comprehensive income hef Group in the item ‘gains/(losses) on
acquisition/(disposal) of subsidiaries’. Any nomtolling interest in a business combination is
measured based on the method of the ‘proportistetee of the net assets’ of the acquiree.

When a business combination for the acquisitiora cfubsidiary is achieved in stages, all previous
investments held by the acquirer at the acquisitiate are revalued to fair value and the effecthisf
revaluation are recognised in the current profitoms of the Group, respectively in ‘finance income
and ‘finance costs’ or ‘gains/(losses) from an aige’, including all previously recorded effects i
other comprehensive income are recycled.

2.3.3. Disposal of subsidiaries
On sale or other form of loss (transfer) of contreér a subsidiary:

« Assets and liabilities (including any goodwill) ¢fie subsidiary are derecognised at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost;

* The non-controlling interest in the subsidiary isre@tognised at carrying amount in the
consolidated statement of financial position atltss of control date, including all components
of other comprehensive income related thereto;

e The fair value of the consideration received frdme transaction, event or operation that
resulted in the lost of control is recognised;

« All components of equity, representing unrealisedng or losses in accordance with the
respective IFRS under the provisions of which themmponents fall, are reclassified to profit
or loss for the year or are transferred directlyetained earnings;

« Any resulting difference as a ‘gain or loss frordisposal (sale) of a subsidiary’ attributable to
the parent is recognised in the consolidated sttenf comprehensive income.

« The remaining shares held that form investmentsgociates or available-for-sale investments
are initially measured at fair value at the datesafe and subsequently — following the
accounting policy adopted by the Group (Notes 21d 2.15).

The acquisition (purchase) method is applied atstmainsactions for mergers and/or transformation of
companies under common control if they represesttiacquisitions from the perspective of the plaren
company.
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2.3.4. Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controliimgrests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. The effects from sales of parent companlyares, without loss of control, to holders of non-
controlling interests are not treated as componehthe current profit or loss of the Group but as
movements directly in its equity components, ugualithe 'accumulated profit' reserve. And vicesaer
when the parent company purchases additional sframsholders of non-controlling interest, without
acquisition of control, the difference between thasideration paid and the relevant share acqoifed
the carrying amount of net assets of the subsidirglso directly recognised in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, usually to theuiaedated profit' reserve.

When the Group ceases to have control and signfficdluence, any retained minority investment as
interest in the capital of the respective entityeimeasured to its fair value, with the changeaimying
amount recognised in profit or loss. Respectivelpy amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entityam@unted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of all components related to the initial investm@nta subsidiary or associate).

2.3.5. Consolidation of joint ventures

The proportionate consolidation method is usediricluding the joint ventures in the consolidated
financial statements. The parent company SOPHARMAMas the status of a venturer for Sopharma
Zdrovit AD — in liquidation, Poland, and respectivefor Vivaton Plus OOO, Belarus (as of 29
December 2012). In the proportionate consolidatieethod, the share of the venturer (the parent
company) in each of the assets, liabilities, incand expenses in the jointly controlled company is
combined (added) line-by-line with the analogoess in the financial statements of the venturee Th
Group recognises only the attributable portionhaf tecorded gains and losses on transactions lfor sa
of assets by the Group to the joint venture, whigflers to other investors and venturers. At theesam
time, all intra-group transactions and accountshtite joint venture are eliminated, including the
unrealised intra-group gains or losses on purchakassets of the joint venture by the Group tarthe
resale to third independent parties by also makhmerks for impairment in case of loss. The efféct o
deferred taxes on these consolidation procedurealba been taken into account.

2.3.6. Consolidation of associates

Associates are included in the consolidated fireratatements by applying the equity method whereby
the investment of the parent company is initiathted at cost and is subsequently recalculateeffect

the changes in investor's (the parent company)estmathe post-acquisition net assets of the associa
Group’s investment in an associate includes alsggtfodwill identified on their acquisition net afya
recognised impairment.

The post-acquisition profits or losses for the Gr@hrough the parent company) from the assocate f
the respective reporting period represent its simaitge net financial results (after taxes) ofdperating
activities for the period, which share is recogdia@ad presented on a separate line in the consadida
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statement of comprehensive income. Analogously,Gheup’s share in post-acquisition changes in
other components of comprehensive income of theciss is also recognised and presented as
movement in the other components of comprehensicenie in the statement of comprehensive
income, and respectively the consolidated resesf/ése Group - in the statement of changes in gquit
The Group recognises its share of losses in artiassap to the amount of its investment, includimg
internal loans granted.

The internal accounts between the Group and theciate are not eliminated. The unrealised gains or
losses from transactions between them are elindnedethe percentage of Group’s interest in the

associate by also making checks for impairmentasecof loss. The effect of deferred taxes on these
consolidation procedures has also been taken autouat.

2.4. Comparatives

In these consolidated financial statements, theumresents comparative information for one prior
year.

Where necessary, comparative data is reclassified (estated) in order to achieve compatibility in
view of the current year presentation changes.

2.5. Functional currency and recognition of exchaedlifferences

The functional currency of the Group companies irgBria being also presentation currency for the
Group is the Bulgarian Lev. The Bulgarian Lev ieefi by the BNB Act to the Euro at the ratio BGN
1.95583:EUR 1.

Upon its initial recognition, a foreign currencyamisaction is recorded in the functional currency
whereas the exchange rate to BGN at the date dfdheaction or operation is applied to the foreign

currency amount. Cash and cash equivalents, rddet/and payables, as monetary reporting items,
denominated in foreign currency, are recorded énftimctional currency by applying the exchange rate
as quoted by the Bulgarian National Bank (BNB) tlue last working day of the respective month. At

31 December, these amounts are presented in B&¥ atosing exchange rate of BNB.

The non-monetary items in the consolidated staténoénfinancial position, which are initially
denominated in a foreign currency, are accountedirfothe functional currency by applying the
historical exchange rate at the date of the traisaand are not subsequently re-valued at thergos
exchange rate.

Foreign exchange gains or losses arising on tliersent or recording of foreign currency commercial
transactions at rates different from those at whitody were converted on initial recognition, are
recognised in the consolidated statement of congm@tie income in the period in which they arise and
are presented net under ‘other operating inconssgls)’.
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The functional currency of the companies in Polé®opharma Poland AD — in liquidation, Sopharma
Warsaw EOOD and Sopharma Zdrovit AD — in liquida}iégs the Polish Zloty, of the subsidiary in
Russia (Rostbalkanpharma ZAO) — the Russian Ruablthe subsidiaries in Ukraine (PAO Vitamini,
Sopharma Ukraine EOOD) — the Ukrainian Grivna,haf subsidiary in Serbia (lvanchich and Sinovi
OOD) - the Serbian Dinar, of the subsidiary in [at{Briz OOD) — Lat, of the subsidiaries in Belarus
(Brititrade SOOO, Tabina OOD, ZAO Interpharm andzBharm SOOOQ) - Belarussian Ruble, of the
subsidiary Extab Pharma Limited (United Kingdonthe British Pound, and of the companies in USA
(Sopharma USA and Extab Corporation) — the US Rolla

For the purposes of the consolidated financiakstants, the financial statements of the subsidiarie
abroad are restated from the functional currendh®frespective subsidiary to the presentatiorecgsr
(BGN) accepted for the consolidated financial stegiets, whereas:

(a) all assets and liabilities are restated to theemuny of the Group by applying the closing
exchange rate of the local currency thereto at 8&debhber;

(b) all items of income and expenses are restatedecctinrency of the Group by applying an
average rate of the local currency thereto forrdporting period or by applying the closing
exchange rate of the local currency to the curreoicyhe Group — for companies whose
financial statements are being restated due tormffagion (Note 2.6);

(c) all exchange differences resulting from the restet#s are recognised and presented as a
separate component of equity in the consolidat&stent of financial position, net of deferred
tax effects — 'translation of foreign operatiorserge’, and

(d) the exchange differences resulting from the restate of the net investment in the companies
abroad together with the loans and other currensyriuments, accepted as hedge of these
investments, are presented directly in equity.

On disposal (sale) of a foreign operation (compathg cumulative amount of exchange differences
that have been directly stated as a separate canpohequity, are recognised as part of the puofit
loss in the consolidated statement of compreheris@me on the line ‘gains/(losses) on acquisition
and disposal of subsidiaries, net’, obtained opatial (sale).

Goodwill and adjustments to fair value arising ocgusition of a company abroad are treated
analogously to the assets and liabilities of tloisypany and are restated to the presentation cyrimnc
applying the closing exchange rate.

2.6. Restatement of figures in the financial statenis of Group companies operating in the
environment of hyperinflation (restatements for hgpnflationary economies)

The figures in the financial statements of subsigigaoperating in hyperinflationary economies are
firstly restated on the basis of the general pirckex to the measuring unit at the end of the rapuepr
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period with the aim to reflect the changes in tliecpasing power of the money for the period and
secondly they are translated to the reporting aedgmtation currency of the Group.

Monetary items in the statement of financial positiwhich include money and cash as well as items
that will be settled in money or cash, are notatest for the effects of hyperinflation. All othessats
and liabilities, such as: property, plant and emépt; intangible assets; investments, inventories,
goodwill as well as equity components, are non-rtemydgtems in the statement of financial position f
the purposes of restatements for the effects oftiyfbation. Non-monetary items, presented at antoun
current at the end of the reporting period, are nestated with an inflation index. All other non-
monetary items, measured at cost or at cost lessradated depreciation, are restated for the effett
hyperinflation by using the general price indexenf the date of the transaction (acquisition) ®dhd

of the current reporting period. Non-monetary iteoegried at amounts current at dates other thain th
of acquisition (revalued amounts) or the end of réq@orting period, are restated from the date ef th
revaluation to the end of the reporting period. Téstated inflated amount of a non-monetary item is
reduced, in accordance with the appropriate IFR&nthis amount exceeds the recoverable amount of
the non-monetary item.

All equity components, except for accumulated psodind all revaluation reserves, are restatedhior t
effects of hyperinflation by applying a generakprindex — from the dates of contribution or agsir
the respective components to the end of the curegairting period.

All items in the statement of comprehensive incaane restated for the effects of hyperinflation by
applying a general price index — from the date h&f initial recognition of the respective business
transactions to the end of the current reportirrgpde

The gain or loss on the net monetary positioneotithg the effects of restatements for hyperirdlatbf
non-monetary items and items in the statement afpcehensive income, are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incomdigwitrofit or loss) in the item 'gain or loss ort ne
monetary position from restatements for hyperirdlzry economies'.

2.7. Revenue

Revenue in the Group is recognised on accrual lzagisto the extent and in the way the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and respectiveljzetbusiness risks are born thereby, and as far as
revenue can be reliably measured.

The types of Group’s revenue are presented in Njtésand 11.

Upon sale of finished products, goods and matenialenue is recognised when all significant risks
and rewards of ownership have passed to the buyer.

Upon rendering of services, revenue is recognisgdeference to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the end of the reporting periothig stage as well as the costs incurred for toestiction
and the costs to complete the transaction, candasuned reliably.
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Revenue is measured on the basis of the fair vallube products, goods and services sold, net of
indirect taxes (excise duties and VAT) and anyalists and rebates granted.

Foreign exchange gains or losses related to aasle teceivables and payables, denominated irgforei

currency, are recognised in the consolidated setewf comprehensive income (within profit or loss
for the year) in the period, in which they arisedaare presented net under ‘other operating
income/(losses), net'.

The gains from revaluation of investment propendyfair value are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (within profitlass for the year) on the line ‘other operating
income/(losses), net'. Revenue from investment gntypleased-out under the terms of operating lease
is also accounted for under this item of the cddated financial statements.

Upon sale on an instalment plan, revenue is resedgndn the date of sale, excluding the incorporated
interest.

Finance income is included in the consolidatedestant of comprehensive income when earned and
comprises: interest income on granted loans and t@posits, interest income on receivables under
special contracts, interest income on past duavades, income/gains from deals with investments i
available-for-sale securities including dividenad&t gains on exchange differences under loans in
foreign currency, income from debt settlement tagtisns, gain on measurement of shares at faievalu
when a subsidiary is being acquired in stages. Bheyresented separately from of finance costhen
face of the consolidated statement of compreheristame.

2.8. Expenses

Expenses are recognised in the Group when theyinatered based on the accrual and matching
concepts (to the extent that this would not leadetmgnition of an asset or liability not satistyithe
definitions for assets and liabilities in the Fravwek and IFRS themselves).

Deferred expenses are put off and recognised asntuexpenses in the period when the contracts,
whereto they refer, are performed.

Losses from revaluation of investment propertyaio ¥alue are presented in the consolidated stateme
of comprehensive income (within profit or loss fthhe year) on the line ‘other operating
income/(losses)'.

Finance costs are included in the consolidatecersetit of comprehensive income when incurred

separately from finance income and comprise: isteexpense under loans received, bank fees and
charges on loans and guarantees, net losses oangechlifferences under loans in foreign currency,

expenses/losses on deals with investments in al@ifar-sale securities, expenses on debt settlemen
transactions, loss on measurement of shares tediaie on a stepwise acquisition of a subsidiary.
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2.9. Statutory dividend for distribution

The subsidiary company Sopharma Buildings REIT ties status of a joint-stock special-purpose
investment company within the meaning of the BulgaiSpecial Purpose Investment Companies Act
(SPICA). For this reason, the company has spepdlicy for distribution of dividends to shareholder
in line with the requirements of the law, namely:

« the company is obliged by law to distribute as dkvid not less t6han 90% of the generated
profit for the respective financial year adjustedccordance with SPICA; and

« the distribution of the remaining 10% is determirsda decision of the General Meeting of
Shareholders as per the common procedure of thgaBah Commercial Act, including for
dividend payment.

The statutory dividend at an amount of not less tB@% of the generated profit is recognised as a
liability in the current year and in decrease (rmatady distribution) of the current profit for thear.

2.10. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (fixed tangible a&jsere presented in the consolidated financial
statements at revalued amount reduced by the adatadulepreciation and impairment losses in value.

Initial acquisition

Upon their initial acquisition, property, plant arduipment are valued at cost, which comprises the
purchase price, including customs duties and amgctlly attributable costs of bringing the asset to

working condition for its intended use. The dirgctittributable costs include the cost of site

preparation, initial delivery and handling coststallation costs, professional fees for peopl®lved

in the project, non-refundable taxes etc.

Property, plant and equipment of acquired subsafiaare measured at fair value at the transaction
(business combination) date which is accepted @@igition price for consolidation purposes.

Upon acquisition of property, plant and equipmerdar deferred settlement terms, the purchase isrice
equivalent to the present value of the liabilityadiunted on the basis of the interest level ofttracted
by the Group credit resources with analogous nigtarid purpose.

The carrying amounts of all items of property, pland equipment of Group companies, operating in
the environment of hyperinflationary economies,tiatly measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation, are restated for the effects of hipflation by applying a general price index — frohe
date of the transaction (acquisition) to the enthefcurrent reporting period or from the datehef kast
revaluation of the assets.

The Group has set a value threshold of BGN 50@vb&thich the acquired assets, regardless of having
the features of fixed assets, are treated as ¢wexpense at the moment of their acquisition.
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Subsequent measurement

The chosen by the Group approach for subsequerdureaent of property, plant and equipment, is the
revaluation model under IAS 16, i.e. measuremend\alued amount less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairloesgs.

It is adopted that the revaluation of property,npland equipment shall be performed by certified
appraisers normally in a period of five years. Vhime fair value changes materially in shorterqabs;i
revaluation may be performed more frequently.

Subsequent costs

Repair and maintenance costs are recognised asntw@xpenses as incurred. Subsequent expenses
incurred in relation to property, plant and equiptéaving the nature of replacement of certain
components, significant parts and aggregates oroweents and restructuring, are capitalised in the
carrying amount of the respective asset wherearegidual useful life is reviewed at the capitdl@ma

date. At the same time, the non-depreciated pattieofeplaced components is derecognised from the
carrying amount of the assets and is recognisé#tkigurrent expenses for the period of restructure.

Depreciation methods

The Group applies the straight-line depreciatiothme for property, plant and equipment. Depreciatio
of an asset begins when it is available for usedLia not depreciated. The useful life of the gop
assets is dependent on their physical wear and ttearcharacteristic features of the equipment, the
future intentions for use and the expected obsetest

The useful life per group of assets is as follows:

* buildings — 20-70 years;

road facilities — 20 years;
» machinery and equipment — 7-15 years;

installations — 7 - 10 years;
e computers — 2 - 5 years;

motor vehicles —7 - 17 years;
« furniture and fixtures — 6-7 years.

The useful life, set for any tangible fixed asseteviewed by the management of each companymwithi
the Group and respectively, by the parent companthe end of each reporting period and in case of
any material deviation from the future expectatiadstheir period of use, the latter is adjusted
prospectively.
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Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equiptnege reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrgngunt might significantly differ from their
recoverable amount. If any indications exist tin& éstimated recoverable amount of an asset ig lowe
than its carrying amount, the latter is adjustetht®recoverable amount of the asset. The recoleerab
amount of property, plant and equipment is the éigif fair value less costs to sell or the valuese.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future ftaws are discounted to their present value using
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current macketditions and assessments of the time value oegnon
and the risks, specific to the particular assefpdinment losses are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (within profitaws for the year) unless a revaluation reserge ha
been set aside for the respective asset. Themthairiment is treated as a decrease in this reserve
(through other comprehensive income) unless it ca¢sexceed its amount and the excess is included
as expense in the consolidated statement of compsete income (within profit or loss for the year).

Gains and losses on disposal (sale)

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised frmrconsolidated statement of financial position

when they are permanently disposed of and no fleaomomic benefits are expected therefrom or on
sale. The gains or losses arising from the salaroftem of 'property, plant and equipment' are
determined as the difference between the consideragceived and the carrying amount of the adset a
the date of sale. They are stated net under ‘atperating income/(losses), net’ in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (within profittass for the year). The part of the ‘revaluation

reserve’ component attributable to the sold assdirectly transferred to ‘retained earnings’ comgrat

of the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

2.11. Biological assets
Biological assets (perennial plants) are measuréravalue less the estimated costs to sell.

The fair value of biological assets is determinedtloe basis of their present location and condition
based on a price quoted in an active market or aiternative sources of current prices. Gain es lon
initial recognition of a biological asset at faalue less estimated costs to sell and changesr inalae

less estimated costs to sell is recognised indhealidated statement of comprehensive income ifwith
profit or loss for the year) in the period in whigharises and is presented in ‘other operating
income/(losses), net. When the fair value of aldgial asset cannot be reliably measured, it is
measured at cost less accumulated depreciationgaiiment losses. Subsequently, when the fair value
of this biological asset becomes reliably measeratle Group changes its approach and switches to
measuring the asset at fair value less the estihtatgts to sell.
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2.12. Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of guisition (the consideration given) over the fatue

of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assétthe acquired company at the date of acquisition
Goodwill is initially measured in the consolidati@hncial statements at cost and subsequentlcesit
less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill isanodrtised.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiasy presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position in the group of ‘intangible atsewhile goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate (entity) is incorporated in the total amoof the investment and is stated in the group of
‘investments in associates’.

The goodwill on the acquisition of associates (&) is tested as part of the total balance (ammfn
the investment. The individually recognised gootwih the acquisition of subsidiaries (entities) is
mandatory tested for impairment at least once ipear. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
subsequently reversed. Gains or losses on the(diaglgosal) of a particular subsidiary (entity) bt
Group include the carrying amount of the goodvélating to the entity sold (disposed of).

On the realisation of a particular business contliina each recognised goodwill is allocated to a
particular cash generating unit and this unit isdusor impairment testing. The allocation is made t
those cash generating units that are expectedrtefibédrom the business combination in which the
goodwill arose.

Impairment losses on goodwill are presented incihresolidated statement of comprehensive income
(within profit or loss for the year) in the itemégreciation and amortisation expense’.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated in the consolidateginfial statements at acquisition cost (cost) less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment logseslue except where they belong to companies
operating in hyperinflationary economy whose inthley assets are restated for the effects of
hyperinflation from the date of their acquisitiop &pplying the changes in the general price index t
the end of the current reporting period. Intangidsets include mainly rights on intellectual prope
and software.

The Group applies the straight-line amortisatiorthoé for the intangible assets with determinedulsef
life from 5 to 10 years.

The carrying amounts of all intangible assets (iditlg goodwill) of Group companies, operating ia th
environment of hyperinflationary economies, inljiaineasured at cost less accumulated depreciation
(impairment), are restated for the effects of hiygkation by applying a general price index — frone
date of the transaction (acquisition) to the enthefcurrent reporting period or from the datehef kast
revaluation of the assets.
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The carrying amount of the intangible assets igestibo review for impairment when events or change
in the circumstances indicate that the carrying @manight exceed their recoverable amount. Then
impairment is recognised as an amortisation expansiee consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (within profit or loss for the year).

Intangible assets are derecognised from the caladeti statement of financial position when they are
permanently disposed of and no future economicflisrae expected therefrom or on sale. The gains
or losses arising from the sale of an item of igthle assets are determined as the difference batwe

the consideration received and the carrying amofitiie asset at the date of sale. They are staed n
under ‘other operating income/(losses), net’ in tie@solidated statement of comprehensive income
(within profit or loss for the year).

2.13. Investment property

Investment property is property lastingly held by tGroup to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. They are presented in the consolidstiitement of financial position at fair value.irfida

or losses arising from a change in the fair valdeinestment property are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incomdifwijirofit or loss for the year) as ‘other opergtin
income/(losses), net’ for the period in which traise. The income gained on investment property is
presented in the same item of the consolidatedratait of comprehensive income.

Investment property is derecognised from the cadateld statement of financial position when they ar
permanently disposed of and no future economicflisrae expected therefrom or on sale. The gains
or losses arising from the sale of an item of itwent property are determined as the difference
between the disposal proceeds and the carrying minmfuthe asset at the date of sale. They are
presented under ‘other operating income/(losses),im the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (within profit or loss for the year).

Transfers to, or from, the group of ‘investmentgaendy’ is made only when there is a change in the
functional designation and the use of a particyli@perty. In case of a transfer from ‘investment
property’ to ‘owner-occupied property’, the assetdcognised in the new group at deemed cost, which
is its fair value at the date of transfer. To thmpasite, in case of a transfer from ‘owner-occupied
property’ to ‘investment property’ the asset is swead at fair value at the date of transfer while t
difference to its carrying amount is presented asomponent of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (within other comprehensigerite) and within ‘revaluation reserve — property,
plant and equipment’ in the statement of changesgyuity.

2.14. Investments in associates

The long-term investments representing sharessocéstes are presented in the consolidated finlancia
statements under the equity method — value thatdaes the acquisition price being the fair valuehef

31
This is a translation from Bulgarian of the consglalied financial statements of Sopharma Group far 2612.



SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

consideration paid, including the direct costs mvestment acquisition adjusted by investor's sbére
profits or losses and respectively the other reseof the associate after the date of its acquiisiti

The share of profits and losses after the datequdiaition of an associate is presented on a steplma

in the consolidated statement of comprehensiveniec@within profit or loss for the year) while the
share of other components of comprehensive inconmm -the respective line of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (within otherpretmensive income) and as a separate movement
of the individual components of reserves in thesolidated statement of changes in equity.

The investments in associates held by the Grouptheg with the included goodwill are subject to
review for impairment at the date of the financgtdtements. Where conditions for impairment are
identified and its amount is determined, the impaint is included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (within profit or loss for §ear) in the item ‘gains/(losses) from associates’
(Note 2.33).

In purchases and sales of investments in assodiateslate of trading (conclusion of the deal) is
applied.

Investments in associates are derecognised wheigttie related thereto are transferred to thindigs
as a result of occurrence of legal rights for tivad thus the control over the economic benefits ftioe
investments are being lost. The income from thedie & presented in ‘gains/(losses) from associafes
the consolidated statement of comprehensive ind@ritlein profit or loss for the year).

2.15. Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments (financial asset®) rmon-derivative financial assets representingesha
in the capital of other companies (minority intéyes

Initial measurement

Available-for-sale investments (financial assets) iaitially recognised at cost, being the fairualof
the consideration given including the direct exgsnassociated with the investment (financial asset)
acquisition (Note 2.27).

Subsequent measurement
The available-for-sale investments (financial agde¢ld by the Group and representing:

(a) shares in foreign public companies, traded in aksexchange market, assessed as an active
one, are subsequently measured at fair value cotyrdetermined based on 'average prices' of
realised transactions for the last month of the yedirect stock-exchange prices — Level 1;

(b) shares in Bulgarian public companies traded inBhigarian stock-exchange market, which at
this stage cannot be assessed as an active onto dhe exceptionally limited volume of
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transactions and representativeness as well asdbeomic situation in the country, are
subsequently measured at fair value as follows:

— for minority investments within the range of 0.0l1t%% 10% interest in the respective
company capital — by applying adjusted stock-exgbaprices — Level 2, calculated under
the market comparables (analogues) method as fireagsackages held by the Company
are of small volume and can be realised in thekstachange market;

— for minority investments within the range of 10.018619.99% interest in the respective
company capital —by applying a combined approaett ifcludes valuation methods of
Level 2 — market comparables (analogues) methodLandl 3 — discounted cash flow
method. Priority weight is given to Level 3 valwatiresults as far as these packages are
being held for strategic long-term business purpag¢he Group; and

(c) shares in other closed-end companies (minorityréste which are not traded in a stock-
exchange market and no market price quotationsnaiable for them while the assumptions
for the application of alternative valuation meth@de related to high uncertainty in respect of
achieving a reliable fair value determination, measured and presented at cost (Note 2.27).

The subsequent measurement to fair value is peefbrmith the professional assistance of an
independent certified appraiser.

The effects of subsequent revaluation of secutitidair value are presented in a separate comparfien
the consolidated statement of comprehensive inc@within other comprehensive income) and
recognised in the consolidated statement of congmstie income (within profit or loss for the yean)
disposal (sale) of the respective investment bgdstated as ‘finance income’ or ‘finance costs’.

Dividend income related with long-term investmef(fisancial assets) representing shares in other
companies (minority interest) is recognised as emiriincome and presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (within profitogs for the year) within the item ‘finance income

When shares are written-off due to sale, the Compees the method of weighted average price
determined at the end of the month in which wriieisomade.

Any purchase or sale of available-for-sale investiméfinancial assets) is recognised on the trade, d
i.e. the date that the Group commits to purchaselbthe asset.

The available-for-sale investments (financial agsate reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and if conditions for permanent impairment are fiiiend, the latter is recognised in the consolidate
statement of comprehensive income (within profilosss for the year) under ‘finance costs'.

Where conditions for impairment are identified, thter is determined as the difference between the
carrying amount and the recoverable value of thvestment and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (within profitaws for the year) unless a positive reserveHhisr t
investment was formed in prior periods — then thpdirment is at first covered at the account of thi
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reserve and is presented net in the consolidaieénsent of comprehensive income (within other
comprehensive income).

2.16. Assets held for sale

Assets (and disposal groups) are classified asfbeldale if the intents and the expectations het t
their carrying amounts will be recovered principalhrough a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use in the operations of the Group.

Assets (and disposal groups) classified in thisigrare available for immediate sale in their presen
condition. The Group management is committed téoper a sale transaction within one year from the
date of assets classification in this group andh sade is highly probable.

In case of engagement with a plan for sale thdtdes loss of control over a subsidiary, the Group
classifies all consolidated assets and liabilitiEthe subsidiary as held for sale regardless atindr it
will keep non-controlling interest in its formertmidiary after the sale.

Assets (and disposal groups) classified as helddta are presented in the consolidated statenfient o
financial position separately and are measuredhat lower of their carrying amount (initially,
acquisition cost) and their fair value less thetzds sell (net selling price). Any impairment ldass
allocated on a pro rata basis between those askatslisposal group, which are within the scope of
IFRS 5.

When assets belonging to the groups 'propertyt piash equipment' and 'intangible assets' are @ikedsi
as 'non-current assets held for sale' their degtienfamortisation is ceased for the time when tey
included in this group.

2.17. Inventories

Inventories are measured in the consolidated fiahstatements at the lower of acquisition coss{go
including restated for the subsidiaries operatimghie environment of hyperinflationary economy for
the changes in the general price index from thestetion date to the date of the statement of giiahn
position, and the net realisable value.

Expenses, incurred at bringing certain productda@urrent condition and location, are includedhia
acquisition cost (cost) as follows:

* raw materials, materials in finished form and goeds! delivery costs, including the purchase
price, import customs duties and charges, tranafant expenses, non-refundable taxes and
other expenses, incurred for rendering the masesiatl goods ready for usage/sale;

» finished products and work in progress — cost tdaimaterials and labour and the attributable
proportion of the manufacturing overheads, basedarmal operating capacity of production
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facilities, but excluding administrative expenses;hange rate gains and losses and borrowing
costs.

The inclusion of fixed production overheads in tlst of finished and semi-finished products is Hase
on normal production capacity.

They are allocated to finished products on thefuihg bases chosen by the Group:
» for production of medicinal products — direct labealued on the basis of labour norms;
- for production of infusion solutions — quantityrofinufactured finished products.

On use (sale) of materials and finished produaswbighted average cost method is applied while on
sale of goods — the first-in first-out (FIFO) metho

The net realisable value represents the estimatlidgs price of an asset in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated cost of completionttendstimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.18. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised in the consotidatancial statements and carried at fair valuselda

on the original invoice amount (cost) less anywdnce for uncollectable debts. In case of payments
deferred over a period exceeding the common ctedits, where no additional interest payment has
been envisaged or the interest considerably diffessn the common market interest rates, the
receivables are initially valued at their fair valand subsequently — at amortised cost, after deaduc
the interest incorporated in their nominal value aletermined following the effective interest rate
method (Note 2.27).

An estimate of allowances for doubtful and bad siébtmade when significant uncertainty exists as to
the collection of the full amount or a part ofBiad debts are written-off when the legal groundagHes

are available. Writing-off is against the formedoafance and/or as expense in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive incomer (within prafitoss for the year).

2.19. Interest-bearing loans and other financialgeurces granted

All loans and other financial resources grantedigitilly recognised at cost (nominal amount), gvhi

is accepted to be the fair value of the considemateceived on the transaction, net of the dirests
related to these loans and granted resources. thiteinitial recognition, the interest-bearing lsand
other granted resources are subsequently measurgdpesented in the consolidated financial
statements at amortised cost by applying the éffeatterest rate method. Amortised cost is catedla

by taking into account all types of charges, consiniss, and other costs, associated with these.loans
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidgsésment of comprehensive income (within prafit o
loss for the year) as 'finance income' (interestjimance costs' throughout the amortisation mkrar
when the receivables are settled, derecognisesdorced.
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Interest-bearing loans and other financial resaugranted are classified as current ones unlesisf¢an
the relevant portion thereof) the Group has und@dilly the right to settle its obligation withaterm
of more than 12 months after the end of the repgperiod (Note 2.27).

2.20. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash in hand and with current acsadnile cash equivalents include short-term deposit
with banks, the amounts there being freely availdtt the companies of the Group in accordance with
the agreements with the banks in the course ofi¢p®sit regardless of the original term (maturitfy)
the respective deposit (Note 2.27).

For the purposes of the consolidated statemerasif lows:

» cash proceeds from customers and cash paid toisippre presented at gross amount,
including value added tax (20%);

e interest on investment purpose loans receivedgerted as payments for financial activities
while the interest on loans related to currentvii@s (working capital) is included in the
operating activities;

« short-term blocked funds (for up to 3 months) aeated as cash and cash equivalents. Long-
term blocked funds (for more than 3 months) are inoluded as cash in the consolidated
statement of cash flows but are stated as ‘ottergads/(payments), net’;

« interest received from short-term bank depositmdétuded in the composition of cash flows
from investing activities;

* VAT paid on fixed assets purchased from foreignptieps is presented on the line ‘taxes paid’
while that paid on assets purchased from local lmrsps presented as ‘cash paid to suppliers’
in the cash flows from operating activities asdarit represents a part of the operating flows of
the Group companies and is recovered therewithamdspective period (month).

2.21. Trade and other payables

Trade and other current amounts payable are cawgidte consolidated financial statements at oaigin
invoice amount (acquisition cost), which is the failue of the consideration to be paid in the feitior
goods and services received. In case of paymefasreled over a period exceeding the common credit
terms, where no additional interest payment has bagisaged or the interest considerably diffepsfr
the common market interest rates, the payablemitialy valued at their fair value and subseqiert

at amortised cost, after deducting the interesbripmrated in their nominal value and determined
following the effective interest rate method (N&t&7).
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2.22. Interest-bearing loans and other borrowings

All loans and other borrowings are initially rectggd in the consolidated financial statements at co
(nominal amount), which is accepted to be the failue of the consideration received on the
transaction, netted of the direct costs relatettidse loans and borrowings. After the initial reatign,

the interest-bearing loans and other borrowings @adesequently measured and presented in the
consolidated financial statements at amortised lopstpplying the effective interest rate methode Th
amortised cost is calculated by taking into accalhtypes of charges, commissions and other costs,
including any discount or premium on settlementeisded with these loans. Gains and losses are
recognised in the consolidated statement of congmstre income (within profit or loss for the yeas)
finance income or costs (interest) throughout theoréisation period, or when the liabilities are
derecognised or reduced (Note 2.27).

Interest-bearing loans and other borrowings arssiflad as current ones unless (and for the retevan
portion thereof) the Group has unconditionally thght to settle its obligation within a term of neor
than 12 months after the end of the reporting perio

2.23. Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable twe tacquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the obghat asset. A qualifying assets is an adsat t
necessarily takes a period of at least 12 montigetoeady for its intended use or sale.

The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capgation to the value of a qualifying asset is detegioh

by applying a capitalisation rate. The capitalmatiate is the weighted average of the borrowirgjsco
applicable to the borrowings that are outstandinging the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualify asset.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part & tost of a qualifying asset commences when the
following conditions are met: expenditures for #eset are being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to pesihe asset for its intended use or sale areogress.

Borrowing costs are also reduced by any investrireadme earned on the temporary investment of
those borrowed funds.

2.24. Leases
Finance lease
Lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group a antiat part of all risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the leased property, plant and equiprere recognised as assets in the statement of
financial position of the lessee and are preseatddased item of property, plant and equipmethtedt
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immediate sale price or, if lower, at the presealu® of the minimum lease payments. The lease
payments are apportioned between the finance iretgst) and the attributable portion (reductioh)
the lease liability (principal) so as to achieveamsistent interest rate on the remaining outstendi
principal balance of the lease liability. Interestpense is included in the consolidated statemént o
comprehensive income (within profit or loss for thear) as finance costs (interest) based on the
effective interest rate (Note 2.27).

Assets acquired under finance lease are depre@atétke basis of their useful economic life anchimit
the lease term.

Lessor

Finance lease where a substantial portion of aksriand rewards incidental to the ownership of the
leased asset is transferred outside the Groupiitiemoff from the goods of the lessor and is preed

in the statement of financial position as a reddiwat an amount equal to the net investment in the
lease. The net investment in the lease agreemprasents the difference between the total amount of
minimum lease payments under the finance leaseciagmet and the non-guaranteed residual value,
accrued for the lessor and the non-earned finaramie. The difference between the carrying amount
of the leased asset and the immediate (fair s¢hialyie is recognised in the consolidated staternent
comprehensive income (within profit or loss for §ear) in the beginning of the lease term (when the
asset is delivered) as sales income.

The recognition of the earned finance income aseatiinterest income is based on the application of
the effective interest rate method.

Operating lease
Lessee

Leases where the lessor keeps a substantial paft déks and economic benefits incidental to the
ownership of the specific asset are classifiedpgsating leases. Therefore, the asset is not iadlual
the statement of financial position of the lessee.

Operating lease payments are recognised as expienges consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (within profit or loss for the year) on sagght-line basis over the lease term.

Lessor

Lessor continues to hold a significant part ofradks and rewards of ownership over the said asset.
Therefore the asset is still included in the contpms of property, plant and equipment while its
depreciation for the period is included in the eatrexpenses of the lessor.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised etraight-line basis over the lease term. Iitia
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arrangingperating lease are added to the carrying anadunt
the leased asset and recognised on a straightdisie over the lease term.
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2.25. Pensions and other payables to personnel uride social security and labour legislation

The employment and social security relations witirkers and employees of the Group are based on
the Labour Code and the provisions of the effecteeial security legislation for the companies
operating inBulgaria, the Polish Code — for the companiedPwland the employment legislation and
the Collective Labour Agreement — for the companyUkraine the employment legislation, the
General Collective Labour Agreement and the effeckmployment Rules and Regulations — for the
company inSerbig the Labour Act — for the company limtvia, the employment legislation — for the
company irBelarusand the Labour Code of the Russian Federatiom théocompany iRussia

For Bulgaria

The major duty of companies-employers in Bulgasatd make the mandatory social security
contributions for the hired employees to the PersiBund, the Supplementary Mandatory Pension
Security (SMPS) Fund, to the General Diseases aatéiidity (GDM) Fund, the Unemployment Fund,
the Labour Accident and Professional Diseases (DARIhd, the Guaranteed Receivables of Workers
and Employees (GRWE) Fund and for health insurance.

The rates of the social security and health inmeaontributions are defined under the Law on the
Budget of State Social Security and the Law onBhdget of National Health Insurance Fund for the
respective year. The contributions are split betwtbe employer and employee in line with ruleshef t
Social Security Code (SSC).

The social security and pension plans, applied H®y Group in its capacity of employer for the
companies in Bulgaria, are based on the Bulgadgislation and are defined contributions plans. snd
these plans, the employer pays defined monthlyritmions to the government funds as follows:
Pensions Fund, GDM Fund, Unemployment Fund, LAPBdr=and GRWE Fund as well as to universal
and professional pension funds — on the basiste§ riixed by law, and has no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions if the fusndo not hold sufficient assets to pay the respecti
individuals the benefits they have worked-out awer period of their service. The obligations refegr

to health insurance are analogous.

For companies abroad

The rates of the social security contributions @haRd are approved by the Law on the National $ocia
Security System, in Russia — the Federal Law onigatibns for Pension Security in the Russian
Federation and the Tax Code, in Ukraine — Law amsfé@ Provision, in Serbia — the Law on Labour in
the Republic of Serbia, in Latvia — the Law on @b&ecurity, and in Belarus — the Law on the
Mandatory Contributions to the Fund for Social Si#gwf the Population of the Ministry of Labour
and Social Security. The social security contrifmsi are being apportioned between employer and
employee at ratios regulated by the relevant lizoas.

There is no established and functioning privateintary social security scheme at the Group.
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Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefits in the form of rematiens, bonuses and social payments and benefits
(payable within 12 months after the end of thequbwhen the employees have rendered the service or
has met the required terms and requirements) aogmésed as an expense in the consolidated statemen
of comprehensive income (within profit or loss the year) in the period when the service there@n ha
been rendered or the requirements for their red&ge been met and as a current liability (less any
amounts already paid and deductions due) at tingliscounted amount. The payables of the Group for
social security and health insurance are recognegda current expense and liability at their
undiscounted amount together with the respectiveefits they relate to and within the period of thei
accrual.

At each date of consolidated balance sheet, thepanims of the Group measure the estimated costs on
the accumulating compensated absences, which ariserpected to be paid as a result of the unused
entittement. The measurement includes the estinetpdnses on the employee’s remuneration and the
statutory social security and health insurancerdmrttons due by the employer thereon.

Tantieme

In accordance with the Articles of Association o fparent company and the Articles of Associatibn o
the subsidiary Sopharma Trading AD, the Executiyre@ors of the respective companies are entitled
to one-off payment (tantieme) at the amount of 1%he respective company net profit as well as to
distribution of up to 2% of the respective comparet profit between the members of the higher
managing personnel upon their own discretion anthawith the individual contribution thereof — in
case of reported positive financial result for theest financial year and subject to a decision ef th
General Meeting of Shareholders of the respectivepany.

Long-term retirement benefits

In accordance with the requirements of the Labaagte; the employer of the companieBungaria is
obliged to pay to its personnel upon retiremeningiemnity, which depending on the length of service
at the entity varies between two and six gross hiprgalaries as at the termination date of the
employment. In accordance with the Law on Labougénbig the employer of the Serbian company is
obliged to pay to its personnel on coming of agerédirement an indemnity at the amount of at least
three average salaries calculated at the timefpeat. In accordance with the employment legistatio
in Ukraine and the Collective labour Agreement of the Uk@incompany, the employer is obliged to
pay to its personnel on coming of age for retirelamindemnity, which depending on the length of
service with the entity may vary between UAH 10@ &mMH 200 (between BGN 25 and BGN 50).
Also, the company in Ukraine accrues social indéiesiwhich are paid after retirement of employees
due to specific labour conditions. According to #raployment legislation in Poland, the employer is
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obliged to pay upon retirement one gross monthlgrgaAccording to the employment legislation,
there are no obligations to the personnel on retrd in Latvia and Belarus.

In their nature these are defined benefit plans.

The calculation of the amount of these liabilittexessitates the participation of qualified acesin
order to determine their present value at the dathe financial statements, at which they areuidet

in the consolidated statement of financial posijtiadjusted with the amount of the unrecognised
actuarial gains and losses, and respectively, hhage in their value including the recognised aaba
gains and losses is included in the consolidataterstent of comprehensive income (within profit or
loss for the year).

Past service costs are recognised immediatelydrctimsolidated statement of comprehensive income
(within profit or loss for the year).

At the date of issue of the consolidated finansiatements, the companies of the Group assigriieérti
actuaries who provide their report with calculatioregarding the long-term retirement benefit
obligations. For this purpose, they apply the Ritejg Unit Credit Method. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by disdmm the estimated future cash flows, which are
expected to be paid within the maturity of thisigélion, and using the interest rates of long-term
government bonds in the respective countries irthwttie companies of the Group operate.

Actuarial gains and losses arise from changesdratiiuarial assumptions and experience adjustments.
Those exceeding the 10% corridor of the presentevaf the defined benefit obligations as at the@nd
the year are recognised immediately in the conatdii statement of comprehensive income (within
profit or loss for the year) for the period in whithey arise.

The changes in the amount of Group’s liabilitiepéosonnel for indemnities upon retirement, inahgdi
the interest from unwinding of the present valug dime recognised actuarial gains or losses, are
recognised as employee benefits expense in theoladeied statement of comprehensive income
(within profit or loss for the year).

Termination benefits

In accordance with the local provisions of the esgpient and social security regulations of the Group
companies, the employer is obliged, upon terminatibthe employment contracts prior to retirement,
to pay certain types of indemnities.

The Group recognises employee benefit obligatiomsemployment termination before the normal
retirement date when it is demonstrably committedsed on announced plan, to terminating the
employment contract with the respective individuaithout possibility of withdrawal or in case of
formal issuance of documents for voluntary reduglamermination benefits due more than 12 months
are discounted and presented in the consolidaa¢ehsent of financial position at their present ealu
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2.26. Share capital and reserves

SOPHARMA AD (the parent company) is a joint-stoakmpany and is obliged to register with the
Commercial Register a specifiasthare capital which should serve as a security for the cresdlifor
execution of their receivables. The shareholdezdiable for the obligations of the Company uphe t
amount of the share of the capital held by eacthef and may claim refunding of this share only in
case of liquidation or bankruptcy proceedings. Plaeent company reports its share capital at the
nominal value of the shares registered in the court

According to the requirements of the Commercial Aot the Articles of Association, the parent
company is obliged to set asid®aserve Fundstatutory reserved)y using the following sources:

« at least one tenth of the profit, which should becated to the Fund until its amount reaches
one tenth of the share capital or any larger amasimbay be decided by the General Meeting of
Shareholders;

* any premium received in excess of the nominal vafughares upon their issue (share premium
reserve);

« other sources as provided for by a decision ofabheeral Meeting.

The amounts in the Fund can only be used to covaral loss or losses from previous years. When the
amount of the Fund reaches the minimum value dpddif the Articles of Association, the excess may
be used for increasing share capital.

The treasury sharesare presented in the consolidated statement aindial position at cost and
Group’s equity is decreased by their gross purchése. Gains or losses on sales of treasury slaaees
carried directly to Group’s equity in the ‘retainedrnings’ component.

Revaluation reserve — property, plant and equipmenset aside from:

« the revaluation surplus between the carrying amotiptoperty, plant and equipment and their
fair values at the revaluation date;

« the positive difference between the carrying amaooinproperty stated as owner-occupied
property and their fair value at the date when treytransferred to investment property.

Deferred tax effect on the revaluation reserverisctly carried at the account of this reserve.

Revaluation reserve is transferred to accumulateditp when the assets are derecognised from the
consolidated statement of financial position of @reup or are fully depreciated.

The revaluation reserve covers the impairment efaksets to which it relates. It may be used in the
implementation of Group's dividend and capital gieé only after it is transferred to the 'retained
earnings' component.
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Available-for-sale financial assets reseri® being set aside from the difference betweenctreying
amount of the available-for-sale financial assetstheir fair values at the revaluation date. Tagerve

is transferred to current profit and loss in thasmidated statement of comprehensive income (withi
profit or loss for the year) when the financial etssare disposed of (sold) by the Group and/or on
identified permanent impairment of particular fioah assets.

The Translation of foreign operations reseniacludes the effects of restating the financiatesnents of
the companies abroad from local currency to theegmation currency of the Group. This reserve is
recognised as a separate component of equity indhsolidated statement of financial position aad a
part of the profit or loss in the consolidated esta¢nt of comprehensive income on the line
‘gains/(losses) on acquisition and disposal of glidases, net’ on disposal (sale) of a foreign @ien
(company) (Note 2.5).

2.27. Financial instruments
2.27.1. Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in tHiefdng categories: loans and receivables and albks}
for-sale assets. The classification depends ondah&e and purpose (designation) of the financstts

at the date of their acquisition. The managemenhefparent company together with the management
of the respective subsidiary determine the clasdifin of the financial assets for the purposethef
Group at the date of their initial recognition ietstatement of financial position.

The Group companies usually recognise their firdrassets in the statement of financial positian o
the trade date, being the date on which they conmmjiurchase the respective financial assets. All
financial assets are initially measured at theirvalue plus the directly attributable transactomsts.

Financial assets are derecognised from the Grargisolidated statement of financial position when
the rights to receive cash from these assets hepieed or have been transferred, and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewarflswnership of the asset to another entity (p@rso
external thereto. If the Group retains substantalll risks and rewards associated with the ownprah

a particular transferred financial asset, it cam#to recognise the transferred asset in its tidased
statement of financial position but also recogniaesecured liability (a loan) for the consideration
received.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivablese non-derivative financial assets with fixed etedminable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are measurddei consolidated statement of financial positibn
their amortised cost using the effective interesthod less any allowance for impairment. Thesetasse
are included in the group of current assets whempamaturity within 12 months or within a common
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operating cycle of the respective Group companyemtie remaining ones are carried as non-current
assets.

This group of financial assets includes: loans g@ntrade receivables, other receivables from
counterparts and third parties, cash and cash &lquits from the consolidated statement of financial
position (Notes 2.18, 2.19 and 2.20). Interestime®n loans and receivables is recognised by agplyi
the effective interest rate except for short-tereceivables (less than three months) where the
recognition of such interest would be unjustifiabeimmaterial and within the common credit tertns.

is presented in the consolidated statement of celhgmsive income (within profit or loss for the year
under the item ‘finance income’.

At the date of each statement of financial posijtitre Group companies assess whether events and
circumstances have occurred that indicate the emndst of objective evidence necessitating loans and
receivables to be impaired (Note 2.33).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those nerivdtive assets that are either acquired for thpgse

of being sold or are not classified in any othdegary. For the Group, these are usually sharagj$o
or interest in other (third) companies, acquiredifi;estment purposes (available-for-sale invests)en
and are included within non-current assets, exatygre a Group company intends to sell them in the
following 12 months and is actively searching fdruger (Note 2.15).

Available-for-sale financial assets are initiallgcognised at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration given including acquisition costsasged with the investment.

The available-for-sale financial assets are sulm@tyjumeasured at fair value except for the shiares
closed-end companies not traded in a stock-exchaagket (Note 2.15).

The effects, gains or losses, of revaluation to fa@lue of the available-for-sale investments are
included in the consolidated statement of comprsiverincome (within other comprehensive income)
under the item ‘net change in fair value of avdddor-sale financial assets’ and are accrued to a
separate equity component — ‘available-for-salerfaial assets reserve’.

Where subsequent permanent impairment is identifiezh sale of an available-for-sale investmerd, th
amount of impairment and all previously accumuldteses (net) to the reserve are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incoménifwitrofit or loss for the year) as ‘finance costs’
Analogously, on each sale of investment of thigtythe unrealised gains accumulated in the reseeve
recognised in the consolidated statement of congmsatie income (within profit or loss for the yeas)
‘finance income'.

The recycling of accumulated effects from changthénfair value of available-for-sale investments a
presented with other comprehensive income (in ¢heinge in fair value of available-for-sale finahcia
assets’), net of those resulting from new revatunetifor the period.
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Dividends on shares, classified as available-fte-8aancial assets, are recognised in the coreseli
statement of comprehensive income (within profilass for the year) when the company’s right to
receive the dividends is established.

The available-for-sale investments are reviewedaah date of the statement of financial positian fo

events or circumstances indicating the existencebgdctive evidence for impairment of a particular

financial asset or group of assets. Financial asa®t impaired if their carrying amount is higheart

the expected recoverable amount. The recognisediiment loss is equal to the difference between the
acquisition cost less the repayments and theirvezable amount, which is accepted to be equaldo th
present value of the expected future cash flows;adinted at the current interest rate or through th

yield for similar financial assets.

2.27.2. Financial liabilities and equity instrumest

The Group classifies debt and equity instrumeriteeis financial liabilities or as equity in actance
with the substance of the contractual arrangemeitts the respective counterparty regarding these
instruments.

Financial liabilities

The financial liabilities of the Group include l@and payables to suppliers and other counterparts.
They are initially recognised in the consolidatéateament of financial position at fair value nettioé
directly attributable transaction costs and aressgbently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method (Note 2.21, 2.22 and2.24

2.28. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has amrebligation (legal or constructive) as a restih

past event and it is probable that an outflow ebteces will be required to settle (repay) thegatilon.

The provisions are valued based on the best estiofahe respective company management and the
Group at the date of the consolidated statemefihafficial position of the expenses necessary tteset
the respective obligation. The estimate is discedirif the obligation is long-term. When part the
resources required to settle the obligation areebgul to be recovered from a third party, the retbme
company of the Group recognises a receivable i$ ivirtually certain that reimbursement will be
received, its amount can be reliably measured magwhie (credit) is recognised in the same item ef th
consolidated statement of comprehensive incoménifwjirofit or loss for the year) where the provisio
itself is presented (Note 2.33).
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2.29. Income taxes

Current income taxeef the Bulgarian companies of the Group are detexchin accordance with the
requirements of the Bulgarian tax legislation — tBerporate Income Taxation Act (CITA). The
nominal income tax rate in Bulgaria for year 201&5v0 % (2011: 10%).

The subsidiaries, joint ventures and associatesadbare charged in accordance with the requirements
of the respective local tax regulations by applyimg following tax rates:

Subsidiary company Country Tax rate

2012 2011
Rostbalkanpharm ZAO Russia 20% 20%
Sopharma Poland OOD - in liquidation Poland 19% 19%
Sopharma Warsaw EOOD Poland 19% 19%
Sopharma Ukraine EOOD Ukraine 21% 23%
PAO Vitamini Ukraine 21% 23%
Ivanchich and Sinovi OOD Serbia 10% 10%
Extab Corporation USA 15.35% 15.35%
Extab Pharma Limited United Kingdom 24% 26%
Briz OOD Latvia 15% 15%
Tabina OO0 Belarus 18% 24%
ZAO Interpharm Belarus 18% 24%
Brititrade SOOO Belarus 18% 24%
Brizpharm SOOO Belarus 18% 24%

Joint venture

Sopharma Zdrovit AD — in liquidation Poland 19% 19%
Vivaton Plus OO0 Belarus 18% 24%
Associatr

Vestpharm ODO Belarus 18% 24%
Alean ODO Belarus 18% 24%

Deferred income taxeare determined using the liability method on afthporary differences of each
consolidated company existing at the consolidatedntial statements date, between the carrying
amounts of the assets and liabilities and theibses, including for those arising from consoiaat
adjustments.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for allahle temporary differences, with the exceptionhoke
originating from recognition of an asset or lidyiliwhich has not affected the accounting and the
taxable profit/(loss) as at the date of the tratisac

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all dedactémporary differences and the carry-forward of
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is prabday will reverse and a taxable profit will beadable
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or taxable temporary differences might occur, agfaivhich these deductible temporary differences can
be utilized, with the exception of the differencssing from the initial recognition of an asset or

liability, which has affected neither the accougtinor taxable profit or loss as at the date of the
transaction.

The carrying amount of all deferred tax assetgvw&emwed at each balance sheet date and reduckd to t
extent that it is no longer probable that they weNerse and sufficient taxable profit to be geteetar
occurring in the same period taxable temporariediffices to allow the deferred tax asset to beeili
(deducted or compensated).

Deferred taxes, related to items that are accounteas other components of comprehensive income or
other item in the consolidated statement of finalngosition, are also reported directly in the exdjye
component or item.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measureddan tax rates, which are expected to be apfared
the period when the assets are expected to beadalnd the liabilities — settled (repaid) on thsidb of

the tax laws that are effective or likely to beeeffve, and at tax rates of the country under the
jurisdiction of which the respective deferred assdiability is expected to be realised.

As at 31 December 2012, the deferred income takdélseoGroup companies are assessed at the rate
valid for 2013, which for the Bulgarian companieslD% while for the subsidiaries, joint ventured an
associates abroad the respective rate is as follows

Tax rate
Subsidiary company Country 2013
Sopharma Poland OOD - in liquidation Poland 19%
Sopharma Warsaw EOOD Poland 19%
Sopharma Ukraine EOOD Ukraine 19%
PAO Vitamini Ukraine 19%
Ivanchich and Sinovi OOD Serbia 15%
Extab Corporation USA 15.35%
Extab Pharma Limited United Kingdom 23%
Briz OOD Latvia 15%
Tabina OO0 Belarus 18%
ZAO Interpharm Belarus 18%
Brititrade SOOO Belarus 18%
Brizpharm SOOO Belarus 18%
Joint venture
Sopharma Zdrovit AD — in liquidation Poland 19%
Vivaton Plus OO0 Belarus 18%
Assoiate
Vestpharm ODO Belarus 18%
Alean ODO Belarus 18%

a7
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Deferred tax assets of a Group company are prabemieagainst the deferred tax liabilities of this
company when it is the tax payer in the respedtwvisdiction, and this is only in cases where the
company is legally entitled to perform or receivat payments of current tax liabilities or incomg ta

receivables.

2.30. Grant from public institutions

A grant from public institutions is initially recagsed as deferred income (financing) when there is
reasonable assurance that it will be received ey&foup and that the latter has complied and cespli
with the associated thereto requirements.

A grant from public institutions that compensates Company for expenses incurred is recognised in
current profit or loss on a systematic basis insime period in which the expenses are recognised.

A grant from public institutions that compensategestment expenses incurred to acquire an asset is
recognised in current profit or loss on a systetnbtisis over the useful life of the asset usually
proportionately to the amount of the recognisedel@ption charge.

2.31. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividieigprofit or loss attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent company by the weighted aeermimber of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period.

The weighted average number of ordinary sharestamdig during the period is the number of
ordinary shares outstanding during at the beginointpe period, adjusted by the number of ordinary
shares bought back or issued during the periodiplial by a time-weighting factor. This factor
represents the number of days that the sharesutstauading as a proportion of the total numberayfsd

in the period.

In case of a capitalization, additional issue dit,sfine number of the outstanding ordinary shaest
the date of such event, is adjusted as to reftextproportional change in the number of outstanding
ordinary shares as if the event has occurred ibéiginning of the earliest presented period.

Diluted earnings per share are not calculated lsecao dilutive potential ordinary shares have been
issued within the Group.

2.32. Segment reporting

The Group identifies its reporting segments andloées segment information in accordance with the
organisational and reporting structure used by tfamagement of the parent company for current
general monitoring and management of the Grouptarmbmponents. Operating segments are business
components, which are regularly measured by thenkeybers of the management who take operating
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decisions by using financial and operating infolioratprepared specifically for the segment for the
purposes of current monitoring and assessmentrédrpgance and allocating Group’s resources.

Group’s operating segments are currently monitamedi directed separately as each of them represents
a separate business area that bears various lslesand rewards. The operating segments byhwhic
the Group’s management monitors, measures andotetite risks and returns thereof are identified in
line with the main business activities performethvgharmaceuticals, namely: production and trade.

Information by operating segments

The Group uses one measuring unit — gross margafitjpfor measuring the results in the operating
segments and allocation of resources between theisi.defined as the difference between segment
revenue and segment expenses directly attributaltlee respective segment.

Segment assets, liabilities, respective revenugereses and results include those that are andecan b
directly attributable to the respective segmenwal as such that can be allocated on a reasobabis,
including inter-segment ones. Usually, these akefdr revenue — sales of finished products andigpo
(b) for expenses - raw materials and consumabled, Wepreciation and amortisation and production
staff remuneration, carrying amount of goods séj; for assets — property, plant and equipment,
inventories, receivables from related parties, @reeceivables; (d) for liabilities — current payesblo
personnel and for social security, payables tdedlparties and trade payables.

Capital expenses (investments) by business segraentdifferentiated expenses incurred in the period
of acquisition or construction of segment non-cotrr@ssets, which are expected to be used for more
than one period.

The Group manages its investments in securitiedainetrade accounts and financial resources
granted/received as well as taxes at Group andaepeompany level but they are not allocated at
segment level.

The results of the operations regarded as accidents compared to the main types of operations
(activities) of the Group as well as revenue, espen liabilities and assets that are not subject to
allocation are stated separately in the item '@t&roup level'. In general, these amounts inclotieer
operating income unless originating from the openatf a particular segment, administrative expsnse
interest income and expenses, realised and uredalimins and losses from foreign currency
transactions and investments, investments in atberpanies, other receivables, loans received, tax
accounts, general-purpose production and admitiigraquipment.

Intersegmental transfers: segment revenue, segmgense and segment results include internal
transfers between business segments. These tsaséestated at competitive market prices charged t
non-related clients for similar goods and are elated at consolidated financial statements level.

The investments in associates recorded under thayeaethod are excluded from the assets by
segment and the revenue by segment. They are pedses part of unallocated assets and the income
therefrom is presented in ‘gains/(losses) fromssveiate, net'.
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The applied accounting policy for segment reportingoased on that used by the Group for the
preparation of its statutory financial statementsplublic purposes.

In addition, the Group discloses information regagdmportant clients when the amount of achieved
revenue from a client exceeds 10% of the total arnofi consolidated revenue earned from Group's
operations.

2.33. Critical accounting judgments on applying tl&roup’s accounting policies. Key estimates and
assumptions of high uncertainty.

2.33.1. Revaluation of property, plant and equipnien

The initial revaluation of property, plant and gmuent of the parent company was made as at 1 Januar
2002 on the transition of the parent company toSfER a statutory financial reporting frameworkyfear
2003.

Initial valuation of property, plant and equipmemt fair value for the purposes of the first-time
consolidation of the respective subsidiaries uHB&S was made by certified appraisers by applying
the same methods as described below by groupsetsaat the following dates:

e property, plant and equipment of subsidiaries aeguafter 1 January 2004 (date of the first-
time preparation of consolidated financial statetmesf the Group under IFRS) — at the
respective dates of acquisition;

* property, plant and equipment of subsidiaries aeglubefore 1 January 2004 — at that date.

As at 31 December 2011, the Company performed arativeview and assessment for price changes
of property, plant and equipment with the assisasfacertified appraisers:

The following approaches and valuation methods wesetl in the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment to measure the fair value of the diffetgmes (groups) of tangible fixed assets:

* ‘Market-based approach” through the ‘market comipiasa (analogues) method’ — with regard
to land and buildings for which actual market, nesrinalogous property and deals and basis
for comparison existed and their market value deiteed by the comparative method was
accepted as fair value;

« 'Assets (cost)-based approach' through the 'metficgimortised recoverable amount' — for
special-purpose buildings for which neither actoarket nor market/comparative sales of
analogous assets existed — their amortised redaeeaanount was accepted as their fair value
and under the hypothesis of their common use ihn@ogically-related production business
process (including the term) and taking into actophysical ware, functional and economic
impairment.
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Revaluation reserve at the amount of BGN 3,099g¢and was recognised net of impairment as a result
of the revaluation made as at 31 December 201 le(ho)

The main information sources, used for fair valak@lation, assumptions and assessment, with regard
to fair values cover: internal data and opinionGbup’s management and the management of the
respective company on the functional status oftaskssel of capacity utilization, intention forleaf
specific assets, general repairs performed, peigpsdor assets utilization, public information tre
financial, technical and operative status of thepegetive company during the last five years, phblis
prices of realized transactions on real estate etsyrknformation of realized or quoted transactifoms
sale and purchase of similar assets, offer datanbgufacturers, merchants and importers of new
specialized machinery and equipment as well asajdred-hand machinery and equipment. (Note 16).

The Group management has analyzed the price chahgeskey tangible fixed assets again as at 31
December 2012 and has concluded that no condiiadsreasons exist for a new revaluation of the
Group companies' assets before the expiry of adoptenmon period and that there are no actual
indicators and grounds for impairment. In additibtas considered the existing uncertainties c#fig

the price levels of assets and especially of re@te in the context of the applied by the Comgairy
values of property, plant and equipment, and ithefopinion that the used values reflect reliabky t
economic environment in the respective countryanedadequate thereto (Note 2.10).

2.33.2. Goodwill impairment

Every reporting year, the management of the Groagompms the necessary procedures for the
mandatory annual test for impairment of goodwitiagnised in the consolidated statement of financial
position on the acquisition of the subsidiariesgawmian Rose Sevtopolis AD, PAO Vitamini, lvanchich
and Sinovi OOD, Sopharma Buildings ADSIC, Mominapgost AD, Unipharm AD, Briz OOD, Extab
Corporation USA, Tabina OO0, ZAO Interpharm, Briapihh SOOO and Vivaton Plus OOO. For the
purpose, it has accepted that each individual comfmin the capacity of a ‘cash generating ufitie
calculations are made by the management of thepgGaod the assistance of an independent certified
appraiser is used. The (pre-tax) projected castsfere based on the financial budgets develope¢heoy
management of the respective companies and of tbepGs a whole that covers 3 to 5-year period as
well as other medium-term and long-term plans atehits for the development and restructuring of the
activities within the Group. The cash flows afteyear period, and respectively, after 5-year peréod
extrapolated at growth of 1-20 % against the pyiear — the frames of the long-term forecast for
inflation for the country and the limits of the imstry. The recoverable amount of each cash gengrati
unit is determined on the basis of the ‘value ie'us

The key assumptions used in the calculations of/erable amount are as follows:
«  Growth rate — from 1 % to 20 % (2011: from 2 % t&}5
« Discount rate (based on the weighted average ¢astpital- WACC)
- from 9.4 % to 23.9 % (2011: from 9.8 % to 20.8%).
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The discount rate has been determined specififatlgach goodwill bearing company by year and in
line with its specific operations and business emrent.

The methods for establishing the market valuet®frtvestment in the separate company as a befarer o
the respective goodwill are applied as an alteveapproach to determine the recoverable amouset. Th
sources for determining these market values aré Hot stock-exchange quotations (mainly the
Bulgarian Stock Exchange) and contracts and offeesmalogous items.

The tests and judgments of Group’s managementnipairment of recognised goodwill are made
through the prism of its projections and intentsoethe future economic benefits expected by thaur
from its subsidiaries including through the usehdir internally-created trademarks, commercial and
industrial experience and the generated thereby euécted for the future volumes of revenue,
ensuring position in the Bulgarian and internatiomaarkets (development and retaining), the
expectations for future sales and restructuringpefactivities, etc. (Note 17).

As a result of analyses and forecasts, the Groupagement has concluded that as at 31 December
2012 there are conditions for impairment of theogeised goodwill totalling BGN 2,108 thousand (for
the subsidiary ZAO Interpharm — BGN 669 thousanabiia OOO — BGN 543 thousand, Momina
Krepost AD — BGN 364 thousand, Sopharma Buildindg3S#C — BGN 484 thousand and Extab
Corporation USA — BGN 48 thousand). Goodwill impaént at the total amount of BGN 290 thousand
was recognised and recorded as at 31 December(R0lthe subsidiary Momina Krepost AD — BGN
254 thousand and for the subsidiaries Extab CotiporaUSA, and Extab Pharma — totally BGN 36
thousand).

2.33.3. Subsequent measurement of available-foresavestments (financial assets) to fair value and
treatment of the results of revaluation deficit

As at 31 December 2012, the Group companies' magdgidies made a detailed comparative analysis
of the changes and movements of stock-exchangespiricthe national stock market with regard to the
shares in public companies held thereby.

A. With regard to the investments in companies whsisares had been listed for trade in a foreign
stock-exchange market, assessed as an active ndetha shares themselves were traded in
sufficient volume of transactions: it was agreed #rey were subsequently measured at fair value
determined directly on the basis of 'average bicegr of realised deals in the stock-exchangeeén th
last month of the financial year (Level 1). The lgggbprices were additionally analyzed with regard
to the trend in the behaviour of stock-exchangegsriof the respective securities at least fordke |
three months of the year and respectively, to #te df issue of the financial statements.

B. With regard to the investments in companies whelares had been listed for trade in the
Bulgarian Stock Exchange, it was agreed and theg websequently measured as follows: (a) for
minority interests of 0.01% to 10% — at fair valdetermined on the basis of adjusted stock-
exchange prices (Level 2) — as far as the heldggskin these companies were of small volumes
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and it was decided that they could be sold in gttck-exchange market; and (b) for minority
interest of 10.1% to 19.99% — at fair value deteedi on the basis of a combined approach —
adjusted stock-exchange prices (Level 2) and finerdetermined by processing of non-observable
input information and data (Level 3) as far as ¢hpackages were of larger volumes and held for
long-term business purposes.

The following basic valuation methods were used rfaasuring the fair value of available-for-sale
investments as at 31 December 2012: (a) compacabfpanies (analogues) valuation method (Level
2) by applying market multiples: value of the comp#o EBITDA; value of the company to net profit;
value of the company to total assets; value ofdbmpany to equity and value of the company to
operating revenue; and (b) discounted cash flowatadn method (Level 3) based on future cash flow
projections by using financial budgets/forecastgecing 3- to 5-year periods, the publicly disclosed
information about new products and services as wagllthe historical financial statements of the
respective investee. The key assumptions usedeitiaih value calculations under this method are as
follows:

e growth rate — from 2 % to 8.9 %;
» discount rate (based on WACC) — from 9.3 % to 12410

The key assumptions used in the calculations haea betermined specifically for each company and
in line with the characteristic features of its igi®ns, the business environment and risks.

The management mandatory takes into account agseetfults from the alternative valuation methods
for additional confirmation of the applied valuefas value for both reporting years — 2012 and2201

The calculations have been made by the managenfighe ccompanies within the Group with the
assistance of independent certified appraisers.

Specific analysis was also made with regard tdnakstments in available-for-sale securities of the
behavioural graph of their stock-exchange priced ahtheir fair values determined also by other
alternative valuation methods for a period of 1&the at 31 December in order to determine whether
conditions existed for permanent and material impant. As a result of this analysis, the following
was found for part of the investments as at 31 Bédez 2012: (a) a trend of maintaining low levels of
share prices; (b) continuous decrease against ribe geriod; and/or (c) low prices of companies —
analogues and/or other valuations of the held sharestments, determined by alternative valuation
methods (e.g. discounted cash flows method, madeiparables), which are maintained or decreased
levels compared to the values at the end of tho paar.

These results of the analysis are the grounds Her gosition of the management to recognise
impairment for part of the investments, affectedthg above trends, together with all previously
accumulated losses (net) to the reserve in therstatt of comprehensive income (within profit orslos

for the year) as ‘finance costs’ — at the amounB@N 1,071 thousand (2011: BGN 2,624 thousand).
(Note 12). At the same time, with regard to anothart of the available-for-sale investments the

53
This is a translation from Bulgarian of the consglalied financial statements of Sopharma Group far 2612.



SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

management has recognised a revaluation resetire amount of BGN 1,214 thousand (2011: BGN 55
thousand) (Notes 15, 20 and 28).

2.33.4. Group companies operating in the environmef hyperinflationary economies

As at 31 December 2012 the cumulative inflatiorBilarus for the last three years exceeded 100%.
Therefore, the management of the parent companyéf@sed the Group companies performing their
business activities in Belarus as companies opeyath the environment of a hyperinflationary
economy. In addition, it has undertaken all neagss®asures so that the subsidiaries in Belarus are
maintained to operate under the going concern iptea(Note 42).

Because of these circumstances, for the purpostgesé consolidated financial statements the fgyure
in the 2012 financial statements of the companigsrating in Belarus — Brititrade SOOO, Tabina
000, ZAO Interpharm, Brizpharma SOOO, Vivaton RS0, Alean ODO and Vestpharm ODO -
were restated for the effects of hyperinflationeTgrior year comparatives are not restated again bu
those already restated with the relevant inflatiaiex (for year 2011) were used. The general irafex
consumer prices officially determined and publisigdthe National Statistics Committee of Belarus
was applied in these restatements.

The consumer price index in Belarus for the pefioth 2008 to 2012 is as follows:

Year 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Consumer price indt

compared to prior period (%) 13.4 9.8 10.1 108.7 21.8
2012

Q1 % Q2 % Q3 % Q4 %

January 1. April 1.7 July 1.2 October 1.6

February 1.5 May 1.€ August 2.2 November 1.7

March 1.5 June 1.& September 1.2 December 1.4
2011

Q1 % Q2 % Q3 % Q4 %

January 1.4 April 4.5 July 3.5 October 8.2

February 2.7 May 13.1 August 8.€ November 8.1

March 1.€ June 8.€ September 13.¢ December 2

*Q - quarter

Inflation indices in the range from 1.01 to 1.22revaised for the restatement of the figures in the
financial statements of the subsidiaries in Bel¢R04.1: from 1.71 to 2.09).

The gain on the net monetary position from restatas for hyperinflationary economy is from the
following subsidiaries:
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2012 2011
BGN '000 BGN '000

ZAO Interpharm 790 -
including: from goodwill 121 -
Tabina OO0 471 1,425
including: from goodwill 1,027 713
Brititrade SOOO (438) 2,701
including: from goodwill 129 93

823 4,126

2.33.5. Recognition of tax assets

On recognition of deferred tax assets, the managewofethe Group has assessed the probability the
individual deductible temporary differences to meseein the future and each of the Group companies’
capability to generate sufficient taxable profir fineir offset. The management of the Group has
assessed at the date of issue of the consoliditadcfal statements the subsidiaries that contioue
report losses in the last years with regard totiexgjssignificant uncertainties as to whether anaviat
extent within the final term, determined with thespective local tax regulations for tax loss carry
forward, these companies would be able to genstdfigient taxable profit. As a result of this aysis,

it has taken a decision to not recognise defeardssets in the consolidated financial staterragritse
amount of BGN 3,850 thousand (2011: BGN 3,671 taond¥ (Note 30).

2.33.6. Inventories
Normal capacity

The normal production capacity of the Group comesiuis determined using the following bases: (a)
man-hours worked-out (weighted average per mofith)nachine-hours worked-out (weighted average
per month); (c) production volume in quantitatieents, in kind (weighted average per month).

The normal capacity is determined by type of prodncand based on observations of the respective
indicator movement within a period between thretvim years.

The choice of a specific base depends on the desistic features of the organisation of production
including the labour intensity and machinery perfance.

Allowance for impairment

At the end of each financial year, the Group congsareview the state, useful life and usabilitythof
existing inventories. Where inventories are idésdifthat are potentially likely to not be realisgdheir
current carrying amount in the following reportipgriods, the Group companies impair the inventories
to net realisable value.
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As a result of the performed reviews and analysest 81 December 2012, impairment of inventories at
the amount of BGN 967 thousand has been recoginisii consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (within profit or loss for the year) (20BGN 1,557 thousand) (Note 10).

2.33.7. Impairment of receivables

The losses from doubtful and bad debts are estihatthe date of the consolidated financial statdme
on individual basis for each receivable. Whereaiffies in collecting certain receivables are abed,
they are subject to analysis in order to deterntireeactually collectable portion therefrom while th
remaining portion to the nominal value is recogdise the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (within profit or loss for the year) as irpgent (Note 10).

After 180 days of delay it is already consideredttindicators for impairment may exist. In the
assessment of the collectability of receivableg thanagement of the Group companies perform
analysis of the total exposure of each countergariyrder to establish the actual possibility fbeit
collection and not only at the level of past dudividual receivables from the total amount due Hogy t
counterparty, including the potential for colle¢tinnterest for compensating delays. When the
collectability of a receivable (a group of receile) is highly uncertain, an assessment is madd¢ wha
part thereof is secured by collateral (pledge, gawé, guarantees) and thus with ensured collection
(through future realisation of the collateral oragantee payment). Where the management has
concluded that a very high uncertainty exists ath&collectability of certain receivables or paft
them and they are not secured by collateral, tbeivables are impaired to 100% (Notes 24 and 25).

The amount of recognised impairment losses for 202 of the reversals) is BGN 2,201 thousand
(2011: BGN 1,572 thousand) (Note 10).

2.33.8. Actuarial calculations

Calculations of certified actuaries have been saty year when determining present value of long-
term payables to personnel upon retirement on dlsés lof assumptions for mortality rate, staff tweo
rate, future salaries level and a discount fadtimté 31).

2.33.9. Litigation provisions

There are no provisions for liabilities under litgpns as at 31 December 2012 recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2011, with regard to the pendtigations against the Group, the management
together with Group’s lawyers performed analysid provisions at the amount of BGN 102 thousand
were included for the cases where the probabitity tasks of a negative outcome at the current moemen
exceeded 50% (Note 35) while for the remaining sase liability provision was recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position (N&@¢.
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2.33.10. Operating lease

The Group classified a building, part of which Hakn leased to related parties under operating leas
terms, in the group of ‘property, plant and equipthef the consolidated statement of financial
position. Since a significant part of the buildim@s used by the Group as well, the management
decided that the building should not be treateithasstment property.
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3. REVENUE

Group revenudncludes:

Goods
Finished products

Sales of goods by type

Tablet dosage forms

Ampoule dosage forms

Consumables, dressing materials and apparatuses
Drops

Syrup dosage forms

Ointments

Food supplements and herbs

Other

Sales of finished products by type
Tablet dosage forms
Ampoule dosage forms
Syrup dosage forms
Ointments

Lyophilic products
Drops

Syringes

Infusion solutions
Blow-moulded articles
Veterinary vaccines
Other

2012 2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
422,317 397,196
266,262 247,535
688,579 644,731
2012 2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
204,399 209,367
115,617 100,634
34,549 23,665
20,478 22,151
10,220 9,482
10,077 9,418
8,916 4,703
18,061 17,776
422,317 397,196
2012 2011
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
185,081 176,134
33,434 28,477
15,163 17,001
8,138 4,941
5,164 5,943
5,007 3,709
2,375 2,191
1,763 1,986
1,033 1,015
876 806
8,228 5,332
266,262 247,535
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4. OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND LOSSES, NET

Other operating income and losses, ristlude:

2012 2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
Services rendered 2,394 1,854
Rentals 735 405
Income from penalties 705 782
Social activities and events 598 559
Grants from public institutions 563 433
Income from sale of a right of construction 416 -
Gain/(loss) from changes in the fair value of irent
property 116 (209)
Insurance indemnities received 43 103
Liabilities written-off 12 764
Net loss from exchange differences under traddvaiokes and
payables and current accounts (3,683) (3,789)
Loss from sales of materials (171) 3)
(Loss)/gain on sales of non-current assets (88) 173
Other 688 603
2,328 1,775
5. RAW MATERIALS AND CONSUMABLES USED
Expenses on raw materials and consumabileslude
2012 2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
Basic materials 64,725 64,194
Spare parts, laboratory and technical materials 6,985 5,858
Heating power 4,994 4 501
Electric energy 4 866 4,262
Fuels and lubricating materials 3,737 3,246
Water 947 909
Labour safety measures 138 729
Scrapped materials 119 101
Impairment of materials 88 446
Other 2,976 2,278
89,575 86,524
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Expenses obasic materialdnclude:

Substances (active ingredients)
Packaging materials

Liguid and solid chemicals

Aluminium foil

Ampoules

Polypropylene, polyethylene, polystyrene
Herbs

Liguid solution bags

Other

6. HIRED SERVICES EXPENSE

Expenses on hired servicésclude

Advertising

Consulting services
Manufacture

Rentals

Buildings and equipment maintenance
Forwarding and transportation services
Services under civil contracts
Bank and regulatory charges
Subscription fees

Insurance

Services on drug registration
Local taxes and charges
Security

Communication services
Logistic services

Motor vehicles repair

Taxes on expenses
Documentation translation
Medical service

Commission fees

Drug destruction services
Other

2012 2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
31,792 31,827
11,969 11,858
6,822 5,995
5,883 5,832
2,593 2,495
1,464 1,511
1,178 1,430
1,100 1,137
1,924 2,109
64,725 64,194
2012 2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
16,698 14,696
4,969 2,643
4,773 13,830
4,438 1,625
3,712 3,735
3,335 3,181
1,794 1,732
1,638 2,003
1,497 1,213
1,403 1,397
1,241 958
1,171 912
1,118 883
1,102 824
952 1,137
724 784
644 554
630 511
609 510
344 3,081
305 344
2,395 2,783
55,492 59,336
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7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Personnel costiclude: 2012 2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
Current wages and salaries 51,964 49,190
Social security/health insurance contributions 10,785 9,981
Social benefits and payments 3,631 3,196
Tantieme 1,288 1,280
Accruals for unused paid leaves 727 552
Social security/health insurance contributionseavées 190 164
Accruals for long-term benefits to personnel upstirement
(Note 31) 387 219
68,972 64,582
8. CARRYING AMOUNT OF GOODS SOLD
Thecarrying amount of goods sold by tyjeas follows:
2012 2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
Tablet dosage forms 203,744 198,925
Ampoule dosage forms 111,594 92,930
Consumables, dressing materials and apparatuses 26,752 21,264
Drops 18,913 20,280
Syrup dosage forms 9,479 10,210
Ointments 9,435 8,914
Food supplements and herbs 8,051 4,415
Other 12,567 14,053
400,535 370,991
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9. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expenseéaclude: 2012 2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
Charged/(reversed) impairment of current assetgNwte 10) 3,080 2,683
Entertainment allowances 2,778 2,541
Business trips 1,741 1,446
Scrap and shortages of goods 1,115 557
Awarded amounts under litigations 766 50
Donations 519 470
Trainings 318 356
Scrapping of non-current assets 226 226
Taxes and interest on taxes payable 225 567
Unrecognised input tax 200 109
Scrap and shortages of finished products and wopkagress 189 231
Receivables written-off 146 178
Other 245 316
11,548 9,730
10. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
Impairment losse®n receivables, work in progress, finished proslactd goods, net include:
2012 2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
Impairment of receivables 2,514 1,792
Reversed impairment of receivables (313) (220)
Net change in the impairment of receiva
(Notes 9, 24, 25 and 26) 2,201 1,572
Impairment of finished products (Note 9) 727 900
Impairment of goods (Note 9) 147 209
Impairment of materials (Note 5) 88 446
Impairment of work-in-progress (Note 9) 5 2
3,168 3,129
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Impairment losses on non-current assetglude:

2012 2011

BGN'000 BGN'000

Impairment of goodwill (Note 17) 2,108 290
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (Ndig 1 - 1,683
2,108 1,973

The impairment of tangible fixed assets, intangddeets and goodwill is recorded in the consolitlate
statement of comprehensive income (within profitloss for the year) within ‘depreciation and
amortisation expense’.

11. FINANCE INCOME

Finance incomeincludes: 2012 2011
BGN'000 BGN'000

Interest income on loans granted 4,109 4,638
Interest income on past due payments 1,246 1,467
Net gain from exchange differences on loans iniforeurrency 433 388
Income from equity investments (dividends) 184 80
Interest income on deposits 71 440
6,043 7,013

12. FINANCE COSTS

Finance costdnclude: 2012 2011
BGN'000 BGN'000

Interest expense on loans received 7,338 8,298
Impairment of available-for-sale investments 1,071 2,624
Bank fees and charges on loans and guarantees 520 529
Interest expense on finance lease 381 256
Expenses on investments in securities 31 6
9,341 11,713

63

This is a translation from Bulgarian of the consglalied financial statements of Sopharma Group far 2612.



SOPHARMA GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

13. LOSSES FROM ASSOCIATES

Losses from associatésclude:

Share in the loss for the year
Goodwill impairment

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
(profit or loss for the year)

Taxable profit of the Group companies for the year
Revaluation reserve included as an increase iarthaal tax return
Taxable profit for the year

Current income tax expense for the y-

10 %, 15%, 15.35%, 18%, 19%, 20%, 21 %, 24%
(2011: 10%, 15%, 15.35%, 19%, 20%, 23%, 24%, 26%)
Prior periods tax expense

Deferred income taxes

Occurrence and reversal of temporary differences

Tax rate chang- Ukraine, Belaru

(2011: Ukraine)

Total income tax expense carried to the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income
(within profit or loss for the year)
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2012 2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
56 133

- 273

56 406

2012 2011
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
58,932 64,230
(588) (196)
58,344 64,034
(6,194) (6,655)
(62) (35)
1,586 2,128
(264) (58)
(4,934) (4,620)
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Reconciliation of income tax expense applicable the

consolidated accounting profit or loss

Accounting profit for the year

Income tax 10 %, 15%, 15.35%, 18%, 19%, 20 %, 21%, :

(2011: 10 %, 15%, 15.35%, 19%, 20%, 23 %, 24%, 26%

Unrecognised amounts under the tax re

Related to increas
Related to decreases

Tax loss for the current year on which no defeteedassets al

recognised
Prior periods tax expense

Tax rate change — Ukraine, Belarus (2011: Ukraine)

Total income tax expense carried to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income

(within profit or loss for the year)

The tax effects regarding other components of cehgmsive income are as follows:

Net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets

Gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment

Exchange differences from restating foreign
operations

Total other comprehensive income for the
year

2012 2011

BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

42,900 45,045

(4,125) (3,959)

(1,020) (959)

806 517

(269) (126)

(62) (35)

(264) (58)

(4,934) (4,620)

2012 2011
BGN'000 BGN'000

Pre-tax Amount Pre-tax Amount net
amount  Tax expense net of tax amount Tax expense of tax
1,214 - 1,214 283 - 283
18 2) 16 3,099 (325) 2,774
(507) - (507) (826) - (826)
725 2 723 2,556 (325) 2,231
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15. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The other components cbmprehensive incommclude:

Other components of Other components of Total other components
comprehensive income comprehensive income of comprehensive
attributable to the attributable to non- income
Group controlling interest
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
BGN'00 BGN'00 BGN'00 BGN'00 BGN'00
0 0 0 BGN'00C 0 0
Change in the fair value of
available-for-sale financial
assets
Gains earned during the year 1113 61 101 6) 1214 55
Recycled amounts to current - 228 - - - 228
profit or loss
Gain on revaluation of 18 2,787 - 312 18 3,099
property, plant and
equipment
Exchange differences from
restating foreign operations
Losses incurred during the (347) (1,028) (158) 202 (505) (826)
year
Recycled amounts to current 2) - - - 2) -
profit or los:
Income tax relating to 2) (286) - (39) 2) (325)
components of other
comprehensive income
Other comprehensive
income for the year, net of
tax 78C 1,762 (57) 46¢ 728 2,231

The revaluation to fair value of the available-fae financial assets existing as at 31 Decemhk2 20
was based on the policy for subsequent measurevhentestments adopted by the Group. (Notes 2.15
and 2.33.3).

As at 31 December 2011, the Company performed arativeview and assessment for price changes
of property, plant and equipment with the assisamiccertified appraisers: Revaluation reservehat t
amount of BGN 3,099 thousand was recognised niehdirment as a result of the revaluation made as
at 31 December 2011 (Note 16).
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and buildings  Plant and equipment Other Assets in progress Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
BGN'000  BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Book value
Balance at 1 January 137,359 133,274 116,151 105,731 32,938 27,389 36,467 17,986 322,915 284,380
Additions 3,176 909 2,647 2,542 5,097 3,755 65,484 35,029 76,404 42,235

Assets in newly acquired

subsidiaries and joint ventures 16 8 18 90 29 41 - - 63 139
Effect of revaluation to fair value - 446 - (109) - - - - - 337
Effects of foreign currency and (337) 118 (153) (25) (201) 5 (198) 47 (889) 145
hyperinflationary restatements

Disposals (616) (57) (1,295) (1,045) (1,995) (712) (338) (10) (4,244) (1,824)
Written-off book value of assets on

sale of subsidiari (502) - (544) - (61) - (181) - (1,288) ;

Allowance for impairment - (2510 - 19 - (6) - - - (2,497)
Transfer to property, plant and 2597 5171 11,379 8948 5312 2,466  (19,288) (16,585) ; ;

equipment

Transfer to investment prope (236) - (171) - (12) - - - (429) -

Balance at 31 December 141,457 137,359 128,032 116,151 41,107 32,938 81,946 36,467 392,542 322,915
Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

Balance at 1 January 10,575 8,275 59,685 54,474 16,317 13,081 - - 86,577 75,830
Depreciation charge for the year 3,504 3,258 9,305 8,766 4,740 3,704 - - 17,549 15,728
Allowance for impairment - (839) - 25 - - - - - (814)
Effect of revaluation to fair value ° (127) - (2,635) i i i ” - (2762)
Effects of foreign currency and 5 16 24 1 1) 0 i} i} 8 16
hyperinflationary restatemel

Depreciation written-off (17) (8) (1,076)  (946) (L,779)  (467) - - (2872) (1,421)
Written-off depreciation of assets

sale of subsidiaries (174) ) (559) ) (61) ) ) ) (794) )

Balance at 31 December 13,893 10,575 67,379 59,685 19,196 16,317 - - 100,468 86,577

Carrying amount at 31 December 127,564 126,784 60,653 56,466 21,911 16,621 81,946 36,467 292,074 236,338

Carrying amount at 1 January 126,78:  124,99¢ 56,46¢€ 51,255 16,62. 14,30¢ 36,467 17,98¢ 236,33{ 208,55(

As at 31 December 2012, the tangible fixed asskthe Group include: land amounting to BGN
42,012 thousand (31 December 2011: BGN 40,754 #ma)sand buildings of carrying amount BGN
85,552 thousand (31 December 2011: BGN 86,030 #mal)s
Tangible fixed assets in progress as at 31 Decemtlede:
e expenses on new buildings construction — BGN 56B88sand (31 December 2011:
BGN 27,844 thousand);
e supply of equipment — BGN 20,271 thousand (31 Ddmen2011l: BGN 1,376
thousand);
« advances granted — BGN 4,332 thousand (31 Decezflidr BGN 4,171 thousand);
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e buildings reconstruction - BGN 775 thousand (31 édelber 2011: BGN 2,834
thousand);
« other - BGN 215 thousand (31 December 2011: BGNtBd@sand).

The following encumbrances were constituted onitdadixed assets of the Group as at 31 December
2012 in relation to received loans (Notes 29 anda34ollows:
* Land and buildings with carrying amount of BGN IB9%housand and BGN 53,128
thousand, respectively (31 December 2011: resmgtiBGN 15,519 thousand and BGN
55,032 thousand);
» Pledge on facilities with carrying amount of BGN214 thousand (31 December 2011:
BGN 734 thousand);
 Pledges on equipment — BGN 32,150 thousand (31 rbieee 2011: BGN 27,286
thousand);
* Motor vehicles — none (31 December 2011: BGN 1bd6isand);
* Furniture and fixtures — none (31 December 201INBG5 thousand);
» Tangible fixed assets in progress — none (31 Deeeill: BGN 159 thousand).

The carrying amount of the tangible fixed assetstgmvehicles) of the Group obtained under finance
lease as at 31 December 2012 was BGN 3,789 tho(3&rdecember 2011: BGN 2,578 thousand).

Operating lease

The Group has leased fixed tangible assets withyiogr amount of BGN 1,138 thousand as at 31
December 2012 to related parties (31 December BGN 2,167 thousand). In addition, tangible fixed
assets at carrying amount of BGN 492 thousand {gased to third parties as at 31 December 2012 (31
December 2011: BGN 435 thousand).

The carrying amount of Group’s tangible fixed asggbvided under operating lease by type of assets
as follows:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
Buildings 1,495 2,536
Machinery and equipme 135 66
1,630 2,602
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill Intellectual property Software Other Assets in Total
rights progress
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

BGN'O00 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'0O00 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Book value
Balance at 1 January 21,60z 19,42¢ 9,262 7,912 5,181 4,49¢ 1,96¢€ 1,681 2,062 516 40,07¢  34,03:
Additions 55  2,58¢ 184 41 38C 687 32 - 148¢ 1,874 2,137 5,19C
Acquired assets in
subsidiaries and joint - - - 1,031 - - 67¢ 460 - - 678 1,491
ventures
Effects of foreign arrency
and hyperinflationary 189 (411) 72 (35) 1) - 20 (175) 4 - 276 (621)
restatements
Transfer - - 731 314 11€ - (12) - (835)  (314)
Disposals - - 1) - - (5) - - (150) (14) (151) (19)
Balance at 31 December 21,846 21,602 10,24¢ 9,262 5,67¢ 5,181 2,685 1,96€ 2,55¢ 2,062 43,01 40,07
Accumulated amortisation and impairme
Balance at 1 January 6,821 6,531 2,511 1,31¢ 2,215 1,452 550 378 - - 12,098 9,67¢
Amortisation charge for - " -
the year 1,49z 1,19¢ 89¢ 76€ 141 170 - - 2,532 2,131
Allowance for impairment 2,10¢ 29C - - - - - - - - 2,10¢ 290
Effects of foreign currenc
and hyperinflationary - - (56) 1 ) - (42) 2 - - (100) 3
restatements
Amortisation written-off - - - - - (5) - - - - - ()
Balance at 31 December 8,92¢ 6,821 3,94¢ 2,511 3,10¢ 2,215 64¢ 550 - - 16,635 12,09¢
Carrying amount at 31
December 12,917 14,781 6,301 6,752 2,567 2,96¢ 2,036 1,41€ 2,55¢ 2,062 26,38( _ 27,97¢
Carrying amount at 1
January 14,781 12894 6,752 6,597 2,96¢ 3,047 1,41¢ 1,308 2,06z 516 27,97¢ 24,357

The rights on intellectual property include mairgpyoducts of development activities related to
medicinal substances (active ingredients) and dodagms and acquired patents and trademarks.
Within the total intellectual property, owned byetlGroup, the largest share belongs to internally-
created trademarks, which have not been capitaiisdte consolidated statement of financial positio
These trademarks grant exceptional rights on tmeesaof pharmaceuticals while those with biggest
relative share in the sales of the Group are: Camsmpalgin, Broncholitin, Tabex, Analgin, Tribast
Vicetin, Sydnopharm, Antistenocardin, Spasmalgoaftedsif, Chlofadon, Chlofasolin, Sofafailin,
Sopral, Vasopren, Buscolisin, Nivalin, Maraslawbimex, Allergosan, Aminalon.

Capitalised trademarks as a result of performednbas combinations are as follows: Probiotic,
Laxomucil, Alfalipoin, Influrex, etc. The patent Ideis for production of dosage forms containing
Ranitidin.

The other intangible assets include mainly the wesieké contracts with suppliers, licences and
distribution networks acquired in business comibmest

As a result of the analysis, valuations and pr@estmade, the management of the Group recogmised i
2012 impairment of part of the goodwill of the fdling subsidiaries: ZAO Interpharm at the amount of
BGN 669 thousand, Tabina at the amount of BGN h&8tand, Momina Krepost AD at the amount of
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BGN 364 thousand, Sopharma Buildings ADSIC at theownt of BGN 484 thousand and Extab
Corporation at the amount of BGN 48 thousand (20Admina Krepost AD at the amount of BGN 254
and Extab companies at the amount of BGN 36 thal)qaiote 10).

For the remaining goodwill recognised in the comksied statement of financial position it was
assessed that no conditions for impairment exidtedte 2.33.2).

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

2012 2011

BGN'000 BGN'000
Balance at 1 January 6,555 6,821
Additions - 37
Disposals - (210)
Effect of restatement 2 16
Fair value measured as at 31 December, carrido
consolidated statement of comprehensive incoménifwgrofit
or loss for the year) (Note 4) 116 (109)
Transfer from propty, plant and equipmel
(Note 16) 419 -
Fair value measured at transfer, carried to thalvation
reserve (Note 15) 18 -
Balance at 31 December 7,110 6,555

The investment property represent buildings andtiappg separated parts from buildings of Group
companies for individual exploitation, intended flmng-term rent-out to third parties for income
generating purposes.
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Alean ODO, Belarus, and Vestpharm ODO, Belarusttaeassociated companies of the Group as at 31
December 2012 with principal activities being tram@harmaceuticals.

Company Acquisition cost Date of acquisition of

shares
% interes BGN'000
Alean ODO 38 185 26.09.2012
Vestpharm ODO 38 398 29.10.2012
583
The movement of the investments in associatessepted below:
Alean ODO Vestpharm ODO Total
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Balance at 1 January - - -
Acquisition of shares 185 398 583
Share in the (loss)/profit for the year (4) 3 (1)
Balance at 31 December 181 401 582

The share of the Group in the results of the aasexiand its aggregated assets (including goocdamit)
liabilities is as follows:

Share of the  Share of the Share of Share of Interest
assets liabilities revenue profit/(loss)
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 %
Alean ODO 398 157 183 4 38
Vestpharm ODO 548 291 226 3 38

The investments in associates as at 31 Decemb&r iBbllde recognised goodwill at the amount of
BGN 21 thousand for Alean ODO and BGN 74 thousamd/estpharm ODO.
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

The carrying amount of the investments by comparasifollows:

31.12.2012 Interes 31.12.2011 Interes

BGN'000 % BGN'000 %
Doverie Obedinen Holding AD Bulgaria 15,036 18.80 12,870 14.87
OAO Krimgas Ukraine 2,734 9.07 2,098 9.07
Medica AD Bulgaria 2,574 10.20 2,420 10.13
Olainfarm AD Latvia 1,078 0.77 703 0.77
OOO NPK Biotest Belarus 491 19.00 - -
Lavena AD Bulgaria 399 8.47 732 8.58
Hydroizomat AD Bulgaria 374 9.38 51 3.74
Sopharma Imoti ADSIC Bulgaria 234 0.70 115 0.36
Elpharma AD Bulgaria 158 19.00 665 19.00
CF Elana Money Market Fund Bulgaria 104 0.76 - -
ODO BelAgroMed Belarus 92 19.00 - -
Balkanpharma Razgrad AD Bulgaria 70 0.33 70 0.33
Todorov AD Bulgaria 33 5.10 47 4.97
Maritzatex AD Bulgaria - 6.20 146 3.68
Other 48 - 55 -

23,425 19,972

The other available-for-sale financial assets, antinog to BGN 48 thousand (31 December 2011: BGN
55 thousand), include very small minority interestthe Group in the capital of nine companies (31
December 2011: twelve companies).

The investments are measured at fair value base(hpfior company shares traded in foreign stock-
exchange markets — average stock-exchange pricesaoés for December (Level 1); (b) for minority
interests (from 0.01% to 10.%) traded in the BulyarStock Exchange — adjusted stock-exchange
prices of shares (Level 2); and (c) for minorityteirests (from 10.01% to 19.99%) traded in the
Bulgarian Stock Exchange — combined approach) (L2emd Level 3) (Notes 2.33 and 15). The shares
of OAO Krimgas as at 31 December 2012 are meadardair value based on share sale agreement
(Note 46). The shares in non-public companies: Q@K Biotest — Belarus, ODO BelAgroMed —
Belarus, Elpharma AD — Bulgaria, Balkanpharma RadgkD as well as the minority interests included
on the line 'other' of the available-for-sale invesnts are measured at acquisition cost as faheas t
shares of these companies are not traded in a sxakange and no market price quotations are
available for them while the assumptions for thpliaption of alternative valuation methods are teda

to high uncertainty in respect of achieving a tdéafair value determination.
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As at 31 December 2012 the Group performed a reviewimpairment of available-for-sale
investments and as a result finance costs werededan the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within the current profit or loss at the ambof BGN 1,071 thousand (2011: BGN 2,624
thousand) (Note 12).

As at 31 December 2012, the available-for-salestmaents measured at fair value are as follows:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Number of Fair value Fair value as Number of  Fair value pel  Fair value as

shares heli per share per the shares hel share per the

statement ¢ statement ¢

financial financial

position position

BGN BGN'00C BGN BGN'00C

Doverie Obedinen Holding

AD 3,521,003 4.27 15,036 2,081,067 6.18 12,870
OAO Krimges 1,335,17! 2.0t 2,73¢ 1,335,17: 1,57 2,09¢
Medica AD 1,026,969 251 2,574 1,019,550 2.37 2,420
Olainfarm AD 108,500 9.94 1,078 108,500 6.48 703
Lavena AD 16,959 23.53 399 17,174 42.63 732
Hydroizomat AD 280,437 1.33 373 48,572 1.04 51
Sopharmémoti ADSIC 90,87( 2.5¢ 23t 46,86¢ 2.4¢ 11F
CF Elana Money Market Fu 74z 139.7¢ 104 - - -
Todorov AD 173,469 0.19 33 0.27 0.27 46
Maritzatex AD 29,062 - - 16,270 8.96 146
22,566 19,181

21. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES

Thelong-term receivables from related partias at 31 December refer to companies under a commo
indirect control through key managing personnel iactiide:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN '000 BGN '000

Long-term loans granted to related parties 748 729
Long-term rental deposit granted 435 272
1,183 1,001
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As at 31 December, the Group granted a loan tongpaay under a common indirect control through
key managing personnel under the following terms @nditions:

Contracted amount; EUR 1,100 thousand

Interest rate: 8.08%
Maturity: 31 December 2014
Collateral: None

Purpose of the loan:
Balance at 31 December 2012
including interest

For working capital
BGN 748 thousand (31 December 2011: BGN 729 thal)san
BGN 25 thousand (31 December 2011: BGN 1 thousand)

The deposit receivable related with a rent undeoracluded rental contract for administrative office
with validity term on 1 August 2022.

22. OTHER NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES

Theother current receivablesf the Group as at 31 December include:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
Loans granted 1,31« 52C
Guarantee deposits 30 48
Other 11€ 8
1,46( 57€

Theloans grantediy the Group as at 31 December 2012 are to thirtigs, without collateral and with
agreed annual interest from 7% to 8.08% (31 Dece2iEl: from 6 % to 8 %).

23. INVENTORIES

Inventoriesinclude: 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000

Goods 55,012 53,256
Finished products 38,954 38,409
Materials 29,228 26,142
Semi-finished products 3,182 3,813
Work-in-progress 4 574 4,402
130,950 126,022
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Goodsby type are as follows:

Tablet dosage forms
Ampoule dosage forms
Syrups

Drops

Ointments

Goods in transit
Isotopes

Other

Finished productsexisting at 31 December include:

Tablet dosage forms
Ampoule dosage forms
Syrups

Other

Materials by type are as follows:

Basic materials
Materials in transit
Auxiliary materials
Technical materials
Spare parts

Other
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31.12.2012  31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
26,986 28,719
10,379 10,717
2,314 2,176
2,177 1,830
1,472 1,385
883 521

15 3
10,786 7,905
55,012 53,256
31.12.2012  31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
26,146 23,659
6,969 6,091
2,418 3,490
3,421 5,169
38,954 38,409
31.12.2012  31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
25,235 22,006
1,909 2,333

484 451

426 466

389 285

785 601
29,228 26,142
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Basic materialshy type are as follows: 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000

Substances (active ingredients) 15,573 13,188
Vials, tubes and ampoules 3,695 3,805
Chemicals 2,108 1,561
Packaging materials 1,351 1,387
PVC and aluminium foil 1,279 934
Herbs 648 540
Other 581 591
25,235 22,006

As at 31 December 2012, there were establishedadpdedges on inventories at the amount of BGN
91,199 thousand (31 December 2011: BGN 85,001 #ml)sas collateral under bank loans received by
the Group and issued bank guarantees (Notes 2h@340).

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivablegclude: 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000

Receivables from clients 158,129 134,789
Impairment of uncollectable receivables (3,345) (3,296)
Receivables from clients, net 154,784 131,493
Advances to suppliers 5,816 5,315
Impairment of advances (42) (52)
Advances granted, net 5,774 5,263
160,558 136,756

Thereceivables from clientare interest-free and are mainly denominated iNBGd EUR.

Usually the Group companies negotiate with theéents payment term within the range of 30 to 180
days for receivables under sales unless there etermined specific conditions for maturity for
particular clients.

The Group has set a common credit period of 188 @taywhich no interest is charged to clients. Any
delay after this period is regarded by the Groupramdicator for impairment. The management of the
Group companies assess collectability by analydimg exposure of the particular client, the

opportunities for settlement (of the client andotigh the collateral) and take decision on the
recognition and charging of the respective impairine
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Theage structureof non-matured (regular) trade receivables iHsws:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
up to 30 days 38,510 37,022
from 31 to 90 days 47,308 46,713
from 91 to 180 days 23,154 19,986
from 180 to 360 days 3,401 4,573
from 1 to 2 years 891 205
over 2 years - 652
113,264 109,151

Theage structureof past due but not impaired trade receivables illows:
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
from 31 to 90 days 11,485 5,459
from 91 to 180 days 3,507 1,513
from 180 to 365 days 7,131 4,148
from 1 to 2 years 3,102 2,830
over 2 years 1,291 1,333
26,516 15,283

Past due but not impaired receivables are comneutject to agreements already contracted or under

preparation for interest rescheduling of paymeatsefich individual client (including penalty intete

for delay).

Theage structureof past due impaired trade receivables is asvslio

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

BGN'000 BGN'000

from 31 to 90 days 390 216
from 91 to 180 days 1,788 1,013
from 180 to 365 days 5,041 1,711
over 1 years 11,130 7,415
allowance for impairment (3,345) (3,296)
15,004 7,059
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The larger part of the past due impaired receiglddrom state hospitals and interest is charget a
invoiced thereon. For this reason, the managemktheo Group assessed a need only for a partial
impairment of the above receivables.

As at 31 December 2012, there were establishedatgeedges on trade receivables at the amount of
BGN 32,562 thousand (31 December 2011: BGN 54,802sand) as collateral under bank loans
received by the Group and issued bank guarantemsgi9, 34 and 40).

Movement of the allowance for impairment

2012 2011

BGN'000 BGN'000

Balance at the beginning of the year 3,296 2,732
Impairment amount 274 865
Amounts written-off as uncollectible (29) (113)
Reversed impairment (156) (180)
Transferred impairment of litigations (30) (8)
Effect of restatement (10) -
Balance at the end of the year 3,345 3,296

The advances grantedo suppliers are regular and are mainly denomihateBGN and EUR and are
for the purchase of:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

BGN'000 BGN'000

Goods 3,368 1,618
Raw materials and consumables 1,932 2,501
Services 419 1,123
Other 97 73
Allowance for impairment (42) (52)
5,774 5,263
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25. RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES

Receivables from related partiésclude

Receivables from companies under a common indiadiol
through key managing personnel

Receivables from companies under a common indidiol
Receivables from main shareholding companies

Thereceivables from related partidsy type are as follows:

Trade loans granted
Receivables on sales of finished products and iaiter

Trade loans granted to related partiéy type of related party are as follows:

Companies under a common indirect control throughrkanaging

personnel
Companies under a common indirect control
Main shareholding companies
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31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
39,981 36,088
12,359 12,127
8,531 14,898
60,871 63,113
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
56,553 62,040
4,318 1,073
60,871 63,113
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
37,156 36,088
10,866 11,091
8,531 14,861
56,553 62,040
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Thegranted loansare as follows:

Contracted
Currency amount Maturity Interest 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
‘000 % BGN '00CQ BGN '00C BGN '00C BGN '00C
int_:luding ingluding
interes interes’
to companies under a common indirect control thrdu§gey managing personnel
BGN 18,478 31.12.2013 8.30% 14,932 324 14,492 662
EUR 8,630 81122013 4 5oy 12,25' 62 14,16 82
BGN 25,550 31.08.2013 8089 0,231 ] ] ]
BGN 1,300 81122013 8.08% 510 9 53 3
BGN 190 81122013 8.08% 227 37 211 21
EUR 1,581 81122012 5.50% - ; 3,387 29t
BGN 2417 31.12.2012 8.08% - - 2,669 288
BGN 945 31.12.2012 8.08% - - 1,011 211
BGN 120 10.07.2012 6089 ] 101 ]
to main shareholding companies
EUR 4,035 81122013 4 809 8,170 278 7,991 99
BGN 300 31.12.2012 8.08% 361 61 407 10z
BGN 18,495 31.08.2012 6089 ) ] 6.46: )
to companies under a common indirect control
EUR 7,556 81122013 4 50y 10,01( ; 10,60¢ -
BGN 1,330 31.12.2013 8089 10 ) a5 )
BGN 120 10.02.2012 8.08% 146 26 137 17
56,553 797 62,040 1,781

Thereceivables on sales of finished products and migsrare interest-free and denominated in BGN
and in EUR.

The Group companies usually negotiate payment térebseen 90 and 180 days for receivables on
sales of finished products and up to 30 days foeivables on sales of materials (incl. substances -
active ingredients).

The Group has set a maximum credit period of upet® days for which no interest is charged to sales
counterparts — related parties. Any delay aftes gariod is regarded by the Group as an indicatior f
impairment. The management of the Group compargeesa collectability by analysing the specific
receivables and the position of the debtor com@nwell as the circumstances for the delay and the
opportunities for repayment and after that, thejeta decision on whether impairment shall be
recognised and charged on individual basis anchat amount.
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Theage structureof non-matured (regular) trade receivables frolatee parties is as follows:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
up to 30 days 50€ 564
from 31 to 90 days 373 103
from 91 to 180 days 2,824 1
3,703 66€
Theage structureof past due but not impaired trade receivables frelated parties is as follows:
31.12.2012  31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
from 31 to 90 days 27¢ 11
from 181 to 365 days 2 -
from 1 to 2 years - 394
277 40E
Theage structureof past due impaired receivables from relatedgmis as follows:
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
Over 1 year 816 399
Allowance for impairment (478) (399)
338 -
Movement of the allowance for impairment
2012 2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
Balance at 1 January 399 343
Impairment amount 79 56
Balance at 31 December 478 399
81

This is a translation from Bulgarian of the consglalied financial statements of Sopharma Group far 2612.



SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

26. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Other receivables and prepaymemtithe Group include:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

BGN'000 BGN'000

Court and awarded receivables 13,067 14,998
Impairment of court receivables (2,736) (496)
Court and awarded receivables, net 10,331 14,502
Taxes refundable 7,824 5,657
Prepayments 1,519 1,930
Guarantees under litigations (Note 39) 846 -
Receivables on deposits placed as guarantees 664 508
Amounts granted to an investment intermediary 652 197
Loans granted to third parties 482 1,239
Other 203 299
22,521 24,332

The court and awarded receivables originate maimkglation to sales to state hospitals. For mést o
them there are already agreed or under negotiatigasyment schedules. Therefore, the management of
the Group has assessed a need in only a partialrimgnt of the above receivables.

Taxes refundablenclude: 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000

Excise duties 3,878 2,856
VAT 2,309 2,346
Income tax 1,527 350
Withholding taxes 110 105
7,824 5,657
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Prepaymentsnclude: 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000

Insurance 587 620
Subscriptions 544 354
Advertising 148 189
Rentals 111 141
Licence and patent fees 23 190
Vouchers 8 203
Other 98 233

1,519 1,930

The loans granted to third parties amounted to B8R thousand (31 December 2011: BGN 1,239
thousand) and were granted to nine entities (28&ten entities) — counterparts for working capital.
The annual agreed interest on these loans for atZetween 6 % and 8.08 % (2011: 6 % and 12%).

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

BGN'000 BGN'000

Cash at current bank accounts 11,847 18,754
Short-term deposits 2,718 13,114
Cash in hand 1,129 292
Blocked funds 73 75
15,767 32,235

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group ardyrdgnominated in BGN and in EUR (31 December
2011: BGN and EUR).

The average level of the annual interest on cumeabunts in BGN and foreign currency is within the
range from 0.10% to 0.11% (2011: from 0.1% to 0.2%06) that on deposit accounts in BGN and
foreign currency is within the range from 0.43 %tb % (2011: from 1.05 % ¢®%5.5 %).

The blocked funds as at 31 December 2012 amoutdiB§sN 73 thousand (31 December 2011: BGN
75 thousand) represent mainly performance guarantee
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28. EQUITY
Share capital

As at 31 December 2012, the registered share tapiBOPHARMA AD amounted to BGN 132,000
thousand distributed in 132,000,000 shares of naimislue BGN 1 each.

The treasury sharesvere 3,853,735 at the amount of BGN 13,594 thoug@idDecember 2011:
2,934,163 at the amount of BGN 11,463 thousandjedban a decision of the General Meeting of
Shareholders of 23 June 2010.

Thestatutory reserveamounting to BGN 25,934 thousand (31 December 2BGN 21,855 thousand)
were set aside from allocation of profit of theqrarcompany and included all amounts for the Reserv
Fund.

Therevaluation reserve — for property, plant and egmpnt amounting to BGN 26,395 thousand (31
December 2011: BGN 26,662 thousand) was set asidethe positive difference between the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment of the roompanies and their fair values at the dategeof t
respective regular revaluation. (Notes 15, 16). &ffiect of deferred taxes on the revaluation resésyv
stated directly through other components of congmeive income for the year.

Available-for-sale financial assets resenamounting to BGN 1,048 thousand — a positive &g(81
December 2011: BGN 65 thousand — a negative figwes) set aside from the effects of subsequent
measurement of available-for-sale investments itovi@ue (including the consolidated share of the
change in this reserve in associates on their tiatuander the equity method) (Note 15).

The translation of foreign operations reservamounting to BGN 3,804 thousand — a negative digur
(31 December 2011: BGN 3,455 thousand — a negfitjiuvee) was set aside from exchange differences
arising as a result of translation of the curreimcthe financial statements of foreign companieth®
presentation currency of the Group (Note 15).

The accumulated profit reservincludes the component “other reserves”, which aioistthe amounts
distributed from profits of the Group companies eyarted in prior years, and the component “retained
earnings”.

Basic earnings per share

2012 2011

Weighted average number of res 128,557,60 129,935,68¢
Net profit for the year (BGN’000) 35,196 38,404
Basic earnings per share (BGN) 0.27 0.30
84
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29. LONG-TERM BANK LOANS

Contractec Maturity
loan
amount

‘000

Credit lines and working capital loar

EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR

1,452 31.12.2017
50C 07.04.201
450 31.12.2017
300 28.06.2014
113 30.11.2015

12,00  31.01.201
530 28.02.2012

Investmen-purpose loan

EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR

32,00C  15.04.202
1,800 25.07.2014

1,617 30.01.201

80C 09.12.201
1,675 30.06.2013

31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Non-current Current portion Total Non-current Currgni Total
portion portion portion

BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'0O0O0O  BGN'000
2,188 614 2,802 - - -
301 677 97¢ - - -
690 191 881 - - -

- 303 303 - - -

130 74 204 - - -

- (Note 34 - - 22,58 22,58

- - - - 86 86

51,77¢ 5,88¢ 57,66 18,73% 37 18,77¢
542 960 1,502 2,480 960 3,440

51¢ 47¢ 99¢ 99¢ 47¢ 1,474

69¢ 34¢ 1,04: 1,04: 34¢ 1,391

- 25 25 22 42 64
56,844 9,559 66,403 23,280 24,535 47,815

The Group has gradually established a policy faruah re-negotiation of the terms and conditions of
initially agreed long-term credit lines, includingaturity terms. Starting from the date of re-negjatin,
the extended credit lines are presented as shantkiank loans (Note 34).

The bank loans received in Euro are mainly agreedterest rate based on EURIBOR plus a mark-up

of 5 points (2011: EURIBOR plus a mark-up of 5.5nps).

Investment-purpose loans are intended for purcbisegible fixed assets and expanding of actisitie

The following collateral has been established uota of the creditor banks:

Special pledges on:

Real estate mortgages (Note 16);

- machinery and equipment (Note 16);

- raw materials, consumables and finished produotse(i23);

- trade receivables (Note 24).
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30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The total change ideferred tax assets and liabilities the Group for the respective financial yeaass
follows:

201z 2011

BGN'000 BGN'000

Balance at 1 January (4,822) (6,433)
Acquired on purchase of a subsidi (70) (358
Recognised in the profit or loss for the \ 1,322 2,C70
Recognised in other comprehere incomu 6 (356
Recognised in the equity statement and the cutagnieturn 33 31
Derecognised on disposal of a subsid 29¢ -
Reserve from translation into presentation curr (23) 224
Balance at 31 December (3,255) (4,822)

On recognising deferred tax assets, the probalifityg reversal of the individual differences and th
abilities of the Group companies to generate Sefiiictaxable profit in the future, have been takea
account (Note 2.33.5).

Deferred tax assets have not been recognisedddollowing temporary differences:

31.12.2012 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2011
BGN'O0O0O BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000

temporan temporan
difference tax difference tax
Tax loss carried forward 10,575 1,957 12,874 2,262
Impairment of assets 13,361 1,856 13,041 1,381
Other 374 37 280 28
24,310 3,850 26,195 3,671
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The change in the balance déferred tax assetfor 2012 by item of temporary differences is as

follows:
Deferred tax assets Balance at Acquired on Recognised Recognised in Derecognised Reserve from Balance at
(by temporary 1 January purchase of in profit or other on disposal of restatement 31 December
differences) 2012 a subsidiary loss for the comprehensive a subsidiary into 2012
year income presentation
currency
BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000
Inventories 2,771 - 642 - - (54) 3,359
Trade receivables 725 - 207 - - - 932
Retirement benefit
obligations 465 - 70 - - (43) 492
Intangible assets 117 - 61 - - 22 200
Available-for-sale
investment 98 53 48 - - - 199
Other current
liabilities 69 - - - ) - 67
4,24¢ 53 1,02¢ - (2) (75) 5,24¢

The change in the balance déferred tax liabilitiesfor 2012 by item of temporary differences is as

follows:
Deferred tax (liabilities) Balance at Acquired on Recognised Recognised in Derecognised Reserve from Balance at
(by temporary 1 January purchase of in profit or other on disposal of restatement 31 December
differences) 2012 a subsidiary loss for the comprehensive a subsidiary into 2012
year income presentation
currency
BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000
Property, plant and 301
equipment (8,129 - 12¢ 2 51 (7,650
Intangible assets on
business 8 -
combination (938) (123) 165 34 (854)
(9.067 (123) 294 6 301 85 (8,504)
The change in the balance déferred tax assetfor 2011 by item of temporary differences is as
follows:
Deferred tax assets Balance at Acquired on Recognised Recognised in Derecognised Reserve from Balance at
(by temporary 1 January purchase of in profit or other on disposal of restatement 31 December
differences) 2011 a subsidiary loss for the comprehensive a subsidiary into 2011
year income presentation
currency
BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '000
Inventorie: 1,322 - 1,428 - - 21 2,771
Trade receivables 607 ) 118 ) ) ) 725
Retirement benefit - - 465
obligation: 423 - 62 (20)
Intangible assets 230 B (99) ” B 4) 117
Available-for-sale - - 98
investments 100 - 1) 1)
Other current - - 69
liabilities 55 - 14 -
2,737 - 1,522 14 4,24%
87

This is a translation from Bulgarian of the consglalied financial statements of Sopharma Group far 2612.



SOPHARMA GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

The change in the balance déferred tax liabilitiesfor 2011 by item of temporary differences is as

follows:

Deferred tax (liabilities)
(by temporary
differences)

Property, plant and
equipment
Intangible assets on
business
combination

Balance at Acquired on Recognised Recognised in Derecognised Reserve from Balance at
1 January purchase of in profit or other on disposal of restatement 31 December
2011 a subsidiary loss for the comprehensive a subsidiary into 2011
year income presentation
currency
BGN ‘000 BGN '000 BGN ‘000 BGN '000 BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000 BGN '000
(8,380 (54) 526 (356 - 135 (8,129
(790! (304 22 - - 134 (938
(9,170) (358) 548 (356) 269 (9,067)

31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The long-term payables to personnel include thegmevalue of the obligation of the Group companies
operating mainly irBulgaria, Ukraine and Serbjao pay indemnities to the hired personnel atdike
of the statement of financial position on cominggé for retirement.

In accordance with the Labour CodeBulgariaeach employee is entitled to indemnity on retireta
the amount of two gross monthly salaries, and ibhahe has worked over the last 10 years for the
same employer — six gross monthly salaries atite of retirement (Note 2.33.8).

The obligations of the employer to the personnaletinement for the companies abroad are as follows

« Serbia—the employer is obliged to pay 3 average saarie

» Ukraine — the employer is obliged to pay between BGN 28 BGN 50 depending on the
length of service as well as social pensions, whieh company accrues after employees’
retirement due to specific work conditions;

* Russia, Latvia and Belarusthe employer has no legal obligation to persbapen retirement;

* Poland, USA and United Kingdom the Group has no hired personnel and therefuoe,

obligation.

For the purpose of establishing the amount of tlebtigations to personnel, the Group companies have
assigned an actuarial valuation by using the sesvid a certified actuary.
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31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000

Present value of the obligations at 1 January 2,42¢ 2,801
Unrecognised actuarial loss at 1 January (37) (191)
Liability recognised in the consolidated statemenof financial

position at 1 January 2,389 2,610
Expense recognised in tconsolidate(statement of comprehensi

income for the period (Note 7) 387 219
Payments for the ye (435) (440)
Effect of restatement of the financial statemeiftsubsidiaries abro:i (10) R
Liability recognised in the consolidated statemenof financial

position at 31 December 2,331 2,389
Present value of the obligations at 31 Decer 2,614 2,42¢
Unrecognised actuarial loss at 31 Decen (283) (37)

The change in the present value of retirement liteabligations to personnel and the calculation of
actuarial (gain)/loss is as follows:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000

Present value of the obligations at 1 January 2,426 2,801
Interest expense for the per 118 132
Currert service costs for the ye 259 154
Payments for the ye (435) (440)
Effect of restatement of the financial statememntsubsidiaries abro:i (10) -
Actuarial loss/(gain) for the ye 256 (221)
Present value of the obligation at 31 December 2,614 2,426

Accruals for long-term benefits to personnel upstirement include:

2012 2011
BGN'000 BGN'000

Current service costs 259 154
Interest expense 118 132
Net actuarial loss/(gain) recognised for the year 10 (67)
387 219
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The following actuarial assumptions were used inutating the present value of the liabilities foe
companies in Bulgaria as at 31 December 2012:

* The discount factor is calculated by using 4.5 %uah interest rate as basis (2011: 5.7 %). The
assumption is based on yield data for long-termegawent securities with 10-year maturity;

« The assumption for the future level of the salaiselsased on the information provided by the
Company’s management and amounts to 5 % annualtlygrosmpared to the prior reporting
period (2011: 5 %);

« Mortality rate — in accordance with the table isbby the National Statistics Institute for the
total mortality rate of the population in Bulgafa the period 2009 - 2011 (2011: 2008 - 2010);

» Staff turnover rate — from 0 % to 16 % for the fage groups formed (2011: from 0% to 16%).

The management of the parent company is still imogess of research, calculation and assessment of
the effects of the changes IAS 19 (amended) "Employee Benefits" (in force donual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 — endorse@6Y together with the actuaries whose professional
services it uses with regard to the applicationA$ 19. The management has concluded that this
amendment will affect Group's accounting policied e value and classification of its liabilitiasd
performance with regard to the recognising of sqbeat remeasurements directly in other
comprehensive income (equity component) and ndhénconsolidated income statement as well as
prior period restatements for such subsequent rmimements reported through the consolidated income
statementThe specific calculation of the amounts of the @#eby individual components affected by
the eventual retrospective restatement as at 1ladaR012 are related with certain practical actifoms
collection of information from prior reporting peds, which are in a process of performance.

32. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

As at 31 December, the finance lease liabilities ander revocable contracts for motor vehicles
acquisition. They are presented net of the intethestin the future and are as follows:

Term 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
Up to one year (Note 39) 1,011 610
Over one year 2,509 1,534
3,520 2,144
a0
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The minimum lease payments under finance leaséweras follows:

Term 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000

Up to one year 1,512 796
From one to three years 3,583 1,836
5,095 2,632

Future finance costs under finance leases (1,575) (488)
3,520 2,144

The lease payments due within the next 12 monthspeesented in the consolidated statement of
financial position as ‘other current liabilitiesUéte 39).

33. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

The non-current liabilities as at 31 December 20tRide:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

BGN'000 BGN'000
Government gran (financing) on concluded agreemer
for gratuitous financial aid under European proggam 2,567 1,330
Obligation for purchase of ailable-for-sale
investments 45 38
2,612 1,368

The current portion of the grants at the amourB@N 463 (31 December 2011: BGN 346 thousand)
will be recognised as current income over the l1athw following the date of the consolidated
statements of financial position and is presenteteu'Other current liabilities' (Note 39).
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34. SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS

The short-term bank loansf the Groupas at 31 December are as follows:

Currency Contracted amount Haoesnc 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
‘000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Bank loans (overdrafts)
EUR 20,000 31.05.2013 39,091 39,095
EUR 12,500 17.02.2013 24,384 15,127
EUR 10,000 31.01.2013 19,558 19,558
BGN 10,000 31.01.2013 10,003 10,003
EUR 5,000 01.05.2013 9,785 23,595
usb 4,000 01.05.2013 5,936 6,027
EUR 3,000 25.04.2013 5,859 -
EUR 1,968 01.05.2013 3,632 3,508
EUR 4,000 31.05.2013 3,359 -
EUR 3,000 28.09.2013 2,858 5,864
EUR 2,050 31.07.2013 2,252 108
BGN 500 20.09.2013 285 100
EUR 5,000 30.11.2012 - 8,789
UAH 7,000 07.06.2012 - 1,329
RUB 3,000 15.07.2012 - 145
127,002 133,248
Credit lines
BGN 23,470 31.01.2013 19,772 See Note 29.
EUR 8,434 31.01.2013 15,909 15,983
BGN 18,000 31.07.2013 15,028 286
EUR 5,000 31.08.2013 9,772 9,774
EUR 3,000 25.08.2013 5,863 5,863
EUR 2,500 20.11.2013 4,851 -
EUR 2,500 06.09.2013 3,865 2,405
EUR 2,500 31.08.2013 1,803 2,192
EUR 66 31.01.2013 129 129
76,992 36,632
Total 203,994 169,880

The bank loans obtained in Euro are contractedtatdst rate determined on the basis of EURIBOR
plus a mark-up of up to 4.09 points, loans in BGRienthly SOFIBOR plus a mark-up of up to 3.75
points and in USD — LIBOR plus a mark-up of up 1853(2011: EURIBOR plus a mark-up of up to 4.5
points, loans in BGN — monthly SOFIBOR plus a mapkef 2 points and in RUB — fixed interest rate
of 16%). Loans are intended for providing workirapital.

The following special pledges have been establigtgedollateral for the above loans in favour of the
creditor banks:

92
This is a translation from Bulgarian of the consglalied financial statements of Sopharma Group far 2612.



SOPHARMA GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

- machinery and equipment (Note 16);
- raw materials, consumables and finished produoiée(IR3);

- trade receivables (Note 24).

35. TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payableinclude: 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
Payables to suppliers 53,760 62,109
Advances from clients 1,482 3,427
55,242 65,536
Thepayables to suppliernsfer to: 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
Suppliers outside Bulgaria 38,988 32,656
Suppliers from Bulgaria 14,772 29,544
53,760 62,109

The payables to suppliers are regular, interestdred refer to supplies of materials, goods andcees.
The common credit period for which no interesthiarged for trade payables is up to 180 days.

The payables to suppliers are denominated as fellow
- in EUR — BGN 32,907 thousand (31 December 200ANER7,302 thousand);
- in BGN: BGN 14,499 thousand (31 December 2011NBX3,184 thousand);
-in USD: BGN 1,467 thousand (31 December 2011: BBB80 thousand);

- in other foreign currency: BGN 4,887 thousand [&tember 2011: BGN 4,043 thousand).
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36. PAYABLES TO RELATED PARTIES

Thepayables to related partiggfer to:

Payables to companies under a common indirectadhiough
key managing personnel

Payables to companies under a common control
Payables to main shareholding companies
Payables to other related parties

Thepayables to related partidsy type are as follows:

Payables for supplies of goods and materials
Payables for supplies of services
Other

The payables to related parties are regular, deraied in BGN, interest-free and are not additignall

secured through a special pledge or guaranteecb@tbup.

37. PAYABLES TO PERSONNEL AND FOR SOCIAL SECURITY

Payables to personnel and for social secuiitglude:

Payables to personnel, including:
current wages and salaries

accruals on unused compensated leaves
tantieme

Payables for social security/health insurancepitiolg:
current payables for social security/healtlsurance
contributions

accruals on unused compensated leaves

31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
1,237 -

250 1,650

19 1,540

18 170

1,560 3,360
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
1,501 930

39 2,377

20 53

1,560 3,360

31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
5,366 4,339
2,478 2,477
1,261 1,051
1,627 811
1,258 1,148
1,071 984
187 164
6,624 5,487
94
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38. TAX PAYABLES

Tax payablesnclude:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000

VAT 1,603 2,183
Income tax 397 322
Individual income taxes payable 367 419
Withholding taxes 14 100
Other 27 22
2,408 3,046

By the date of issue of these consolidated findisté@ements the following inspections and auditgeh
been performed in the Group companies:
Inspection under

Full scope VAT the social security
Company tax audit inspection legislation

Sopharma AD 31.12.2010 30.11.2011 31.10.2008
Sopharma Trading AD 31.12.2011 31.12.2011 31.12.2004
Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD 31.12.2009 31.01.2010 31.12.2008
Biopharm Engineering AD 31.12.2009 31.10.2010 29.02.2008
Momina Krepost AD 31.12.2005 31.10.2006 31.10.2006
Pharmalogistica AD 31.12.2005 31.03.2007 none
Sopharma Buildings ADSIC none 30.09.2012 none
Electroncommerce EOOD 31.12.2005 30.04.2006 none
Unipharm AD 31.12.2005 30.04.2006 31.03.2007
Ivanchich and Sinovi OOD 31.08.2011 31.08.2011 31.08.2011
Vitamina AD 30.06.2010 14.09.2011 31.03.2012
Sopharma Zdrovit AD — in liquidation 30.09.2011 30.09.2011 30.09.2011
Briz OOD 20.07.2007 19.08.2010 31.12.2012
Brititrade SOOO 31.12.2011 31.12.2011 31.12.2011
Tabina OO0 30.09.2010 30.09.2010 30.09.2006
ZAO Interpharm 31.10.2007 31.10.2007 30.06.2006
Vivaton Plus OO0 29.02.2012 29.02.2012 29.02.2012

The companies Sopharma Poland OOD - in liquidati®toland Sopharma Warsaw EOOD — Poland,
Sopharma Ukraine OOD — Ukraine, Extab Corporati®@AUExtab Pharma Limited — United Kingdom
and Phyto Palauzovo AD - Bulgaria have not beerjestlto tax inspections or audits related to the
social security legislation.

Tax audit of the companies in Bulgaria is performéthin a 5-year period after the end of the year
when the tax return for the respective liabilitys lseen submitted. The tax audit confirms finally tax
liability of the respective company-tax liable pmrsexcept in the cases explicitly stated by law.
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For the companies outside Bulgaria a tax audieisopmed as follows: in Ukraine, Russia, Latvia and
Belarus — within a term of three years, in Polangithin a term of five years, and in Serbia — witlai
term of ten years.

39. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other current liabilitiesinclude: 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000

Awarded amounts under litigations 1,339 602
Finance lease liabilities (Note 32) 1,011 610
Liabilities under sold rights from shares issue 882 884
Dividends payable 539 952
Government grants (Note 33) 463 346
Deductions from work salaries 219 245
Other 137 195
4,590 3,830

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Litigations
Sopharma AD

In 2011, Sopharma AD started arbitrary proceedbefere the International Chamber of Commerce in
Paris against a client in relation with unpaid digspof goods at the amount of EUR 1,034 thousand
(BGN 2,022 thousand). On its part, the client fiedcounter-claim for the amount of EUR 2,426
thousand (BGN 4,745 thousand) for damages causednjugtifiable termination of a distribution
contract by Sopharma AD. By ruling of the CourtAgbitration in Paris dated 23 October 2012, the
claim of Sopharma AD was satisfied and the couol&m was rejected.

In 2013 the Court of Arbitration in Paris will trhe complementary claim of Sopharma AD for
compensation on loss of business suffered as & mfsdamage on the image of the Company for the
amount of EUR 1,770 thousand. The Court rulinghenarbitration costs is also pending.

Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD

According to a ruling of the Appellate Court in 80fACS) as an instance for appeal the Company was
ordered to pay liabilities to a foreign supplieheTprincipal, interest and expenditures at the arnofi
USD 713 thousand (BGN 1,058 thousand), including thitial payable under the supply, are
recognised in full in the statement of financiakition of the Group. In 2012, additional expenses o
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interest, penalties and litigation expenditureshattotal amount of BGN 481 thousand were charged.
As at 31 December 2011 the litigation was not fasal. The Group recognised litigation provision at
the amount of BGN 102 thousand in this regard.

At the date of issue of these consolidated findrati@ements, cassation appeals were lodged to the
Supreme Court of Cassation (SCC) and a guaranttee aamount of BGN 577 thousand (USD 389
thousand) was paid to the SCC account withoutrtterést and expenditures for stopping the execution
of the ACS ruling. By an order of 11 January 20h8 SCC ruled that the implementation of the
appellate ruling of ACS of 8 November 2012 shalktmpped.

Biopharm Engineering AD

In 2010, the company was a subject of full-scogeatait, including under the application of VATArfo
periods from 1 February 2007 to 31 October 201Gh#issued tax assessment notice, dated 23 June
2011, the tax authorities assessed tax liabilthethe state budget at the amount of BGN 288 thulisa
(principal and interest) under the VATA for previoreporting periods.

The company appealed entirely the results of thadait before the Administrative Court in Burgas.

By Decision No 394/19.02.2012 the Administrativeu@dn Bulgas rejected the additional liabilities
assessed to the company. The decision has notaperaled by the regulatory bodies and has been
accepted as final in favour of the company.

PAO Vitamini

The company is subject to two administrative lgmalceedings, started after 1 January 2013, and are
related to an appeal of administrative acts — eostaules from 2012 regarding import of
pharmaceutical products on Ukrainian territory. {lage related to customs sanctions imposed for a
total of UAH 3,411 thousand (BGN 622 thousand).

The management of the group considers that theseirgm are not payable and the appeal of the
customs rules would be successful and the couescasuld be concluded in PAO Vitamini, Ukraine’s
favor. Therefore, in the consolidated financiakestgents no provision is recognized in regards & th
court cases in progress.

Issued and granted quarantees

Sopharma AD

The company is a co-debtor under received banksl@aml lease contracts and a guarantor of the
following companies outside the Group before banks:
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Amount in
original Status of the
Maturity Currency currency debt
31.12.2012
BGN'000 BGN'000
Sopharma Properties ADSIC  29.12.2020 EUR 30,00( 58,67¢ 54,76:
Energoinvestment AD 28.08.2013 BGN 2,00( 2,00( o1€
Mineralcommerce AD 20.09.2017 EUR 10C 19¢ 18¢€
Mineralcommerce AD 19.12.2013 EUR 25 49 43

60,920 55,510

The company has provided inventories at the amofuBGN 2,583 thousand in favour of a bank as
collateral under a bank loan received by a subsidia

Bank guarantees

Sopharma Trading AD

The bank guarantees issued for the company amoB®GN 7,382 thousand (31 December 2011: BGN
7,277 thousand) and are to guarantee paymentppdiens of goods, for good performance — ensuring
future deliveries of pharmaceutical and medicaldpats to hospitals under concluded contracts,
customs office guarantees and tender participation.

The bank guarantees have been issued by:

31.12.201 31.12.201
BGN'000 BGN'000

SG Expressbhank AD 3,74¢ 3,63
BNP Paribas — Bulgaria Branch 1,01¢ 2,44:
Raiffeisenbank (Bulgaria) EAD 2,617 -
Alpha Bank - Bulgaria Branch - 1,04:
UniCredit Bulbank - 15E

7,382 7,277

The collateral for issued bank guarantees is dasl

* Special pledge on goods in circulation at the arhafirBGN 8,801 thousand (31 December
2011: BGN 8,801 thousand) (Note 23).

e Special pledge on TFA (motor vehicles) with a cagyamount of BGN 487 thousand (31
December 2011: BGN 1,001 thousand) (Note 16).

e As at 31 December 2011 - special pledge on reckisdbom clients at the amount of BGN
3,912 thousand (Note 24).
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« As at 31 December 2011 — pledge on ordinary deimfiterd securities within the meaning of
the Public Offering of Securities Act (shares isbugy Sopharma AD, Bulgarian Rose
Sevtopolis AD, Unipharm AD, Momina Krepost AD) aetamount of BGN 2,087 thousand.

Unipharm AD

Bank guarantees at the amount of BGN 29 thousamd igsued as at 31 December 2012 within the
limits of loan agreements stating collateral akofus:

» Pledge on inventories at the amount of EUR 50 thotigBGN 98 thousand);

e Promissory Note for the amount of EUR 59 thousd@@N 115 thousand) together with the
annual interest at the rate of 6%.

The following collateral has been provided undeagreement for the issue of multiple bank guarantee
of 23 February 2012:

» Pledge on current and future movables (materiatgshied products, goods) with carrying
amount of BGN 200 thousand;

» Pledge on receivables under current and futurentieccounts opened in DSK Bank EAD.

Assets held under safe custody

Sopharma Trading AD
According to concluded pre-distribution contradtse company has received goods for safe custody
amounting to BGN 449 thousand as at 31 Decembet @1 December 2011: BGN 965 thousand).

Significant irrevocable agreements and commitments

Sopharma AD

Sopharma AD concluded a contract with a supplier tfiie purchase and implementation of an
integrated information system Microsoft Dynamics Aof the amount of BGN 3,700 thousand (EUR
1,892 thousand)'he deadline for implementation of the informat&ystem is the first half of 2013.

In 2011, the Company assumed a self-participatnmitment at the amount of BGN 3,997 thousand
under a contract for gratuitous financial aid undyperational Programme "Development of the
Competitiveness of the Bulgarian Economy" 2007 230The execution of the contract is related with
acquisition of machinery and equipment. At the datepreparation of the consolidated financial
statements, the company has purchased the maclandrgquipment subject of the financing at the
amount of BGN 7,574 thousand and filed a requestefimind of BGN 3,787 thousand to the contracting
authority of the Operational Programme — Direce@teneral European Funds for Competitiveness at
the Ministry of Economy, Energy and Tourism.
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Unipharm AD

The company is beneficiary under two agreementgratuitous financial aid with the Bulgarian Small
and Medium Enterprises Promotion Agency and thedNat Innovation Fund . The commitments of
the company under these agreements are for a parfod years.

According to the clauses of the agreements, thgitienfixed and intangible assets acquired usimgl$u
under the projects should remain within the asskthe beneficiary and in the region of the reapie
(the territory of the Republic of Bulgaria) for @ertn of minimum five years after the total investien
project is executed. On non-compliance with thesgiirements, the financing shall be returned. At th
date of preparation of the consolidated financiatesnents, all contractual requirements were being
fulfilled.

Under the project "Modernisation and DevelopmenUafpharm AD", concluded with the Bulgarian
Small and Medium Enterprises Promotion Agency, tdren of the engagement started in November
2011 while under the project "Development of a Nelemodialysis Solution and Proving its
Therapeutic Effect" to the National Innovation Fuhd term of the engagement started in 2010.

As at 31 December 2012, the funding obligation teslawith the project "Modernisation and
Development of Unipharm AD" amounts to BGN 1,866usand (2011: BGN 2,168 thousand) while
that for the project "Development of a New Haemlygia Solution and prove its Therapeutic Effect" —
BGN 184 thousand (2011: BGN 242 thousand) (Notear?339).

Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD

The company undertook an engagement under a cofdragranting gratuitous financial aid, concluded
with the Bulgarian Small and Medium Enterprisesnistion Agency at the Ministry of Economy and

Energy under Operational Programme "Developmentthaef Competitiveness of the Bulgarian

Economy" 2007 — 2013 in relation with a project feechnological renovation and modernisation of
tablets production. The term of the contract i®arg.

The term commenced on 9 February 2011 and accotditige contract the product should not suffer
significant changes referring to its nature, thaditions of its performance or leading to unjustifie
benefits for the company as well as changes reduttam modification in the nature of ownership of
infrastructural component or discontinuance of patidn activities. On non-compliance with these
requirements, the financing shall be returned (Bl@8 and 39). At the date of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, all contracteqlirements were being fulfilled.

Biopharm Engineering AD

The company assumed a self-participation commitraettie amount of BGN 2,708 thousand under a
contract for financing under Operating ProgrammesvV&opment of the Competitiveness of the
Bulgarian Economy" 2007 — 2013. The execution efabntract is envisaged to last 20 months as of 11
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November 2011 and is related with financing thechase of property, plant and equipment. At the date
of these consolidated financial statements no atscave been drawn under this project.

Operating lease liabilities

Sopharma Trading AD

The significant revocable contracts as at 31 Deegrfdr the assets obtained under operating le@se ar

as follows:

31 December 2012
Lease contract for real estate (SFi
contract tern
until 1 September 20;
annual lease payme BGN 682 thousar

Lease contract for real este

* contract tern

until 1 November 201

annual lease payme BGN 68 thousar

Other lease contracts f
* machinery and equipme- 2 with total annus
lease payment of BGN 40 thousand

31 December 2011
Lease contract for real estate (SFE
contract tern
until 15 November 201
annual lease payme BGN 682 thousar

Lease contract for real est:

* contract tern

until 1 November 201

annual lease payme BGN 68 thousar

Otherlease contracts fc
* machinery and equipme- 2 with total annua
lease payment of BGN 40 thousand

The future minimum rental payments due under akafing lease contracts are as follows:

Up to 1 year
From 1 to 3 years
From 3 to 5 years
Over 5 years

Other

31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN'000 BGN'000
79C 79C
1,50(C 1,50(
1,42¢ 1,50(
261/ -
6,33( 3,79(

Sopharma AD has met its obligations under the Wislsteagement Act (WMA) and therefore, has not
included a product charge liability in the consatell statement of financial position regardlesthef
fact that the official document evidencing that Eapack (the organization in which the parent
company is a member) has fulfilled its commitmamder WMA, has not been issued yet at the date of

preparation of these financial statements.
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41. SEGMENT REPORTING

The segment reporting in the Group is organisedthen basis of two basic business segments —
‘production of pharmaceutical products' and ‘disttion of pharmaceutical products (goods)'. Theigro
‘other" includes mainly production and distributmfmon-pharmaceutical products.

Theitems of income, expenses and result of busineggrmntsdetermined in the Group include:

Production of Distribution of Other Elimination Consolidated
pharmaceutical pharmaceutical
products products (good:

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'0O00 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'0O00 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000

External sales 123,48t 130,75¢ 550,58 502,69¢ 14,50¢ 11,27 - - 688,57¢ 644,73
Intersegmental sales 113,96¢ 109,01« 67 - 223 314 (114,259) (109,328) - -
Total revenue 237,45 239,77. 550,65« 502,69¢ 14,727 11,591 (114,259 (109,328 688,57¢ 644,73
Segment result (margin)  114,59: 118,60 52,60:  40,40¢ 4,49: 3,41¢ (22,693) (9,646) 148,99t 152,78
Non-allocated operating income 2,32¢ 1,77¢
Non-allocated operating expenses (105,855) (108,533)
Profit from operations 45,46¢ 46,02¢
Finance (costs)/income, net (3,298) (4,700)
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries (37) -
Losses from associates, net (56) (406)
Gain on net monetary position from restatemenhjgrerinflation 823 4,12€
Profit before income tax 42,900 45,04¢
Income tax expen (4,934 (4,620
Net profit for the year before statutory dividend for distribution 37,96 40,42t
Statutory dividend for distribution (6) (89)
Net profit for the year 37,960 40,33¢
Attributable to equity holders of the parent 35,196 38,404
Non-controlling interest 2,764 1,932
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Theassets and liabilitiesf the business segments include:

Assets by business segn Production of Distribution of Other Total
pharmaceutical produc! pharmaceutical product
(goods)
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

BGN'00C  BGN'00( BGN'00C BGN'O0C BGN'00( BGN'00( BGN'00C  BGN'00(

Property, plant and equipment 92,309 83,298 39,848 38,855 8,115 7,844 140,272 129,997
Inventories 71,487 70,072 58,028 54,571 1,435 1,383 130,950 126,026
Receivables from related parties 57,915 62,065 3,652 382 - - 61,568 62,447
Trade receivables 26,231 36,956 126,462 93,714 7,814 6,194 160,507 136,864
Segment assets 247,942 252,391 227,991 187,522 17,364 15,421 493,297 455,334
Non-allocated assets 252,121 221,254
Total assets 745,148 676,588
Liabilities by business segment Production of Distribution of Other Total
pharmaceutical proucts pharmaceutical product
(goods)
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

BGN'O0O0 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'O00 BGNO000 BGN'000 BGN'000

Payables to personnel and for social

security 1,601 1,059 1,348 1,259 218 233 3,167 2,551
Trade payables 11,178 21,127 43,336 43,375 63€ 970 55,150 65,472
Payables to related parties 29 2,192 1,525 1,353 - - 1,554 3,545
Segment liabilities 12,808 24,378 46,209 45,987 854 1,203 59,871 71,568
Non-allocated liabilities 294,194 239,200
Total liabilities 354,065 310,776

The capital expenditures, depreciation/amortisatiand non-monetary expenses other than
depreciation/amortisation by business segniecitide:

Production of Distribution of Other Total
pharmaceutical pharmaceutical
products products (goods)
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

BGN'O0O0 BGN'O00 BGN'O00 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'0O00 BGN'O00 BGN'000

Capital expenditures 61,15 31,431 5,002 2,54¢ 63 62¢ 66,22 34,60¢

Depreciation/amortisation 9,01¢ 8,084 2,434 2,221 42C 19¢ 11,87( 10,50:
Non-monetary expenses, other

than depreciation and

amortisation 818 1,34¢ 1,10¢ 1,46¢ - - 1,92¢ 2,81z
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The distribution of Group revenuy type and by geographic aréeaas follows:

Bulgaria Europe Other countries Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
BGN'00
BGN'00( BGN'OO(  BGN'00( 0 BGN'00( BGN'00( BGN'00( BGN'00(
Sales of finished products 85,702 88,960 160,76% 141,16° 19,79t 17,40¢ 266,26: 247,535
Sales of gooc 387,72: 371,76! 34,598 25,43 - - 422,31 397,19¢

473,42« 460,725  195,36( 166,598 19,79¢  17,40¢ 688,57¢ 644,731

The carrying amount as at 31 December 2012 of Gsonpn-current assets other than financial
instrumentsgistributed by geographic are# as follows:

Bulgaria Europe Other countries Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
BGN'O0O0 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000

Property, plant and

equipmen 268,03: 217,56: 23,730 18,48¢ 313 288 292,07¢  236,33¢
Intangible asse 16,06¢ 17,251 10,31: 10,64z - 86 26,38( 27,97¢
Investment property 5,90¢ 5,35¢ 1,20% 1,20C - - 7,11( 6,55

290,00¢ 240,16° 35,24 30,331 313 374 325,56« 270,87

The total revenue from transaction with the largdignts of the Group and the respective business
segment is as follows:

2012 % 2011 % business segment
BGN'000 BGN'000
Client 1 69,868 10% 77,968 12% Production of pharmaceutical products
Distribution of pharmaceutical products
Client 2 79,299 12% 68,072 11%  (goods)

Client 2 is an association of a group of entergrisgh similar business characteristics, whichuarder
common control by the Bulgarian state.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

In the ordinary course of business, the Group @m®exposed to a variety of financial risks the most
important of which are market risk (including cuney risk, risk of a change in the fair value aniter
risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and risk of intest-bearing cash flows. The general risk manageisen
focused on the difficulty to forecast the financiabrkets and to achieve minimizing the potential
negative effects that might affect the financiaules and position of the Group. The financial siske
currently identified, measured and monitored thiougrious control mechanisms in order to establish
adequate prices for the finished products and seswf the Group companies and the borrowed thereby
capital, as well as to assess adequately the mairlceimstance of its investments and the forms for
maintenance of free liquid funds through preventindue risk concentrations.

Risk management is currently performed by the mamagt of the parent company and respectively,
the management of the subsidiaries, in line with pblicy defined by the Board of Directors of the

parent. The Board of Directors has approved the lmciples of general financial risk management,
on the basis of which specific procedures have lestblished for management of the separate specifi
types of risk such as currency, price, interestditrand liquidity risk and the risk of use of non-

derivative instruments.

The structure of financial assets and liabiliteas follows:

Financial assets 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN '000 BGN '000
269,170 264,673
Loans and receivables, including: 245,745 244,701
Receivables and loans (Notes 21, 22, 24, 25 ajhd 26 229,978 212,46¢
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 27) 15,767 32,235
Available-for-sale financial assets 23,425 19,972
Available-for-sale investmen{dlote 20) 23,425 19,972
Financial liabilities 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 331,225 287,909
Short-term and long-term bank loans
(Notes 29 and 34) 270,397 217,695
Other loans and liabilities
(Notes 32, 33, 35, 36 and 39) 60,828 70,214
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Currency risk

The Group companies perform their operations witive exchange with foreign suppliers and clients
and therefore, they are exposed to currency risk.

The Group through the parent company suppliesgfats basic raw materials consumables in USD.
The currency risk is related with the adverse ftgabf the exchange rate of USD against BGN inritu
business transactions as to the recognised asgbifahilities denominated in foreign currency aaxl

to the net investments in foreign companies.

The companies abroad perform sales mainly to tbal lmarkets, which leads to currency risk to their
currencies as well — Ukrainian Grivna (UAH), Serblainar (RSD), Russian Ruble (RUB), Latvian Lat
(LVL), Belarus Ruble (BRUB).

As at 31 December 2012, the total inflation in Betafor the last three years exceeded 100% and
Belarus was regarded a hyperinflationary economlyichvto a large degree resulted in increased
volatility of the functional currency exchange ratiethe companies operating in such environment to
Group's presentation currency. As far as all o§¢hmacroeconomic effects were beyond the control of
the Group companies operating in Belarus the mamageof the Group undertook actions to control
this currency risk by regulating currently the wioxk capital of these companies and making effarts t
maintain a reasonable balance of their currentassw liabilities whereby to regulate on timelwgisa
the significant adverse effects for the Group adale.

The remaining part of more of Group companies’ apjens is usually denominated in BGN or EUR.

To control foreign currency risk, there is an impénted system in the whole Group for planning
import supplies, sales in foreign currency as veall procedures for daily monitoring of US dollar
exchange rates and control on pending paymentseXpmsures of almost all subsidiaries in Bulgasia t
the currency risk are insignificant because mosthef sales are performed to the local market in
Bulgarian Levs (BGN). The import of goods is penfied entirely in Euro (EUR). The loans
denominated in foreign currency have been grantathlpnin EUR. Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD
maintains assets and liabilities in foreign curiesqcash, payables to suppliers) originated iorpri
periods, which are denominated in USD and as db&jember 2012 it expanded its net exposure to
currency risk towards USD compared to prior period.

The assets and liabilities of the Group denominateBGN and foreign currency are presented as
follows:
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31 December 2012 in BGN in EUR in BRUB in USD in other Total
currency

BGN'00C BGN'00C BGN'00C BGN '00C BGN '00C BGN '00C

Available-for-sale financial assets 19,021 - 3 - 4,401 23,425
Loans and receivables, including: 170,745 61,984 2,110 1,242 9,664 245,745
Receivables and loans 160,323 59,288 1,861 - 8,50¢ 229,978
Cash and cash equivalents 10,422 2,69¢ 249 1,242 1,158 15,767
Total financial assets 189,766 61,984 2,113 1,242 14,065 269,170

Short-term and long-term bank

loans 83,915 180,546 - 5,936 - 270,397

Other loans and liabilities 17,533 32,795 3,423 2,213 4864 60,828

Total financial liabilities 101,448 213,341 3,423 8,149 4,864 331,225

31 December 2011 in BGN in EUR in BRUB in USD in other Total
currency

BGN'00C BGN'00C BGN'00C BGN '00C BGN '00C BGN '00C

Available-for-sale financial assets 17,160 - - - 2,812 19,972
Loans and receivables, including: 149,384 82,117 1,683 2,011 9,506 244,701
Receivables and loans 131,193 70,783 1419 993 8,078 212,46¢
Cash and cash equivalents 18,191 11,334 264 1,018 1,428 32,235
Total financial assets 166,544 82,117 1,683 2,011 12,318 264,673

Short-term and long-term bank

loans 10,389 199,805 - 6,027 1,474 217,695
Other loans and liabilities 31,752 29,311 1,193 4,353 3,605 70,214
Total financial liabilities 42,141 229,116 1,193 10,380 5,079 287,909

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The foreign currency sensitivity of the Group exjres is mainly related the US Dollar (USD) and the
Belarus Ruble (BRUB) as a currency in hyperinflagioy economy. The foreign currency risk of the
Group is limited with regard to the other foreigmmencies in which certain Group companies operate
Latvian Lat, Ukrainian Grivna, Serbian Dinar andli$to Zloty — because the exposures in these
companies are relatively small and are more easgulated by the managing bodies of the respective
subsidiaries. The effect of foreign currency sévigitto 10 % increase/decrease in current exchange
rates of BGN to US Dollar, Belarus Ruble and inagahto the other foreign currency exposures, based
on the structure of foreign currency assets ariiliies at 31 December and on the assumptionttieat
influence of all other variables is ignored, hasrbeneasured and presented as impact on the post-tax
consolidated financial result and on the equitthef Group.
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Foreign currency sensitivity analysis UsD
2012 2011
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Financial result + (622) (753)
Accumulated profits  + (622) (753)
Financial result - 622 753
Accumulated profits - 622 753
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis BRUB

2012 2011

BGN '000 BGN '000

Financial result + (118) 44
Accumulated profits  + (118) 44
Financial result - 118 (44)
Accumulated profits - 118 (44)

On 10% increase in the exchange rate of USD to BG&ultimate impact on Group’s (post-tax) profit

for 2012 would be a decrease by BGN 622 thousahd@%) and for 2011 — a decrease by BGN 753
thousand (-2.0%). The effect in terms of value anup’s equity — through the component ‘retained
earnings’ — would be the same.

On 10% decrease in the exchange rate of USD to BNultimate impact on the (post-tax) profit of
the Group would be equal and reciprocal of theedtabove.

On 10% increase in the exchange rate of BRUB to BN ultimate impact on Group’s (post-tax)
profit for 2012 would be a decrease by BGN 118 dlama (-0.33%) and for 2011 — an increase by BGN
44 thousand (0.1%). The effect in terms of valugGpoup’s equity — through the component ‘retained
earnings’ — would be the same.

On 10% decrease in the exchange rates of USD atdBBR BGN, the ultimate impact on the (post-
tax) profit of the Group would be equal and reciaioof the stated above.

The impact of the remaining currencies (other tb&Dollar, Belarus Ruble and Latvian Lat) on 10%
increase in their exchange rates to BGN on Grop&st-tax) profit is in increase by BGN 721
thousand (for 2011: increase by BGN 715 thousarig. effect on equity is of the same amount and in
a direction of a decrease and reflects in the compb'retained earnings’.
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Group’s management is of the opinion that the prieseabove currency sensitivity analysis based on
the balance sheet structure of foreign currencyhimated assets and liabilities is representativehie
usual currency sensitivity of the Group for theasimg year.

Price risk
The Group companies are exposed to price riskvehitories based on three main factors:

(a) a possible increase of purchase prices of raw rat@nd consumables, since a significant portion
of the raw materials used are imported and thagsept a significant share of production costs;

(b) a possible increase in supplier prices of gooddudling as a result of hyperinflation for the
subsidiaries in Belarus; and

(c) the growing competition on the Bulgarian pharmacaltmarket, affecting the prices of
pharmaceuticals.

For the purpose of mitigating this influence, thanagement of the Group applies a strategy aimed at
optimisation of production costs, validation ofeaftative suppliers that offer beneficial commercial
conditions, expanding product range by means of gemeric products development and last but not
least, adoption of a flexible marketing and pricdéiqy. Price policy is a function of three main tiars —
structure of expenses, prices of competitors anchpsing capacity of customers.

The Group is exposed to a significant price risoakith regard to the shares held thereby, classds
available-for-sale investments, mostly through plagent company. For this purpose, the management
monitors and analyses all changes in security nsded also uses consulting services of one of the
most authoritative in the country investments imiediaries. In addition, at this stage, becausdef t
economic and financial crisis, the management &ksnt a decision for a significant reduction in its
operations on stock markets, retaining of the paseld shares for longer periods with current
monitoring of the reported by the respective issfirancial and business indicators as well as the
development of the operations in the environmerrisfs.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that any of the Group’sedlis will fail to discharge in full and within thrrmally
envisaged terms the amounts due under trade rbtesval he latter are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position at net value afteducting the impairment related to doubtful and ba
debts. Such impairment is made where and when &vleate existed identifying loss due to
uncollectability as per previous experience.

In the years of its trade experience, the Groupimmgdemented different schemes of distribution to
reach its efficient approach of today, in confogmitith the market conditions, using various ways of
payment as well as relevant trade discounts. Thmu@works on its main markets with counterparts
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with history of their relations on main markets,igthinclude a big number of licensed Bulgarian and
foreign traders of pharmaceuticals.

The cooperation with the state hospitals also regthie implementation of deferred payments policy.
There is a concentration of significant credit iiskhis type of counterparts that form 48 % of Grs trade
receivables (31 December 2011: 40%). Its is miigjahrough implemented procedures for selection and
current monitoring of the liquidity and financidhbility of these trade partnei®n delay in payments of
the receivables from these counterparts, the Ghagset a period of 30 days after which it starts
activities for collection of receivables. With reddo hospitals, in case of 30 days of delay afterdate

on which the credit period expires, interest folagles being charged and if delays persist aftethér

30 days, a meeting with the management is arrafayetie purpose of signing rescheduling agreement.
If the agreement is not complied with, legal pratirgs are initiated. With regard to clients —
pharmacies, on a 5-day delay after the expiry efdtedit period, the sales under deferred payment
terms are suspended. If delinquencies continu¢hed3' day all sales are ceased and negotiations are
held for concluding an agreement. If the agreerigemdt complied with, legal proceedings are indtht

Deferred payments (credit sales) to other counterae offered only to clients having long accooint
business relations with the Group, good finanaiaifion and no history of credit terms violations.

The credit policy of the Group envisages that evesw client shall be investigated with regard # it
creditworthiness prior to being offered the staddarms of supply and payment. The analysis, peedr
by the Group, includes but is not limited to visitclients premises, collection of information oonthly
turnovers and in some cased a promissory notegisregl in favour of the Group company for 130% -
135% of the credit granted. These limits are regitan a monthly basis. The clients that cannotrcihee
creditworthiness criteria may perform purchasesash.

Collectability of receivables is controlled dirgcthy the Executive Director, the Finance and Trade
Directors of the parent company and, respectivbly,the management of the subsidiaries. Their
responsibility is to provide operating control ardulate receivables in conformity with the actuairket
situation and the needs of the Group.

The Group has developed policy and proceduressesaghe creditworthiness of its counterparts and t
assign credit rating and credit limits by groupsl@nts.

The management of the Group currently monitorsragdlates the concentration of receivables by tlien
and counterpart.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has no condentiattrade receivables from a single counteribet
exceeds 10% of the total amount of trade receigsadgoresented in the consolidated statementasfdial
position. The concentration of the first five cliemwith regard to trade receivables of the Groupsis
follows:
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31.12.2012 % credit exposur 31.12.2011 % credit exposur

against the tote against the tote

amount of trade amount of trade

receivable receivable

BGN'000 BGN'000

Client 1 11,93t 7% 7,144 5%
Clieni 2 11,87( % 19,39( 14%
Clieni 3 9,58¢ 6% 7,00t 5%
Client 4 6,12¢ 4% 5,252 4%
Clieni5 5,14« 3% 4,22¢ 3%

The financial resources of the Group as well asétlement operations are concentrated in diffdfiest-
class banks. To distribute cash flows among thém, management of the parent company and the
subsidiaries take into consideration a great defaotors, as the amount of capital, reliabilitguidity, the
credit potential and rating of the bank etc.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the adverse situation when theo@r encounters difficulty in meeting unconditiogall

its obligations within their maturity, including t&use of the existence of hyperinflation and the
indexation of the trade accounts of the companpesating in such environment.

The Group generates and maintains a significantrel of liquid funds. An internal source of liquid
funds for the Group is its main economic activifyits companies generating sufficient operational
flows. Banks and other permanent counterparts septeexternal sources of funding. The existing open
positions in Belarusian Rubles (BRUB) and the hipgkation in this market in 2011 and 2012
represented an additional source of liquidity riskorder to isolate any possible general liquidisk,

the Group implements a system of alternative mash@nof acts and prognoses, the final aim being to
maintain good liquidity and, respectively, abilityfinance its economic activities. This is suppdened

by current monitoring of the maturities of assetd habilities, control over cash outflows and enirsy
their current balancing with inflows, including emgotiation of maturities and optimisation of debt
structure, increase and internal restructuringetifgenerated funds and their investment.

Maturity analysis

The table below presents the financial non-derreatissets and liabilities of the Group, classifigd
remaining term to maturity, determined against ¢batractual maturity at the consolidated financial
statements date. The table is prepared on the blsisdiscounted cash flows and the earliest date o
which the receivable and respectively, the paydddeome due for payment. The amounts include
principal and interest.
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31 December 2012 uptol from1lto: from3to€ from6ta fromltc from2to over £ Total
month months months 12 months 2 years 5 years years

BGN'00C  BGN'00C  BGN '00C BGN'000 BGN'00C BGN'000 BGN'00C  BGN '000
Available-for-sale financial
asset - - 2,73¢ - 20,69 - - 23,42t
Loans and receivables,
including: 94,831 40,187 31,202 73,662 6,387 3,833 911 251,013
Receivables and loans 81,188 38,050 31,202 73,662 6,387 3,833 911 235,233
Cash and cash equivale 13,64 2,137 - - - - - 15,78(
Total assets 94,831 40,187 33,936 73,662 27,078 3,833 911 274,438

Short-term and long-term bank

loans 66,397 26,273 77,549 47,762 12,387 29,062 24,064 283,494
Other loans and liabilities 29,213 23,900 3,194 2,295 814 2,987 - 62,403
Total liabilities 95,61( 50,173 80,74 50,05° 13,20: 32,04¢ 24,06 345,89
31 December 2011 uptol fromltc from3tc from6tol: fromltoz from2tok over £ Total
month 3 month¢ 6 month: months years: years year

BGN'00C BGN'00C BGN '000 BGN '000 BGN '00C BGN'000 BGN '000 BGN '00C
Available-for-sale financial
asset - - - - 17,102 2,870 - 19,972
:;]%?Sjl r?g,d receivables, 92,900 48,346 29,008 71,862 3,977 2,464 671 249,228
Receivables and loans 62,264 46,740 29,008 71,862 3,977 2,464 671 216,986
Cash and cash equivalents 30,63¢ 1,606 - - - - - 32,242
Total asset 92,900 48,346 29,008 71,862 21,079 5,334 671 269,200
Pnorvtermandlongtermbank 7,365 1206 48506 74805 2,772 5199 21,394 228,267
Other loans and liabilities 28,959 22,672 14,188 2,895 583 1,275 108 70,680
Total liabilities 103,324 23,898 62,694 77,700 3,355 6,474 21,502 298,947

Risk of interest-bearing cash flows

Interest-bearing assets are presented in the wsteuof Group’s assets by cash, bank deposits ams lo
granted, which are with fixed interest rate. Ondtteer hand, Group’s borrowings in the form of ldagnm
and short-term loans are usually with a floatirtgriest rate. This circumstance makes the cash b
Group partially dependent on interest risk. Thik i covered in two ways:

(a) optimisation of resources and structure of cresliburces for achieving relatively lower price of
attracted funds; and

(b) combined structure of interest rates on loans cgingrtwo components — a permanent one and a
variable one, the correlation between them, as aglheir absolute value, can be achieved and
maintained in a proportion favorable for the Gragmpanies. The permanent component has a
relatively low absolute value and sufficiently higdlative share in the total interest rate. This
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circumstance eliminates the probability of a sigaifit change in interest rate levels in case of
variable component updating. Thus the probabitity &n unfavourable change of cash flows is
reduced to a minimum.

The management of the Group companies togethertathof the parent company currently monitor and
analyse the exposure of the respective companetachanges in interest levels. Various scenaries ar

simulated taking into consideration refinancingiesgal of existing positions, and alternative finagc
Based on these scenarios, the impact of a defimexkst rate shift, expressed in points or pergentan the
financial result and equity is calculated. For esichulation, the same assumption for interest shift is
used for all major currencies. The calculationseaede for major interest-bearing positions.

Interest analysis interest-free with floating with fixed Total
31 December 2012 interest % interest %

BGN '00C BGN '00C BGN '00C BGN '00C
Available-for-sale financial assets 23,425 - - 23,425
Loans and receivables, including: 150,359 11,548 83,838 245,745
Receivables and loans 148,841 - 81,137 229,978
Cash and cash equivalents 1,518 11,548 2,701 15,767
Total financial assets 173,784 11,548 83,838 269,170
Short-term and long-term bank loans 334 269,760 303 270,397
Other loans and liabilities 57,311 3,517 - 60,828
Total financial liabilities 57,645 273,277 303 331,225
Interest analysis interest-free  with floating with fixed Total
31 December 2011 interest % interest %

BGN '00C BGN '000 BGN '00C BGN '00C
Available-for-sale financial assets 19,97: - - 19,97:
Loans and receivables, including: 148,53¢ 12,98: 83,18( 244.70:
Receivables and loans 142,30¢ - 70,157 212,46¢
Cash and cash equivalents 6,23( 12,98: 13,02: 32,23t
Total financial assets 168,51 12,98: 83,18( 264,67
Shor-term and lon-term bank loar 41¢ 217,27¢ - 217,69¢
Other loans and liabilities 68,05¢ 2,121 38 70,214
Total financial liabilities 68,47 219,39° 38 287,90¢
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The table below demonstrates the Group’s sengitivipossible changes in interest rates by 50 pbiased
on the structure of assets and liabilities as @d&ember and with the assumption that the infleeriall
other variables is ignored. The effect is measaretipresented as impact on the financial reselt tfkes
and respectively, on equity.

2012 Increase / decrease in Impact on post-tax Impact on equity -
interest rate financial result — increase/(decrease)
profit/(loss)
EUR increase (992) 29Q)
BGN increas (203, (203
usC increas (27) (27)
EUR decrease 992 992
BGN decrease 203 203
uUsD decrease 27 27
2011 Increase / decrease in Impact on post-tax Impact on equity -
interest rate financial result — increase/(decrease)
profit/(loss)
EUR increase (949) (949)
usD increase (26) (26)
BGN increase 46 46
EUR decreas 94¢ 94¢
uUsD decrease 26 26
BGN decrease (46) (46)

Capital risk management

The capital management objectives of the Groupt@reuild and maintain capabilities to continue its
operation as a going concern and to provide retmre investments of shareholders and economéfiteen
to other stakeholders and participants in its lassiras well as to maintain an optimal capital straco
reduce the cost of capital. Analogous approachpieal also at the level of a separate Group coynpéth
regard to its capital structure and financing.

The Group currently monitors capital availabilitydastructure on the basis of the gearing ratios Tdtio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital @mhdNet debt is calculated as total borrowingsrésu and
non-current ones) as presented in the consolidstegdment of financial position less cash and cash
equivalents. Total employed capital is calculatetha sum of equity and net debt.

It is a characteristic feature for both presentedagds that the Group finances its operations both
through its own generated profit and by maintairéngertain level of trade and other current payable
and loans (bank, commercial ones). In 2012, tregegly of the parent company management was to
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maintain the ratio within 35 - 45 % at a Group lg2®11: 30-35 %). The table below shows the ggarin
ratios based on capital structure as at 31 December

2012 2011

BGN'000 BGN'00

0

Total borrowings, including: 273,917 219,840
Bank loans 270,397 217,695
Loans and finance lease liabilities 3,520 2,145
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (15,767) (32,235)
Net debt 258,150 187,605
Total equity of the Group 345,879 319,999
Total capital of the Group 604,029 507,604
Gearing ratio 0.43 0.37

The liabilities shown in the table are disclosellaies 29, 32, 34 and 39.

Fair values

Fair value is generally the amount for which anetgsuld be exchanged, or a liability settled in an
arm's length transaction between independent ngilind knowledgeable parties. The Group’s policy is
to disclose in its financial statements mostly fag value of these assets and liabilities for vkhic
market quotations are available.

The fair value of financial instruments, which arat traded in active markets, is determined through
other valuation methods based on various valudagohniques and management assumptions made in
accordance with the market circumstances as artief the reporting period.

The fair value concept presumes realisation ofittencial instruments through sales. However, irstmo
cases especially in regard of trade receivablegpagdbles as well as loans and deposits with baimks,
Group expects to realise these financial assetstlateugh their total refund or respectively, sattent
over time. Therefore, they are presented at tieortised cost.

In addition, a large part of the financial assetd Babilities are either short-term in their na&\trade
receivables and payables, short-term loans) op@sented in the consolidated statement of financia
position at market value (deposits placed with Bainkvestments in securities) and therefore, tiadir
value is almost equal to their carrying amountt B&the investments in other companies as minority
interests represent an exception to this rule,esimather market nor objective conditions existhsat
their fair value could be reliably determined. Téfere, they are presented at acquisition cost)cost

As far as no sufficient market experience, stabditd liquidity exist in regards of purchases aalés
of certain financial assets and liabilities, stith adequate and reliable quotes of market prices ar
available thereof.
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The management of the parent company is of thei@pimat the estimates of the financial assets and
liabilities presented in the statement of finangiakition are as reliable, adequate and trustwoathy
possible for financial reporting purposes underekisting circumstances.

43. ACQUISITIONS AND INCREASES OF INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

43.1. Acquisition of subsidiaries
In 2012, the Group acquired the following subsigisr

date of % interest acquired net assets
acquisition at fair value
BGN '000
Brizpharm SOOO, Belarus 20.12.2012 26.01% (4)
Sopharma Ukraine EOOD, Ukraine 04.08.2012 100.00% 198
Phyto Palauzovo AD 21.09.2012 50.13% 95

The principal activities of the acquired subsidiarare disclosed in Note 1.

Brizpharm SOOO, Belarus, was acquired through tirehase of 51% of the capital by the subsidiary
Briz OOD, Latvia.

Phyto Palauzovo AD was established by BulgarianeR®svtopolis AD with interest of 95% in the
capital of the company amounting to BGN 95 thousand

Sopharma Ukraine EOOD, Ukraine, was establishe8dpharma AD through a contribution in-kind of
non-current assets at the amount of BGN 198 thalisan

In 2011, the Group acquired the following subsigisr

date of % interest acquired net assets

acquisition at fair value

BGN '000

Tabina 00O, Belarus 08.04.2011 50.49% 697
ZAO Interpharm, Belarus 17.12.2011 49.27% 1,233

The principal activities of the acquired subsidiarare disclosed in Note 1.

Tabina OOO, Belarus, and ZAO Interpharm, Belarugrewacquired through the purchase of
respectively 99% and 96.61% interest by the sudsidriz OOD, Latvia.

The acquisition of these subsidiaries in Belarustended for a future expansion of Group's maskate in
Belarus and the region.

In 2011, the Group acquired through its subsidiznig OOD, Latvia, also the company Superlats, lagtvi
with the purpose to sell it within 12 months (N2t&6).
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The carrying amounts and fair values of the neetassn acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 2.3) are

presented below:

In 2012:

Property, plant and equipment (Note 16)
Intangible assets (Note 17)

Inventories

Other receivables and assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Trade payables

Other current liabilities

Net assets

Non-controlling interest (%)
Share of non-controlling interest (BGN'000)
Net assets acquired by the Group

In 2011:

Property, plant and equipment (Note 16)
Intangible assets (Note 17)

Inventories

Trade receivables

Other receivables and assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade payables

Other current liabilities

Net assets

Non-controlling interest (%)
Share of non-controlling interest (BGN'000)
Net assets acquired by the Group

Brizpharm

fair value carrying amount

20.12.2012 20.12.2012

BGN'000 BGN'000

16 14

435 -

190 192

49 346

12 12

(421) (421)

(249) (249)

(48) (22)

(16) (128)

73.99% 73.99%

(12) (95)

(4) (33)

Tabina Interpharm Total

carrying carrying carrying
fair value amouni  fair value amouni  fair value amount

08.04.2011 08.04.2011 17.12.2011 17.12.2011
BGN'0OO0 BGN'O00 BGN'O00 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000

84 84 55 64 139 148
660 - 831 - 1491 0
671 671 788 788 1459 1459

2 2 3 3 5 5

473 473 12 12 485 485
30 30 45 45 75 75
(1,027)  (1,027) (211) (211)  (1,238) (1,238)
(196) (38) (290) (90) (486)  (128)
697 195 1,233 611 1,930 806

49.51% 49.51% 50.73%  50.73%

345 97 626 310 971 407
352 98 607 301 959 399

The investment price on the acquisition of subsieéaand the resulting goodwill at the date of the
transaction for acquisition of control by the pareompany itself were as follows:
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In 2012

Brizpharm

BGN'000

Acquisition cost
Amounts paid in current period 146
Share of the non-controlling interest in the inwestt on indirect acquisition (72)
Measurement to fair value of previous interesth®ydate of acquisition of control (33)
Total acquisition cost 42
Fair value of the acquired net assets (4)
Goodwill 46

Sopharma Ukraine EOOD, Ukraine, and Phyto PalauZdYownere established by Sopharma AD and
Bulgarian Rose Sevtopolis AD.

The cash outflows from acquisition of control weasefollows:

Cash flows on acquisition of control Brizpharm

BGN'000
Monetary payment 146
Cash and cash equivalents in the acquired companies (12)
Cash outflow on acquisition of control 134

The capital of Sopharma Warsaw at the amount of B&6Ithousand and that of Phyto Palauzovo AD
at the amount of BGN 95 thousand were paid in 2012.

In 2011:
Tabina Interpharm Total

BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Acquisition cost
Amounts paid in current period 4,607 3,142 7,749
Share of the non-controlling interest in the inwembt on
indirect acquisition (2,257) (1,539) (3,796)
Measurement to fair value of previous interesthwsy t
date of acquisition of control - (406) (406)
Total acquisition cost 2,350 1,197 3,547
Fair value of the acquired net assets 352 607 959
Goodwill 1,998 590 2,588
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Cash flows on acquisition of control Tabina Interpharm Total

BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Monetary payment 4,607 3,142 7,749
Cash and cash equivalents in the acquired companies (30) (45) (75)
Cash outflow on acquisition of control 4,577 3,097 7,674

43.2. Increasing interest (purchases from non-caoiting interest)

The Group performed the following transactionsgarchase of additional shares from non-controlling
interest:

In 2012:
Increases of interest transaction % change in acquired net
(purchases from non-controlling interest) date Interest assets
BGN '000
Biopharm Engineering AD 31.12.2012 27.72% 2,719
Unipharm AD 31.12.2012 0.16% 44
Momina Krepost AD 31.12.2012 0.20% 9
Brititrade 31.12.2012 0.51% 9
Bulgarian Rose AD 31.12.2012 0.01% -
2,781
In 2011:
Increases of interest transaction % change in acquired net
(purchases from non-controlling interest) date interest assets
BGN '000
Unipharm AD 31.12.2011 2.04% 591
Bulgarian Rose AD 31.12.2011 0.95% 219
Momina Krepost AD 31.12.2011 1.80% 89
Sopharma Buildings REIT 31.12.2011 0.05% 26
925
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The acquisition cost of the purchased additionaresh in 2012, the effects and the cash outflows,
relating to these transactions, were as follows:

Increases of interest Biopharm  Unipharm  Bulgarian Momina Brititrade Total
(purchases from non- Engineering AD Rose AD Krepost AD
controlling interest) AD

Bulgaria Bulgaria Bulgaria  Bulgaria

BGN'O0O0 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Acquisition cost (cost)

Paid through issue of capital (1,536) - - - - (1,536)
Monetary payment - (52) 3) (12) (132) (199)
Share of noreontrolling interes

on indirect acquisition (401)- - - - 65 (336)
Total acquisition cost (1,937)- (52) (3) (12) (67) (2,071))
Fair value of the acquired net

assets 2,719 44 - 9 9 2,781

Effects assumed by the Grou

the account of Group’s reserve

‘accumulated profit’ 782 (8) (3) (3) (58) 710
Cash outflow on increase of

interest (purchases from non-

controlling interest) - (52) (3) (12) (132) (199)

The acquisition cost of the purchased additionaresh in 2011, the effects and the cash outflows,
relating to these transactions, were as follows:

Increases of interest (purchases Unipharm Bulgarian Momina Sopharma Total
from non-controlling interest) AD Rose AD Krepost AD  Buildings
REIT
Bulgaria Bulgaria Bulgaria Bulgaria
BGN ‘000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
Acquisition cost
Monetary payment (870) (249) (112) (35) (1,266)
Total acquisition cost (870) (249) (112) (35) (1,266)
Fair value of the acquired net
assets 591 219 89 26 925

Effects assumed by the Group at

the account of Group’s reserve

‘accumulated profit’ (279) (30) (23) (9) (341)
Cash outflow on increase of

interest (purchases from non-

controlling interest) (870) (249) (112) (35) (1,266)
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43.3. Acquisition of a share in a joint venture

In 2012 the Group acquired shares in a joint ventur

date of % interest acquired net assets

acquisition at fair value

BGN '000

Vivaton Plus OOO, Belarus 20.12.2011 25.50% (4)

Vivaton Plus

carrying

fair value amount

20.12.2012 20.12.2012

BGN'000 BGN'000

Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) a7 47
Intangible assets (Note 17) 244 -
Inventories 197 197
Trade receivables 3 3
Other receivables and assets 121 121
Cash and cash equivalents 20 20

Trade payables (245) (245)

Other payables and liabilities (132) (88)
Net assets 255 55

Non-controlling interest (%) 49% 49%
Share of non-controlling interest (BGN'000) 125 27
130 28

Net assets acquired by the Group

The principal activities of the acquired joint vamt are disclosed in Note 1.

Vivaton Plus OOD, Belarus, was acquired throughphechase of 50% interest by the subsidiary Briz
OOD, Latvia.

Vivaton Plus
BGN'00C
Acquisition cost

Amounts paid in current period 314
Share of the non-controlling interest in the inwestt on indirect acquisition (157)
Measurement to fair value of previous interesthsydate of acquisition of control (18)

Total acquisition cost 139

Fair value of the acquired net assets 130

Goodwill 9
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The cash outflows from acquisition of control weasefollows:

Cash flows on acquisition of shares in a joint vente Vivaton Plus

BGN'000
Monetary payment 314
Cash and cash equivalents in the acquired companies (20)
Cash outflow on acquisition of control 294

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND DECREASING THE INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

44.1. Total disposal of subsidiaries

In 2012 the Group disposed of its total intereghimfollowing subsidiary:

Subsidiary company Date of sale % interest
Rostbalkanpharm ZAO 04.04.2012 51.00%

The net assets of the disposed of company areregsas follows:

Disposal with loss of control 100%
Date of disposal of interest 04.04.2012
BGN'000
Property, plant and equipment 494
Inventories 14
Trade receivables 146
Other receivables and assets 35
Cash and cash equivalents 29
Loans (326)
Other payables and liabilities (874)
Total net assets 482
Losses assumed by the Group (327)
Total disposal of share of net assets and lossesamed by the Group (809)
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The financial result from the disposal of the sdizsly is as follows:

Fair value of the consideration recei
Recycling of reserve from transformat

Less:

Disposed of share of net assets (51%)

Assumed losses by the Group related with the despo$ subsidiary
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Net cash flows on disposal of subsidiaries
Cash received

Less:

Cash in disposed of subsidiaries

Net cash flows on disposal of subsidiaries

In 2011, the Group did not dispose totally of anlgsdiary.

44.2 Decreasing interests (sales to non-controllingerests)
In 2012:

BGN'000
5

(2)
3

246
(286)

@)

BGN'000
5

29
(24

The decrease (partial disposals of) in interesdrgst) in subsidiaries without loss of control, ¢fifects

and cash flows, relating to the transactions, vasrfollows:

Decrease in interests transaction date % change in

(sales to non-controlling interest)

ZAO Interpharm 31.12.2012
Tabina OOO 31.12.2012
Sopharma Trading AD 31.12.2012

interest

-0.79%
-0.79%
-0.32%

acquired net
assets

BGN '000
(152)

17)

(181)

(350)
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Decrease in interests
(sales to non-controlling interest)

Proceeds from partial disposal of subsidiaries
Share of non-controlling interest on indirect
acquisition

Proceeds from partial disposal of subsidiaries
for the Group

Carrying amount of the net assets at the date of

partial disposal of subsidiaries

Effects assumed by non-controlling interests at
the account of Group’s reserve ‘accumulated
profits’

Cash inflow on partial disposal of subsidiaries

In 2011:

ZAO Tabina Sopharma Total

Interpharm OO0 Trading AD
Belarus Belarus Bulgaria

BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000

1,119 45 179 1,343

(548) (22) - (570)

571 23 179 773

(152) (17) (181) (350)

419 6 (2 423

1,119 45 179 1,343

The decrease (partial disposals of) in interesdrgs) in subsidiaries without loss of control, éfifects
and cash flows, relating to the transactions, vasriollows:

Decrease in interests
(sales to non-controlling interest)

Bulgarian Rose AD
Momina Krepost AD
Sopharma Trading AD

Decrease in interests
(sales to non-controlling interest)

Proceeds from partial disposal of subsidiaries
Carrying amount of the net assets at the date of
partial disposal of subsidiaries

Effects assumed by non-controlling interests at
the account of Group’s reserve ‘accumulated
profits’

Net cash inflow on partial disposal of
subsidiaries

transaction % change in acquired net
date interest assets
BGN '000
31.12.2011 -0.79% (43)
31.12.2011 -0.79% (39)
31.12.2011 -1.16% (662)
(744)
Bulgarian Momina Sopharma Total
Rose AD Krepost AD Trading AD
Bulgaria Bulgaria Bulgaria
BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000 BGN'000
56 46 688 790
(43) (39) (662) (744
13 7 26 46
56 46 688 790
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties Relation type Relation period
Telecomplect Invest AD Main shareholding company 2012
Telecomplect AD**(formal holder of the Main shareholding company 2011

shares as per the Registry at the Central Depgsitor
(CD) until the entry of Telecomplect Invest AD in

the CD Registry)
Donev Investments AD Main shareholding company 112énd 2012
Pharmachim Holding EAD Company under a commorréuicontrol 2011 and 2012
NIHFI AD Company under a common indirect controluntil 05.08.2011
Kaliman RT AD Company under a common indirect coint 2011 and 2012
SCS Franchise AD Company under a common indiatrel 2011 and 2012
Seiba Pharmacies and Drugstores 2011 and 2012
AD Company under a common indirect control
Mineralcommerce AD Company under a common indicectrol 2011 and 2012
Sopharma Properties ADSIC Company under a commtirect control 2011 and 2012
Sofia Inform AD Company under a common indireattcol 2011 and 2012
Sofprint Group AD Company under a common indikaritrol 2011 and 2012
Sofconsult Group AD Company under a common indiceatrol 2011 and 2012
Elpharma AD Company under a common indirect contro2011 and 2012
Riton P AD Company under a common indirect controR011 and 2012
through key managing personnel
Telso AD Company under a common indirect controR011 and 2012
through key managing personnel
Telecomplect AD Company under a common indireatmd 2012
through key managing personnel
Media Group Bulgaria Holding Company under a comimalirect control  from 09.04.2011 and 2012
through key managing personnel
DOH Group Company under a common indirect contro2011 and 2012
through key managing personnel
OO0 Farmaceuvt Plus Company under a common indimdtol 2012

through key managing personnel

** According to the plan for transformation of Tetamplect AD under the procedure of the Commercil (Art.
262a, para 2) through spin-off by establishing av rmpany - Telecomplect Invest AD (entered in the
Commercial Register under No 164905 of 29 July 20tk title on 26,948,052 shares of the capitéda@bharma
AD is transferred to the newly established company.

As at 31 December 2011 the transfer of the shareSetecomplect Invest AD had not yet been
registered in Central Depository AD.

For the purpose of disclosing the deals, transastand balances with related parties, the Group has
accepted the rule of giving priority to the fornkedal criteria for ownership and disposal of shérels
by a particular person, regardless of the econ@ulistance and the intents of the parties. For this
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reason, the transactions and balances with TeldeotnfD for the whole year 2011 are presented as
type of relationship "main shareholding company".

In 2011, Sopharma Group did not perform deals Wirecomplect Invest AD and had no outstanding
balances therewith as at 31 December 2011.

Related party transactions are as follows:

Supplies from related parties: 2012 2011
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Supply of inventories from:

Companies under a common indirect col 10,761 10,75¢
Companies under a common indirect control throughrkanaging
personnel 4,761 23
Main shareholding compan - 243
15,52: 11,02(
Supply of services from:
Companies under a common indirect control throughrkanaging
personnel 3,02¢ 47C
Companies under a common indirect col 2,452 367
Main shareholding compani 62E 2,79¢
6,103 3,63¢
Supply of tangible fixed assets from:
Companies under a common indirect control throughrkanaging
personnel 313 -
Companies uder a common indirect cont 18 -
Main shareholding compan - 56
331 56
Supplies for acquisition of non-current assets:
Companies under a common irect control through key managi
personnel 29,18¢ -
Main shareholding compan - 16,54¢
Companies under a common indirect col - 48¢
29,18¢ 17,03’
51,144 31,74¢
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Sales to related parties 2012 2011
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
Sales of inventories to:

Companies under a common indirect control 7,322 8,340
Companies under a common indirect control throughrkanaging
personnel 3,624 5
Main shareholding companies - 56
10,946 8,401
Sales of services to:
Companies under a common indirect control 170 169
Companies under a common indirect control throughrkanaging
personnel 120 -
Main shareholding companies - 51
290 220
Other sales to:
Main shareholding companies 58 5
Companies under a common indirect control throughrkanaging
personnel 5 -
Companies under a common indirect control 1 9
64 14

Interest on loans granted:

Companies under a common indirect control througihrkanaging

personnel 2,902 1,356
Companies under a common indirect control 663 612
Main shareholding companies 403 2,567

3,968 4,535

15,268 13,170

The accounts and balances with related partiedisetsed in Notes 21, 25 and 36.

The composition of key management personnel oGttep includes the disclosed in Note 1 Executive
Director and the members of the Board of Directdrthe parent company. Additionally, it includeg th
Executive Directors, the members of Boards of Doecand the General Managers of the subsidiaries
in the Group.

Salaries and other short-term benefits of key miagagersonnel amount to BGN 3,866 thousand
(2011: BGN 3,637 thousand), including:

* current wages and salaries — BGN 3,394 thousaddl( BGN 3,231 thousand);
* tantieme — BGN 472 thousand (2011: BGN 406 thad¥a
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46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

At 25 April 2013, the share participation of Finah¢Consulting Company EOOD in the capital of the
parent company was 9.62% (12,699,038 shares).

At 25 April 2013, the share participation of Donkewestments Holding in the capital of the parent
company was 26.31 % (34,731,663 shares).

On 25 February 2013 the liquidation procedure efjtint venture Sopharma Zdrovit — in liquidation,
Poland, was finalised and it was deleted from th&dwal Court Registry in Poland.

For the period after the end of the reporting pktio the date of the financial statements the Group
performed the following transactions with share&ofup companies (through Briz, Latvia):

- sale of 5% of the shares of OOO Tabina (remaingaigiary company);

- sale of 15.3% of the shares ZAO Interpharm (remaisgbsidiary company);

- purchase of 13% of the shares SOOO Brizpharm (resvasubsidiary company);

- purchase of 5% of the shares ODO Vestpharm (renaairzssociated company);

- purchase of 19% of the shares of ODO Alean (charfgeah an associate to a
subsidiary company).

For the period after the end of the reporting pktio the date of the financial statements the Group
performed the following transactions with shares aafmpanies classified as available-for-sale
investment as at 31 December 2012 (through Brixjidga

- purchase of 19% of the shares of OOO NPK Biotasariged from an available-for-
sale investment to an associated company);
- purchase of 19% of the shares of OOO BelAgroMedrfged from an available-for-
sale investment to an associated company).
By virtue of a contract for sale of shares, datédApril 2013, the Group sold the whole package of
shares in OAO Krimgas - 1,335,175 shares for BGI8£2thousand.
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